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AFFIRMATIONS
As the authorized lead petitioner, I, Kurt Madden, hereby certify that the information submitted in
this petition for a California public charter school to be named County Collaborative Charter School
(“CCCS” or the “Charter School”), and to be chartered by the Mountain Empire Unified School
District (“MEUSD” or the “District”) is true to the best of our knowledge and belief; I also certify
that this application does not constitute the conversion of a private school to the status of a public
charter school; and further, I agree, CCCS:
● Shall meet all statewide standards and conduct the student assessments required pursuant to
Education Code Sections 60605 and any other statewide standards authorized in statute, or
student assessments applicable to students in non-charter public schools. [Ref. Education Code
Section 47605(c)(1)]
● Shall be deemed the exclusive public school employer of the employees of CCCS for purposes
of the Educational Employment Relations Act. [Ref. Education Code Section 47605 (b)(6)]
● Shall be non-sectarian in its programs, admissions policies, employment practices, and all
other operations. [Ref. Education Code Section 47605(d)(1)]
● Shall not charge tuition. [Ref. Education Code Section 47605(d)(1)]
● Shall admit all students who wish to attend Charter School, and admission shall not be
determined according to the place of residence of the pupil, or of his or her parent or legal
guardian, within this state, who submit a timely application, unless CCCS receives a greater
number of applications than there are spaces for students, in which case each application will
be given equal chance of admission through a public random drawing process. Preference in
the public random drawing shall be extended to pupils currently attending the charter school
and pupils who reside in the school district, except as provided in Education Code Section
47614.5. Preferences, including, but not limited to, siblings of pupils admitted or attending the
charter school, children of charter school teachers, staff, or founders named in the initial
charter, may be permitted by the chartering school district on an individual charter school basis.
The priority order for any admissions preferences shall be determined in the charter petition
and shall comply with all or the following:
i)
ii)
iii)

iv)

Each preference type shall be approved by the District at a public hearing;
Preferences shall be consistent with federal law, the California Constitution, and
Education Code Section 200;
Preferences shall not result in limiting enrollment access for students with
disabilities 1, academically low-achieving students, English Learners, neglected or
delinquent students, homeless or economically disadvantaged students, foster
youth, or based on a student’s nationality, race, ethnicity, or sexual orientation;
In accordance with Education Code Section 49011, preferences shall not require

1

Special education students may not participate in independent study unless it is specified as an instructional
method in their Individualized Education Program. (Ed. Code Section 51745(c).)
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mandatory parental volunteer hours as a criterion for admission or continued
enrollment.
● Shall not discriminate on the basis of the characteristics listed in Education Code Section 220
(actual or perceived disability, gender, gender identity, gender expression, nationality, race or
ethnicity, religion, sexual orientation, or any other characteristic that is contained in the
definition of hate crimes set forth in Section 422.55 of the Penal Code, including immigration
status, or association with an individual who has any of the aforementioned characteristics).
[Ref. Education Code Section 47605(d)(1)]
● Shall adhere to all provisions of federal law related to students with disabilities including, but
not limited to, Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, Title II of the Americans with
Disabilities Act of 1990, and the Individuals with Disabilities Education Improvement Act of
2004. [Ref. 20 U.S.C.S § 7221i(2)(G)]
● Shall meet all requirements for employment set forth in applicable provisions of law, including,
but not limited to credentials, as necessary. [Ref. California Code of Regulations, Title 5,
Section 11967.5.1(f)(5)(c)]
● Shall ensure that teachers at CCCS hold a Commission on Teacher Credentialing certificate,
permit, or other document equivalent to that which a teacher in other public schools is required
to hold. As allowed by statute, flexibility will be given to non-core, non-college preparatory
teachers. [Ref. Education Code Section 47605(l)]
● Shall at all times maintain all necessary and appropriate insurance coverage.
● Shall, for each fiscal year, offer at a minimum, the number of minutes of instruction per grade
level as required by Education Code Section 47612.5(a)(1)(A)-(D)
● If a pupil is expelled or leaves CCCS without graduating or completing the school year for any
reason, CCCS shall notify the superintendent of the school district of the pupil’s last known
address within 30 days, and shall, upon request, provide that school district with a copy of the
cumulative record of the pupil, including a transcript of grades or report card and health
information. [Ref. Education Code Section 47605(d)(3)]
● Shall follow any and all other federal, state, and local laws and regulations that apply to CCCS
including but not limited to:
● CCCS shall maintain accurate and contemporaneous written records that document all
pupil attendance and make these records available for audit and inspection. [Ref.
California Education Code Section 47612.5(a)(2)]
● CCCS shall on a regular basis consult with its parents and teachers regarding CCCS's
education programs. [Ref. Education Code Section 47605(c)(2)]
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ELEMENT 1: EDUCATIONAL PLAN
Governing Law: A description of the educational program of the school, designed, among other
things, to identify those whom the school is attempting to educate, what it means to be an “educated
person” in the 21st century, and how learning best occurs. The goals identified in that program
shall include the objective of enabling pupils to become self-motivated, competent, and lifelong
learners. – California Education Code Section 47605(b)(5)(A)(i).
The annual goals for the charter school for all pupils and for each subgroup of pupils identified
pursuant to Section 52052, to be achieved in the state priorities, as described in subdivision (d) of
Section 52060, that apply for the grade levels served, or the nature of the program operated, by
the charter school, and specific annual actions to achieve those goals. A charter petition may
identify additional school priorities, the goals for the school priorities, and the specific annual
actions to achieve those goals. – California Education Code Section 47605(b)(5)(A)(ii).
If the proposed school will serve high school pupils, a description of the manner in which the
charter school will inform parents about the transferability of courses to other public high schools
and the eligibility of courses to meet college entrance requirements. Courses offered by the charter
school that are accredited by the Western Association of Schools and Colleges may be considered
transferable and courses approved by the University of California or the California State
University as creditable under the “A” to “G” admissions criteria may be considered to meet
college entrance requirements. – California Education Code Section 47605(b)(5)(A)(iii).
1) Mission
County Collaborative Charter School (CCCS) will harness the power of a flexible learning
environment and modern educational technology to serve learners with diverse backgrounds and
goals who seek an education alternative that stimulates and supports independent learning. Through
the power and flexibility of its standards-based online and homeschool curriculum, combined with
superior individualized support, CCCS will provide an inspirational learning environment with
enriched and rigorous academics and high standards to empower students to become self-motivated
and competent life-long learners who will make a positive impact on their communities.
2) Educational Philosophy
The school seeks to attract and serve a group of students who can benefit from instruction that is
more freely scheduled, flexibly paced, individually targeted, and closely monitored than can occur
in a traditional “brick and mortar” classroom. CCCS’s model becomes distinguishable from other
virtual/homeschool or self-directed learning models in that students benefit from intensive academic
support from professional educators, a feature lacking in other virtual and independent study settings.
The petitioners believe that educational success depends on positive student engagement and high
levels of interaction with content, instructors, and fellow learners. That interaction occurs
when learning is fun, challenging, flexibly paced, and situated in a climate where curiosity and risktaking are rewarded.
This learning climate is made possible by a curriculum that is aligned to California’s academic
content standards and targeted to individual learner needs. Our curriculum is delivered through a
7

CCCS Staff model, which may include on-line, blended, and home school that balance the unique
advantages of traditional and virtual classroom approaches. The curriculum is designed to cover the
full content in each core subject by the end of each academic year.
However, the flexible pacing in our approach enables the student, under the guidance of the educator,
to spend more intensive time and effort in areas of need. This model allows teachers to better address
each student’s unique learning and communication style, cultivate independent thought, and offer
alternative or supplemental learning options that prepare students for the real- life complexities of
higher education or the job market in the 21st century.
CCCS’s educational model is intended to cultivate learning habits that keep the mind open, curious,
and alert. An “educated person in the 21st century” is able to learn continuously, perceive
opportunity, and adapt talents and skills to novel situations. These characteristics and habits reveal
themselves when a person adapts learned capabilities to a job or career that did not exist when those
capabilities were first formed. This dynamic demonstrates that the curious and open-minded are by
nature “lifelong learners.” Our model engenders this mentality by enabling the student to interact
with the curriculum in a manner that motivates him or her to pursue individual interest while
proceeding through the required content.
CCCS will position its students for success by enabling students to learn any time, any place, and by
deploying flexible learning, teaching, curricular, and staffing models that adapt to the uniqueness
inherent in every student and learning situation. It will empower them to take ownership of their
education and develop not only knowledge, skills, and abilities, but also the confidence, creativity,
and resourcefulness to deploy them adaptively in response to the challenges and opportunities of the
21st century.
3) School Programs
CCCS is accredited by the Western Association of Schools and Colleges (WASC), offers a full
complement of courses approved by the University of California for "a-g" course requirements for
entrance to the UC system, and National Collegiate Athletic Association (NCAA) for students who
are pursuing athletics at the collegiate or university level. CCCS currently utilizes Edmentum, an
approved online publisher of "a-g" curriculum by the UC regents in order to offer a variety of "a-g"
approved course offerings, as well as Advanced Placement coursework. Furthermore, CCCS staff
members will support students' entrance into higher education institutions through communication
with admissions staff.
4) Students to Be Served
CCCS will seek to serve students who demonstrate an interest and aptitude for a self-directed staffsupported learning environment. These students are potentially high performing, but they find too
much distraction or too little stimulation in the traditional classroom environment. As such, these
students often come to CCCS extremely credit deficient. Our educational model will also serve
students who need an alternative to daily classroom attendance. These students may work during
the day or may not be motivated to attend school on a full-time campus for many reasons. Our
educational model is designed to serve all of these students effectively through a robust curriculum
and dedicated, individualized teacher support.
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CCCS currently serves students in grades 6-12 and as CCCS grows and expands, we may serve
students in grades K through 12, including TK. CCCS estimates that it will serve an increasing
number of students over the next five years, which includes students enrolled in a multi-track
calendar that includes Track A (i.e. summer track), Track B (i.e. traditional year), and site based
summer programs. (See supporting data in the “Measurable Pupils Outcomes” section below.)
CCCS will also deliver two unique dropout recovery programs and be entitled to Average Daily
Attendance for targeting at-risk, out of school, out of work students. The youth dropout recovery
program will be available to students between the ages of 16-19 who have dropped out of school
prior to achieving a high school diploma. The adult dropout recovery program will be available to
students between the ages of 18-25 who have dropped out of school prior to achieving a high school
diploma and who meet the eligibility requirements of WIOA, Job Corps, Youth-Build, and California
Conservation Corps.
Workforce Investment Opportunity Act
The federal Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA), which superseded the Job
Training Partnership Act, offers a comprehensive range of workforce development activities
through statewide and local organizations. Available workforce development activities provided in
local communities can benefit job seekers, laid off workers, youth, incumbent workers, and new
entrants to the workforce, veterans, persons with disabilities, and employers.
The purpose of these activities is to promote an increase in the employment, job retention, earnings,
and occupational skills improvement by participants. This, in turn, improves the quality of the
workforce, reduces welfare dependency, and improves the productivity and competitiveness of the
nation.
Title I of the WIOA authorizes services for youth, adults, and laid-off workers. Eligible youth must
be 16 to 24 years of age, low income, and meet at least one of six specific barriers to employment.
A year-round youth program emphasizes attainment of basic skills competencies, enhances
opportunities for academic and occupational training, and provides exposure to the job market and
employment. Activities may include instruction leading to completion of secondary school,
tutoring, internships, job shadowing, work experience, adult mentoring, and comprehensive
guidance and counseling. The program emphasizes services for out-of-school youth.
While eligible laid-off workers are generally individuals who have been terminated from their last
employment and are unlikely to return to their previous industry or occupation, displaced
homemakers and self-employed individuals also may qualify for these services. Adult and laid-off
worker services are provided through locally based One-Stop career centers. Comprehensive OneStop career centers provide access to a full range of services pertaining to employment, training
and education, employer assistance, and guidance for obtaining other assistance. While WIOA
requires One-Stop career centers to provide specific services, local areas may design programs and
provide services that reflect the unique needs of their area.
One-Stop career centers use varied strategies in providing the appropriate services to meet the
needs of their customers:
● Core Services are available and include, in part, labor market information, initial
assessment of skill levels, and job search and placement assistance.
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● Intensive Services are available to eligible unemployed individuals who have
completed at least one core service, but have not been able to obtain employment, or
employed individuals needing additional services to obtain or keep employment that will
lead to personal self-sufficiency.
● Training Services are available to eligible individuals who have met the requirements
for intensive services and have not been able to obtain or keep employment. Individual
Training Accounts are established to finance training based upon the individual’s choice
of selected training programs.
The Governor has appointed a State Workforce Investment Board (WIB) consisting primarily of
representatives from businesses, labor organizations, educational institutions, and community
organizations. The State WIB assists the Governor in designing a statewide plan and establishing
appropriate program policy.
Benefits of WIOA
The activities provided by WIOA at the local level offer a variety of benefits to both program
participants and the communities in which they reside:
Job Seekers
●
●
●
●

Universal access

●
●
●
●

Basic skills assessment
Resources and guidance help to attain educational goals
Leadership development opportunities
Exposure to work environment through training and adult mentoring

to job search and labor market information
Advice, counseling, and support
Education and skills training
Individual choice of service

Youth

Employers
●
●
●
●

Influence over local area employment policy
Improved and trained employee pool
Development of on-the-job and customized training opportunities
Assistance for laid-off workers

Community
●
●
●
●

Access to local area job market information
Improved workforce quality
Services designed for local area needs
Reduced need for welfare

Instructional Framework
CCCS believes that if we a) provide enrollment and access for all students; b) provide a personalized
yet flexible learning plan; c) provide rigorous and relevant learning experiences; and d) give
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pathways to careers and/or college, then we can ensure our young people will be successful in school
and prepared to be competitive in today's global economy.
5) Curriculum and Instructional Design
Student Information System
School Pathways provides the Student Information System (“SIS”), which keeps all student
information and allows the school to continually assess its educational program to make data driven
decisions relative to course offerings and student outreach. The SIS has a sophisticated reporting
capability that all faculty and staff have access to at varying levels (access is granted dependent on
employee status and job needs). This system houses student information and records, employee
information and records, grades and transcripts, and state testing information. The SIS self-reports
relative to state reporting mandates such as CALPADs, and it is used to create and house the master
schedule. It is one of the only Student Information Systems of its kind relative to state reporting and
is quite sophisticated and reliable.
In addition, the SIS provides the capability of making decisions about curriculum offerings and
teacher assignments; determining correct student course placement; using state testing data for
student placement and support needs; and tracking grades and progress toward graduation. CCCS
strives to be a data driven organization in order to make decisions that best serve student needs and
help them become successful graduates of the school.
Curriculum Provider and Learning Management Systems
The school’s learning environment will be led by CCCS staff, with curriculum delivered via
synchronous and asynchronous modes in both an online or offline Independent Study environment.
CCCS currently contracts with Edmentum to offer the most up to date, quality curriculum possible.
For the homeschool model, the curriculum will be chosen based on state standards, student’s learning
style, student’s working level, and the educational philosophy being followed. The teachers have
hundreds of options for curriculum, including the state-approved material list, as well as curriculum
associated with various educational philosophies.
Core courses cover all the essential subject divisions within each of these academic areas: language
arts, mathematics, history/social science, physical sciences, and life sciences. The Charter School
will also offer an array of electives reflecting a wide range of student interests, including
communications and the professions (e.g., speech and communications, psychology); fine arts
studies; liberal arts (including foreign language); computer technology (e.g., computer applications,
digital citizenship); and practical skills (e.g., health, strategies for academic success). CCCS offers
Advanced Placement and "a-g" approved courses in all subject areas, including science courses and
fine arts.
Each CCCS student receives instruction that embeds the California Academic Standards and is
tailored to his or her specific learning needs via pre-assessments and ongoing,
synchronous/asynchronous assessment within the course. In order to meet the needs of our students,
instructors work directly with students by answering their questions, explaining concepts and
techniques as necessary, adjusting lessons and assignments as needed, and monitoring student pace.
Instructors may meet with students virtually where they live, synchronous teaching sessions are held;
through phone, email and messaging platforms; and during established office hours (using the means
described above). Assessments reveal target areas in need of academic support. Using this
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information, instructors and support staff can then work to supplement student academic skills to
support student success. Such support can be meant to accelerate skills or build skills which are
lacking, such that they have blocked student achievement.
CCCS staff encourage student achievement through mentoring and support, for example by helping
students navigate the online system, understanding school policies and protocols, and planning their
class schedules and course sequencing. Counselors also organize college information meetings,
instruction in school success, and work closely with families who have special needs such as those
with an Individualized Education Program (“IEP”) or English Learner (“EL”) issues.
Designed by CCCS and deployed according to CCCS’s Independent Study model, the charter
school’s goal is to provide an optimal learning environment while engaging students with a userfriendly curriculum model. All CCCS administration, teachers, and support staff tailor student
support and success strategies through the lens of what is best for students as a whole as well as for
students individually.
Attendance Tracking
The only item that counts for independent study attendance credit is evaluated work or work products
that were completed and submitted by the due dates established in the written agreement. When the
student submits or demonstrates the evidence of work accomplished in the achievement of set
objectives, the teacher credits the student with attendance. This varies day-to-day because instruction
is available 24/7 and is paced flexibly according to individual student needs. For Independent Study
students, instructional time is systematically logged and reported by the LMS, by attendance in live
sessions, and/or by offline work recorded in an official online learning log, created by the attendance
coordinator based on the auditor’s recommendations. Attendance is reported for both content items
and course tools, including all readings, assignments, exams, journal, whiteboard/synchronous
session tool, chat, document sharing, and Dropbox. Academic work records will be uploaded to
School Pathways each learning period to verify student work hours while in the Independent Study
setting.
6) Plan for Students Who Are Academically Low Achievers
CCCS’ intends to continue to work very closely with the District to address the needs of its
traditionally low academic achievers. CCCS’ goal is to collaboratively approach the
educational needs of group of pupils with the District, all to the end of better jointly serving
and thus jointly supporting our mutual stakeholder pupils, families, and communities.

Identifying and Understanding Low Achievers
CCCS’ instructional team is prepared to work with a diverse student population and to focus
intensively on those who struggle academically and perform below expectations. The petitioner
understands that students can find themselves struggling for a variety of reasons. Some have
difficulty staying on task; others have become accustomed and resigned to lowered expectations
based on a pattern of past setbacks. Some have difficulty with one subject area but not another. Some
have trouble working in the early morning, or after lunch. Every student is different, and every
struggling student struggles uniquely. This is, in fact, one of the major reasons why some students
choose an Independent Study model.
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These students will be identified through past grades and state test scores; discussions with parents
and previous CCCS Staff observations; IEPs; writing samples; and the results of diagnostic skills
assessments that may be given to incoming students. Using this information, CCCS teachers and
CCCS Staff can create a pathway to success for each student. This involves not only appropriate
course placement, but also accommodations and adaptations that teachers make to the curriculum
and their instructional approach to meet the needs of each individual student.
Structural Elements and Strategic Responses for Raising Student Achievement Levels
To meet the challenges faced by struggling students, instructors will offer continuous motivation and
support, seek ways to engage students in meaningful learning through multiple delivery methods,
and work one-on-one with students and parents in various ways. These include individual
student/teacher calls, teacher/parent phone conferences, in-person meetings, academic team phone
conferences (these include parents and student), and individual student/teacher “whiteboard”
sessions. Where needed, individual tutoring can also be provided.
The flexible nature of our pacing and curriculum allow teachers to provide remediation, support, and
additional challenge wherever it is needed during the year, proactively supporting students and
addressing individual needs before more intensive intervention efforts are required.
While all students can benefit from the flexible pacing inherent in the Charter School’s Independent
Study program, struggling students in particular will benefit from a curriculum that does not mandate
that all students demonstrate their knowledge and skills in identical ways or at identical times.
Instruction is designed around a full assortment of graded assignments that afford students varied
ways to demonstrate mastery of content. These include group discussions, written and verbal course
assignments, practice assignments, quizzes, journals, essays, creative writing papers, research
projects, group projects, exams, reviews/case studies, and portfolio pieces. Additionally, prep and/or
remediation is available to students in order to help them achieve proficiency on all CAASPP exams.
CCCS’s goal is to meet the academic needs of all our students (which include ethnic, socio
economically disadvantaged, homeless, and foster youth) through the use of academic and social
emotional supports. Students who are low achieving will be identified using our internal assessments.
If a student is performing below 60% using these assessment methods, they will be considered Low
Achieving and support involving a counselor and the teaching team will be put into place. Instruction
adapted to the needs of low achievers will also emerge from data-driven analyses of their
performance, and the teacher interventions that result. These interventions will be based on
California Academic Standards.
Student Success Team
A Student Success Team (SST), including parents, teacher, and other school personnel or interested
persons, uses a systematic problem-solving approach to assist students with any concerns that are
interfering with success. The SST clarifies problems and concerns, develops strategies and organizes
resources, provides a system for school accountability, and serves to assist and counsel the parent,
teacher, and student. An SST is a general education function. All students can benefit from an SST,
including but not limited to those students achieving below grade level, those who are achieving
above grade level and require greater challenge, and students who have experienced emotional
13

trauma, behavioral issues, or language issues.
Anyone who has a concern for a student can refer that student to SST for consideration. Anyone
connected with the student can be included in the SST to provide information about the student,
including strengths, concerns, and strategies that have been used in the past. Team members may
include but are not limited to teachers, parents, CCCS Staff, doctors, administration, social workers,
and law enforcement. The meeting is designed to bring out the best in the people involved.
Our twelve SST meeting steps include:
1. Team members introduce themselves and their roles.
2. Purpose and process of the meeting are stated
3. Timekeeper is appointed.
4. Strengths are identified.
5. Concerns are discussed, clarified, and listed.
6. Pertinent information and modifications are listed.
7. Concerns are synthesized; one or two are chosen for focus.
8. Strategies to address concerns are brainstormed.
9. Team chooses best strategies to carry into actions.
10. Individuals make commitments to actions.
11. Person responsible and timelines for actions are recorded.
12. Follow-up date is set.
After implementation of an SST plan and follow-up, the plan will be further reviewed/revised to
address concerns that have not been adequately addressed and/or effectively resolved. In addition, a
referral for special education assessment might be deemed appropriate through the SST process.
All assigned teachers of records meet with their students and their parents when necessary throughout
the year. The result of such meetings may be a plan that has consensus on how to support the
individual student, with specific responsibilities delegated to the students, parents and teachers.
Credit Recovery
CCCS’s academic program offers a credit recovery option for all students. CCCS students have the
potential to recover credits depending on how quickly courses are completed. Students receive
personalized support from CCCS Staff which includes weekly check-ins via email or phone, a credit
recovery plan of courses the student needs to retake, and encouragement and pacing assistance to
keep students on pace and moving through the courses. Teachers are available to support students in
their classes by phone, email, and the virtual classroom. They provide students with recorded live
sessions, tutoring, and any other support they need to be successful in their classes.
7) Plan for Students Who Are Academically High Achieving
These students are identified via the same process of investigation, observation, and analysis used to
identify low-achieving students, as stated above.
CCCS offers individualized support for high achieving students such as individualized support (e.g.
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differentiation, one-on-one instruction, access to higher level materials, etc.) Students can take a
rigorous course load through our honors and Advanced Placement courses. For students looking for
even more rigorous options, we will encourage concurrent enrollment in community college courses,
and CCCS may assign dual credit. CCCS staff will offer guidance through the college process, from
creating a 4-year educational plan, to concurrent enrollment, and culminating in the college
application process during senior year. Exceptional students who wish to accelerate through the
curriculum and graduate early will have an opportunity to do so with CCCS staff and teacher
approval.
8) Plan for English Learners
CCCS has developed an English Learner Master Plan (see Exhibit H) to serve English Learner (“EL”)
students, which addresses their needs; meets all state and federal mandates; and, has a goal of exiting
students from EL status. CCCS has access to an Assessment Coordinator on staff who coordinates
all ELPAC testing, works with teachers to provide EL support in the general education setting as
outlined in the charter’s EL Master Plan.
EL students who do not accelerate one level per year on the ELPAC, or a similar benchmark on the
ELPAC, will be monitored and given extra targeted support services.
CCCS will translate documents for families for whom English is not the primary language.
Documents including all ELPAC testing correspondence, all reclassification materials, and the
Master Agreement will be translated as needed.
Identifying Students as EL
EL students are targeted for ELPAC testing when the Home Language Survey indicates that their
primary home language is a language other than English.
a. All students identified EL via the home language survey will be ELPAC tested at the

beginning of each year.
b. Parents will be notified of ELPAC results within 30 days from when CCCS receives the
testing results.
c. All CCCS students are in an English Language Mainstream academic program with an
EL Support Course. The mainstream curriculum is taught by CLAD certified teachers and
includes vocabulary, visual, and thematic based support. EL students are accommodated
within this curriculum by providing multiple opportunities to demonstrate mastery on all
assessments, including writing assignments.
Criteria for Reclassifying (RFEP) EL students
The following criteria are used in tandem to determine reclassification:
d. Minimum ELPAC Overall Score of 4
1. Minimum ELPAC Oral Language Score of 4
2. Minimum ELPAC Written Language Score of 3
e. Teacher Evaluation
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f. Parent Approval
g. Smarter Balanced and/or Local Assessments can also be used in determining student
readiness for reclassification
EL Support Class
The EL support class will cover the state EL Content Standards and focus on building skills in
academic vocabulary and reading/writing across the curriculum. Students will receive elective credit
for the course. The course aids EL students by providing scaffolding to build skills in academic
reading and writing in all content area courses. Students will be placed in the course based on their
status as an EL student until they have been reclassified. English Language core courses are chosen
based on academic level and elective courses are chosen based on student interest and need (i.e. the
EL support course).
● All units include vocabulary and grammar building components and targeted
reading/writing strategies across content areas.
● Each individual unit is centered around a specific theme and a specific reading/writing
strategy.
● EL students will be monitored every quarter relative to performance in the EL support class
and progress in all academic courses. The Assessment Coordinator will conference with
core and support teachers on an ongoing basis (quarterly).
● All EL students will be contacted bi-weekly for check-in and progress monitoring.
● Parents will be included in all correspondence regarding student progress.
9) Plan for Special Education
CCCS provides a rigorous curriculum for all students. CCCS understands, appreciates, and embraces
that the school shall serve students with exceptional needs and that the school, pursuant to applicable
state and federal law, must ensure that all of its students have access to a free and appropriate public
education in the least restrictive environment. (Special education students may not participate in
independent study unless it is specified as an instructional method in their Individualized Education
Program. (Ed. Code Section 51745(c).)
CCCS has been approved and is a member of the Sonoma County Charter Special Education Local
Plan Area (SELPA). A change in LEA status or SELPA membership shall not require a material
revision of this charter.
CCCS anticipates enrolling students with IEPs or enrolling students who may require testing for
appropriate placement and possible services. CCCS will work proactively and cooperatively with
families, the teaching staff, and the MEUSD to adhere to state and federal mandates in servicing
Special Education students including, but not limited to: testing; creating and updating IEPs; special
services as provided by outside providers or by the District, etc. We will also ensure that:
a. We employ admissions and enrollment practices that are non-discriminatory toward
students with IEPs.
b. Special needs students are under the guidance of and receive support from the schools
Special Education Case Managers.
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c. Special Education Case Managers are ensuring that the staff working with students with
IEPs are trained in how to fulfill the requirements of the IEPs and in how to best
academically support Special Education students in their classes.
d. In working with Special Education students, our school is the least restrictive
environment and most appropriate placement for the student as dictated by law.
e. CCCS requests and obtains student's cumulative files and other documents in a timely
fashion.
f. We review student assessment data, including but not limited to state-mandated testing,
to identify students who may be falling behind expectations in their academic progress
and in need of additional support or services.
Referral and Assessment
CCCS students who are referred for Special Education testing after admission to the program will be
tested using appropriate assessments by CCCS Special Education Case Managers. Students identified
after testing as qualifying for services will receive special education and/or related services under the
terms of applicable special education law and as specified by the resulting IEP. The services may or
may not be supplied directly by CCCS staff dependent on student needs, the terms of a Memorandum
of Understanding (“MOU”) between CCCS and the District if any, and /or the availability of services
which may be provided by outside vendors. If this assessment identifies that the student has
exceptional needs and requires special education and/or related services under the terms of applicable
special education law, CCCS will convene and conduct IEP team meetings .
Individualized Education Programs and Service Delivery
CCCS will plan and conduct the IEP team meetings and processes and will designate staffing and
other resources needed to implement the special education and related services called for by the IEP.
Student progress toward the goals specified in the IEP would be monitored regularly, and formally
reviewed by the IEP team on at least an annual basis. Resource specialists will help CCCS teachers
tailor their instruction to ensure that the needs of all students in Special Education are being met.
Curriculum may be adapted to meet the IEP in the following ways:
●
●
●
●
●

Students may be given an extra attempt on quizzes and tests.
Students may be able to review quiz questions only (not topic tests).
Students have access to enotes to use during quizzes and tests.
Students may have the text to speech option.
If they are in credit recovery, students may pass with a 60% not a 70% on the pretest.

Accommodations for students with IEPs and 504s may include:
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

Record all live sessions
Simplify/Clarify assignment and test instructions
Reset tests and quizzes
Extended time for the completion of assignments, tests and quizzes
Excuse redundant course assignments
Provide step by step breakdown of how to complete complex assignments
Allow resubmission of assignments, tests and quizzes to receive full credit
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●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

Use of notes during assignments, tests, quizzes and/or final exams
Use of a calculator during assignments, tests, quizzes and final exams
Shortening of assignments as long as content meets rubric guidelines
Provide study guides for final exams
Provide content or essay outlines, webbing strategies when appropriate
Provide organizational and instructional strategies when appropriate
Scaffolding
Concept mapping
Checklists
Multi-media access (video, audio, text)

Due Process
In the event of a due process claim to enforce provisions of applicable special education law, CCCS
is committed to working in cooperation with the District to the maximum extent permitted under law
to respond to and defend the Charter School and the District in the process.
CCCS will provide a rigorous curriculum for all students. CCCS understands that the school will
have the obligation to serve students with exceptional needs and that the school, pursuant to
applicable state and federal law, must ensure that all of its students have access to a free and
appropriate public education in the least restrictive environment.
CCCS intends to elect LEA status and work through Sonoma County Charter Special Education Plan
(SELPA) for the funding and provision of special education programs and services.
Section 504 /ADA
CCCS shall be solely responsible for its compliance with Section 504 and the ADA. All facilities of
CCCS shall be accessible for all students with disabilities in accordance with the ADA.
CCCS recognizes its legal responsibility to ensure that no qualified person with a disability shall, on
the basis of disability, be excluded from participation, be denied the benefits of, or otherwise be
subjected to discrimination under any program of CCCS. Any student who has an objectively
identified disability which substantially limits a major life activity such as learning is eligible for
accommodation by CCCS.
A 504 team will be assembled as needed by the Program Director and will include qualified persons
knowledgeable about the student, the meaning of the evaluation data, placement options and the legal
requirements for least restrictive environment.
The 504 team will review the student’s existing records, including academic, social and behavioral
records and is responsible for making a determination as to whether an evaluation for 504 services
is appropriate. If the student has already been evaluated under the IDEA, those evaluations may be
used to help determine eligibility under Section 504. The student evaluation will be carried out by
the 504 team who will evaluate the nature of the student’s disability and the impact upon the student’s
education.
This evaluation will include consideration of any behaviors that interfere with regular participation
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in the educational program and/or activities. The 504 team will consider the following information
in its evaluation:
a. Tests and other evaluation materials that have been validated for the specific purpose for
which they are used and are administered by trained personnel.
b. Tests and other evaluation materials including those tailored to assess specific areas of
educational need and not merely those which are designed to provide a single general
intelligence quotient.
c. Tests that are selected and administered so as to ensure that when a test is administered to
a student with impaired sensory, manual or speaking skills, the test results accurately
reflect the student’s aptitude or achievement level or whatever factor the test purports to
measure rather than reflecting the student’s impaired sensory, manual or speaking skills.
The final determination of whether the student will or will not be identified as a person with a
disability is made by the 504 team in writing and notice given in writing to the parent or guardian of
the student in their primary language along with the procedural safeguards available to them. If
during the evaluation, the 504 team obtains information indicating possible eligibility of the student
for special education per the IDEA, a referral for special education assessment will be made by the
504 team.
If the student is found by the 504 team to have a disability under Section 504, the 504 team will be
responsible for determining what, if any, accommodations are needed to ensure that the student
receives the free and appropriate public education (“FAPE”).
In developing the 504 Plan, the 504 team shall consider all relevant information utilized during the
evaluation of the student, drawing upon a variety of sources, including, but not limited to,
assessments conducted by the CCCS professional staff. The parents or guardians shall be invited to
participate in 504 team meetings where program modifications for the student will be determined
and they will be given an opportunity to examine in advance all relevant records. The 504 Plan shall
describe the Section 504 disability and any program modification that may be necessary. In
considering the 504 Plan, a student with a disability requiring program modification shall be placed
in the regular CCCS program along with those students who are not disabled to the extent appropriate
to the individual needs of the student with a disability.
All 504 team participants, parents, and guardians, teachers and any other participants in the student’s
education, including substitutes and tutors, must have a copy of each student’s 504 Plan. The CCCS
Director will ensure that teachers include 504 Plans with lesson plans for short- term substitutes and
that he/she review the 504 Plan with a long-term substitute. A copy of the 504 Plan shall be
maintained in the student’s file. Each student’s 504 Plan will be reviewed at least once per year to
determine the appropriateness of the Plan, continued eligibility or readiness to discontinue the 504
Plan.
Summary
CCCS shall comply with all applicable state and federal laws in serving students with disabilities
including but not limited to Section 504 in the Rehabilitation Act (“Section 504”), the Americans
with Disabilities Act (“ADA”) and the Individuals with Disabilities in Education Improvement Act
(“IDEA”).
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In coordination with the Sonoma County Charter Special Education Local Plan, CCCS intends to
function as an LEA for purposes of providing special education and related services under the IDEA
and in accordance with Education Code Section 47641(b).
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ELEMENT 2: MEASURABLE PUPIL OUTCOMES
Governing Law: The measurable pupil outcomes identified for use by the charter school. “Pupil
outcomes,” for purposes of this part, means the extent to which all pupils of the school demonstrate
that they have attained the skills, knowledge, and attitudes specified as goals in the school’s
educational program. Pupil outcomes shall include outcomes that address increases in pupil
academic achievement both school-wide and for all groups of pupils served by the charter school,
as that term is defined in subparagraph (B) of paragraph (3) of subdivision (a) of Section 47607.
The pupil outcomes shall align with the state priorities, as described in subdivision (d) of Section
52060, that apply for the grade levels served, or the nature of the program operated, by the charter
school.” – California Education Code Section 47605(b)(5)(B)
Local Control Accountability Plan (“LCAP”)
CCCS has produced a Local Control Accountability Plan (“LCAP”)/Annual Update using the LCAP
template adopted by the State Board of Education, see Exhibit G. CCCS shall annually update the
LCAP, including the goals and annual actions identified below. CCCS shall submit the LCAP to the
District and the County Superintendent of Schools on or before July 1 each year, as required by
Education Code Section 47604.33. The LCAP and any revisions necessary to implement the LCAP
shall not be considered a material revision to the charter and shall be maintained by CCCS at the
school site.
Measurable Pupil Outcomes
Whether students are low achieving, high achieving, special education, or require English language
development, a student’s progress toward expected outcomes depends on a continual monitoring of
individual student growth. CCCS will pursue the pupil outcomes, as measured by multiple and varied
benchmark assessments (as detailed below), that are aligned to state content standards, matched with
the state and federal accountability systems, and reflect proficiency measures required by the
CAASPP system.
The petitioners believe that both student performance metrics and school performance metrics are
indicators of how well students have developed the qualities and abilities we seek to instill. These
include high levels of engagement, and the ability to take charge of their own learning by taking
advantage of the program’s flexibility and diverse paths to content mastery.
The petitioners have therefore set frequent and measurable goals for both student and school
achievement, and the charter school will systematically track these metrics to gauge performance
and progress. The LCAP goals will include the following:
1. Raise student academic performance for students in K-12th grades:
a.

Maintain or increase grade level proficiency in core content areas for all students by
providing resources to allow them to access and master grade level California
Academic Standards. Core content areas refer to courses in English Language Arts
(ELA), math, history and science. A student is proficient when they perform at grade
level on formative as well as state assessments which include CAASPP and/or the
Smarter Balanced Assessment. CCCS utilizes a testing coordinator to ensure
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participation and compliance with all state mandated testing.
On June 27, 2018, the California Legislature enacted AB 1808 that offered direction to authorizing
boards in how to assess Measurable Pupil Outcomes (MPOs) for purposes of charter renewal
petitions. The standard is that authorizing boards shall consider the past performance of the charter
school's academics, finances, and operations in evaluating the likelihood of future success, along
with plans for improvement, if any. (Education Code 47607; 5 CCR 11966.4) In determining whether
to grant a charter renewal, however, the Board is required to consider increases in academic
achievement for all "numerically significant" groups of students served by the charter school, as
defined in Education Code 52052, as the most important factor. Academic performance at least equal
to the academic performance of the public schools that the charter school students would otherwise
have been required to attend as well as the academic performance of district schools, taking into
account the composition of the student population that is served at the charter school. In determining
whether the charter school satisfies this criterion, the Board shall base its decision on: (1)
Documented clear and convincing data; (2) Student achievement data from assessments,
including, but not limited to, the Standardized Testing and Reporting Program, for
demographically similar student populations in comparison schools (3) Information submitted
by the charter school (Education Code 47607).
The following student performance data reflects prior year performance and participation data for
CCCS, as well as comparisons to the MEUSD for reference, and which demonstrates that CCCS has
clearly met these tests established by the California Legislature:
Per the CAASPP Test Results Website: https://caaspp.cde.ca.gov/sb2018/Search
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In addition to this information, data from neighboring districts that the majority of CCCS students
could have otherwise attended also shows that CCCS has clearly met these academic standards.
Please see this supporting student performance data attached as Exhibit I.
b.

Subgroups:
i. Increase the percentage of students with disabilities that are considered
proficient in ELA/math CAASPP by 2% each year.
ii. Increase the percentage of unduplicated count students that are considered
proficient in ELA/math CAASPP by 2% each year.

Per the Smarter Balanced results website, CCCS offers the following data to support this renewal:
https://caaspp.cde.ca.gov/sb2018/ViewReport?ps=true&lstTestYear=2018&lstTestType=B&lstGroup=1&lstCounty=3
7&lstDistrict=68213-0129668&lstSchool=0129668

2. Maintain a high rate of ADA or increase ADA by 2% each school year until reaching 95%
or above.
County Collaborative Charter School Annual Enrollment and Average Daily Attendance
Explanation
The Second Principal attendance period, designated P-2, is the attendance count for all full
school months during the period from July 1 through the last school month that ends on or
before April of the fiscal year and is used by the California Department of Education to
calculate funding.
Average Daily Attendance (ADA) is a unit used to calculate revenue where one student can
generate a maximum of one ADA per school per year.
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2014-2015
County Collaborative Charter School (CCCS) began 2014-2015 with a combination of
Independent Study programs. For the first year, CCCS operated on a single-track calendar
that began during the Fall. The 207.87 ADA was produced by a total of 261 students
throughout the entire year. As a first-year school, CCCS wanted to focus on establishing the
programs before attempting to include multiple tracks.

2015-2016
There were many changes for CCCS during the second academic year. CCCS transitioned
from the homeschool program that began the previous year which temporarily lowered the
enrollment by 154 students. The school piloted multi-track instruction by adding a “Track
A” calendar which started in July. The newly enrolled students were from a small population
from the Mountain Empire Unified School District (MEUSD) but only produced a slight
portion of ADA reported. The 147 students enrolled produced 81.74 ADA.

2016-2017
The third academic year was the lowest ADA to enrollment ratio of only 27%. CCCS
improved the Track A participation in increasing by 84 students. However, 56 students left
that were previously enrolled on Fall track calendars. The 175 students enrolled produced
47.33 ADA.

2017-2018
Through vigorously developed marketing efforts and continuous improvement of the quality
of the programs, CCCS increased enrollment and ADA during the fourth year of operation.
CCCS was able to accept a large influx of students from another local school preparing for
closure. Since this occurred half way throughout the year, each student gained from the
transition was only able to produce a portion of one full ADA. All 635 students enrolled
during the entire academic year produced 223.74 ADA.

2018-2019
CCCS is expected to continue to grow from the previous year by an estimated 321.2 ADA.
As we move forward, we expect that our ADA will have fewer fluctuations and will increase
steadily with the collaboration of MEUSD allowing us to implement a multi-track calendar
and on-site JumpStart summer educational opportunity. Through our combined efforts, we
are confident that this increase in ADA will benefit the students and staff members, and
produce a steady stream of revenue over the next five years. Additionally, due to the
increased enrollment with programs and schools throughout “The Collaborative,” more
students can be placed into the CCCS Track A program, which will help support our
objective of increasing the ADA and revenue. All of this is designed to lead to better
collaboration with the District in meeting the educational needs of our mutual stakeholder
pupils, families, and communities.
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3. Increase graduation rate by 2% each year.
County Collaborative Charter School has a projected 32 seniors graduating in the 2018-2019
school year, 11 in January of 2019 and 21 that we anticipate for June 2019. Based on current
enrollment, this number places our graduation rate at approximately 80% for the 2018-2019
school year. This is a huge success, as we serve primarily credit deficient students who come
to us with less than half of the credits they should have earned when on track for graduation
on a four - year educational plan.
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In the 2019-2020 school year, County Collaborative Charter School will be applying for the
Dashboard for Alternative School Status (DASS). One important aspect to keep in mind is that
“credit deficient” student graduation rates should not be measured on a four-year graduation cohort.
The students we serve are students who typically have been unsuccessful in a conventional school
and typically do not graduate in four years. Although County Collaborative Charter School only
graduated 14% of students in the cohort expected graduation year of 2017-2018, 48% of these same
students were still enrolled which means they were CONTINUING to work toward their high school
diplomas.
Many CCCS students do not follow a traditional path and do not begin as 9th graders. Student grade
levels are classified by the first year that they enroll in high school, and therefore it’s not unusual to
have 5th or 6th year “seniors” who enroll with the credits of a 9th grader. Upon initial review, these
students would appear not to be graduating appropriately; however, these students are graduating,
but not on a traditional four-year cohort timeline. These are students who would have otherwise
been classified as “drop-outs.”
4. Strive for a low expulsion rate.
CCCS has never expelled a student and has a 0% expulsion rate.
Per
DataQuest:
https://dq.cde.ca.gov/dataquest/dqCensus/DisSuspRateLevels.aspx?year=201718&agglevel=District&cds=3768213

5. Clearly involve parents and community members in decision making at the program and
charter levels. Provide connections between the community and school so as to foster
investment in education and provide meaningful transparent communication with all
stakeholders. Ensure that parents, students and teachers feel that our charter school
program creates a safe, positive environment for our students to learn. CCCS utilizes parent
newsletters, LCAP parent surveys, parent-teacher conferences, and counselor involvement
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to ensure a high level of parental engagement. (See further supporting information in the
“Governance” section below.)
6. Ensure that secondary students are on-track to graduate from high school, are college and
career ready, and students experience academic progress and success. CCCS has a guidance
counselor who works with students and families to create post-secondary plans and monitor
student progress.
7. Ensure students have access to materials and/or learning experiences that are aligned to the
California Academic Standards and to a safe, secure and aesthetically pleasing learning
environment.
8. Maintain the appropriate assignment of teachers who are fully credentialed in the subject
areas of the pupils they are teaching.
High School Graduation Requirements
CCCS’s graduation requirements meet California Education Code requirements. CCCS has an
established "a-g" course list and the curriculum will meet or exceed UC/Cal State "a-g" course
requirement.
CCCS will configure its minimum course completion requirements and its credit award policy to be
consistent with California Law. CCCS will prescribe completion of the following, at a minimum:
•
•
•
•

•
•

Three courses in English (English I, II, III)
Two courses in Mathematics, with one year of Algebra I mandatory *
Two courses in Science including Biological and Physical Sciences
Three courses in Social Studies (including United States history and geography; world
history, culture, and geography; a one-semester course in American government and civics,
and a one-semester course in economics)
One course in Visual or Performing Arts or Foreign Language **
Two courses in Physical Education, unless the pupil has been exempted pursuant to
the provisions of Education Code Section 51241.

*At least one course of the mathematics requirement shall be fulfilled, pursuant to
Education Code Section 51224.5, by completion of Algebra I coursework.
**Students will be advised that for UC entrance, two years of Foreign Language are
required/ three recommended, plus one year of Visual and Performing Arts, and four years
of English.

Credit and Graduation Requirements
CCCS awards 5 credits per course, per semester and 210 credits are required to graduate. Students
are eligible for a diploma when all requirements have been met. Diploma requirements are as
follows:
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Courses for College Prep Path Credits

Courses for Non-College Prep Path

Required:

Required:

Credits

English

40

English

30

Mathematics

30

Mathematics

20

World History

10

World History

10

U.S. History

10

U.S. History

10

American Government

5

American Government

5

Economics

5

Economics

5

Life Science

10

Life Science

10

Physical Science

10

Physical Science

10

Foreign Language

10

Visual/Performing Arts or Foreign
Language

10

Visual/Performing Arts

10

Physical Education

20

Physical Education

20

Electives

50

Electives

80

Total Credits

210

Total Credits

210

CCCS will also deliver two unique dropout recovery programs and be entitled to Average Daily
Attendance for targeting at-risk, out of school, out of work students. The youth dropout recovery
program will be available to students between the ages of 16-19 who have dropped out of school
prior to achieving a high school diploma. The adult dropout recovery program will be available to
students between the ages of 18-25 who have dropped out of school prior to achieving a high school
diploma and who meet the eligibility requirements of WIOA, Job Corps, Youth-Build, and California
Conservation Corps. For students in both recovery programs, the required credits will be 130 to
graduate, in accordance with Education Code Section 51225.3.
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Required:

Credits

English

30

Mathematics

20

World History

10

U.S. History

10

American Government

5

Economics

5

Life Science

10

Physical Science

10

Visual/Performing Arts OR Foreign Language

10

Physical Education

20

Total Credits

130

Transferability of Courses
Transfer credits are awarded on a case-by-case basis. Official transcripts are required in order to
award credit. Transcript analysis may require research and contact with previous institutions to
determine eligibility of transfer credits. International records may require translation and/or
evaluation prior to being considered for transfer credits.
CCCS will inform parents upon enrolling that its courses are accredited by the Western Association
of Schools and Colleges (WASC) and may be considered transferable. Courses meeting the UC/CSU
"a-g" admissions criteria may be considered to meet college entrance requirements.
The CCCS high school guidance counselors meet with students and parents to provide updates on
their four-year educational plan and identify which courses will be transferable from CCCS to
another high school program or for post-secondary educational options.
School-Wide Goals
In addition to being accountable to the state accountability system, CCCS will pursue the
following school-wide goals:
•

Ensure students make progress on the pupil outcomes listed above and overall student and
school performance by monitoring the following:
1. Semester course completion rate
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2. Course pace rate
3. Student retention rate
4. Student graduation rate
•

Ensure student improvement on standardized tests, including the CAASPP, and other
appropriate school-based assessments, including increased achievement over time for
significant subgroups.

•

Strive for positive student satisfaction as a measure of school performance, including
satisfaction with CCCS’s program approach. Indicators of student satisfaction may include:
increased enrollment and continued enrollment, academic achievement and ability to meet
educational goals, and active engagement in the curriculum.
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ELEMENT 3: OUTCOME MEASUREMENT
Governing Law: The method by which pupil progress in meeting those pupil outcomes is measured.
– California Education Code Section 47605(b)(5)(C)
1) Methods of Assessment
CCCS, like other charter and non-charter public schools, will adhere to the tenets of the state
accountability system. Using testing data, CCCS will discern which numerically significant
subgroups are not achieving growth target goals. Students identified as needing support to achieve
proficient or advanced levels of achievement on standardized tests will receive additional
individualized assistance, and, where appropriate, tutoring, remedial instruction, and other intensive
interventions. Teachers have much discretion and, based on school policy and procedure, can adapt
assessments and assignments to meet the needs of individuals or school populations. Students
participate in both formative and summative assessments.
Academic performance is assessed through graded lesson assignments, unit and module assignments,
unit tests, course final exams, and annual statewide testing to include grade-specific CAASPP for all
students. Annual ELPAC assessment will be reviewed for designated EL students and annual
progress towards IEP goals will be analyzed and updated for students in Special Education.
Grades
Assignment grades and course averages can be accessed through the teacher. Feedback on
assignments can be accessed through in-person meetings, or virtually. Students with questions about
grades, averages, or course progress should contact the teacher. CCCS will use a traditional 4.0 scale
in determining Grade Point Average (GPA). College courses taken for high school credit may be
weighted and used on a 5.0 grading scale, if approval of the Program Director is granted prior to the
start of coursework. Transfer credits may be weighted if the courses meet the established CCCS
guidelines.
Both weighted and unweighted GPAs will be recorded on the transcript. K-8 and high school GPAs
are calculated separately. Percentage Grade for GPA:
90–100%
80–89%

A
B

4.0
3.0

70–79%

C

2.0

60–69%

D

1.0

0–59%

F

0.0

Credit is granted only for courses that earn a D, or 60% out of a possible 100%. All credits earned at
CCCS are transferable to other public high schools.
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Repeating a Course
Courses that may be repeated for credit will be listed in the course description (e.g. PE). Courses in
which grades of a D/F are earned may be repeated. The highest grade will be used in the GPA
calculation. UC only allows a course to be repeated one time for grade replacement.
Transfer Credits
Transfer credits are awarded on a case-by-case basis. Official transcripts are required in order to
award credit. Transcript analysis may require research and contact with previous institutions to
determine eligibility of transfer credits. International records may require translation and/or
evaluation prior to being considered for transfer credits.
Information regarding transferability of credits to other high schools and to meet eligibility of credits
to meet college entrance requirements will be shared with students during their meetings with the
teacher of record and counselor.
Transcripts
Official transcripts should be requested from the student's CCCS staff at least two weeks prior to
deadlines.
Grade Level
Elementary and Middle School students in K-8 are assigned a grade level based on the year of TK
or K entry. High School students are assigned a grade level based on the year of 9th grade entry.
Regardless of credit deficiency, students will be promoted to the next grade and given an opportunity
to remediate credits in hopes that the student will graduate with his or her cohort. In the event that a
student does not graduate with their cohort, CCCS will provide the student with an opportunity to
continue their education, as long as they are continuously enrolled in public school and making
satisfactory progress towards a diploma, per Education Code Section 47612(b).
2) Use and Reporting of Data
Collecting, Analyzing, and Utilizing Data
The school will continue to rely on the robust data collection and reporting abilities inherent in the
SIS interface. The web-based SIS stores comprehensive data about students, instructors, courses,
applications, and enrollments in a single database, enabling educators to quickly retrieve information
and create custom reports. All charter school faculty will have access to reports that detail students’
progress and challenges and can take advantage of a variety of automated interventions to help keep
students on track.
Another important feature of online platforms includes exam statistics tools that enable instructors
to evaluate and modify assessment design based on an analysis of student scores. The online
program’s faculty also uses these data-driven protocols to analyze performance, modify instructional
practices, and deploy interventions such as:
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●

Frequent feedback, ongoing assessment, and pace tracking that allows students, parents, and
Instructional Team members to constantly monitor performance and progress and
immediately see when adjustments/interventions are needed.

●

Team analysis and revisions/adjustments to curriculum and instruction based on student
needs through professional learning community groups using disaggregated data.

●

Multiple academic intervention strategies including continuous positive feedback, grade
checks, academic advisement conferences, and individualized pace recovery plans.

These data, mechanisms, and intervention procedures are then used by teachers to assess each
student’s needs and deploy appropriate modifications. Instructors adjust and enhance course content
with a variety of student assignments, projects, and assessments, each created to address different
learning styles, levels of challenge, or student needs.
As teachers deepen and broaden their understanding of each student’s knowledge and skill level,
they have a number of ways of adapting and shaping instruction to meet individual needs. Activities
and quizzes at the lesson level give teachers a surface understanding of student comfort with and
understanding of lesson material. Teacher-scored performance tasks at the unit and semester level
provide teachers with a deeper and clearer picture of student understanding and abilities.
Performance tasks are provided at a variety of ability and skill levels, to give students a number of
different ways of demonstrating their understanding.
Reporting Data to Stakeholders
Parents/guardians can receive updates on a daily basis by logging onto the student or parent
dashboard through the portal on the website as described earlier, or by contact with the teacher. The
dashboard gives them access to the gradebooks, lets them know about upcoming and past due
assignments, alerts them to upcoming quizzes and tests, displays current announcements and displays
all current class loads with a link to each class. All of this is on one page that has live links to
individual classes as well as the classroom tools described throughout this document.
Student scores on statewide assessments will be mailed to parents/guardians, along with interpretive
guidance from the school’s Assessment Coordinator, based on CDE guidance. Like other public
schools, CCCS’s annual performance will be shared with the community via the state’s school report
card system that reports academic performance, which is then published and freely available online
at the California Department of Education website.
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ELEMENT 4: GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE
Governing Law: The governance structure of the charter school, including, but not limited to, the
process to be followed by the charter school to ensure parental involvement – California Education
Code Section 47605(b)(5)(D)
The petitioners believe that establishing sound legal status and governance practices with clearly
delineated roles and responsibilities from the outset is essential to sustaining the program for longterm success. County Collaborative Charter School (CCCS) is a charter school operated by County
Collaborative Charter School (CCCS), a non-profit public benefit corporation, as provided in
Education Code Section 47604.
As a California nonprofit public benefit corporation, CCCS has received its full tax-exempt status
from the federal and California state governments, under the federal Internal Revenue Code Section
501(c)(3) and the companion California state tax laws and regulations. See Exhibits C, D, and E for
copies of the filed and approved Articles of Incorporation, the federal tax-exempt determination, and
the state tax-exempt determination.
CCCS will be governed by a set of mission-driven policies and procedures to help staff and
administrators perform their daily responsibilities with a focus on the Charter School’s mission. The
Charter School’s bylaws, adopted by the CCCS board of directors, will be the primary policy
document dictating board practice and operations. The bylaws will explicitly delineate the procedure
for election and appointment, removal and vacancy of CCCS board of directors’ members, and
policies and procedures for conducting board meetings and general board operations.
Governance Structure
CCCS’s governance responsibilities will primarily be divided between the board of directors and the
Charter School’s CEO. The CEO and faculty will carry out the day-to-day operations of the Charter
School, with the CEO having primary responsibility to conduct and manage the daily operations. The
CCCS board of directors will set policy, approve the budget, and assure that the school maintains
high academic standards. The CCCS board of directors shall have ultimate responsibility to oversee
the operation and activities of the Charter School.
The CCCS Board of Director’s major roles and responsibilities will include:
1. Establishing and approving all major educational and operational policies.
2. Approving all major contracts.
3. Approving the Charter School’s annual budget and overseeing the Charter School’s fiscal
affairs.
4. Hearing expulsion recommendations at scheduled CCCS board of directors’ meetings to
meet the 30-day timeframe for expulsion requirements.
5. Evaluating the Charter School’s CEO, who will be responsible for managing the day-to-day
operations of CCCS and implementing the policy direction of the board.
6. Developing annual goals for the Charter School and long-range plans with input from the
CEO, teachers, and parent advisory committee members.
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7. Receiving reports from, and providing recommendations to, the CEO and staff, parents and
students.
8. Assessing CCCS’ goals, objectives, academic achievements/student progress, financial
status, and any need for redirection.
9. Evaluating school and student performance.
The CCCS board of directors is responsible for the accountability requirements established by the
California Charter Schools Act of 1992 and the Charter itself. One of the CCCS board of directors’
primary responsibilities is to ensure that CCCS is meeting annual accountability targets. The CCCS
board of directors will routinely evaluate the academic, financial, and legal/compliance health of the
Charter School and update the District on its progress toward goals outlined in the Local Control
Accountability Plan (LCAP).
The CCCS board of directors’ objective is to develop an accountability plan (LCAP) that
demonstrates measurable annual progress toward meeting the Charter School’s high standards for
pupil success, and to oversee the implementation of that plan by the Charter School’s CEO.
Appointment Process for Board Members
The CCCS board of directors members are chosen using the following methodology, as further
defined in the CCCS’ bylaws. There will be nominations of candidates each spring for board
members’ seats whose terms are expiring. New candidates will submit a brief narrative statement
regarding their qualifications for a position on the CCCS board of directors that includes a description
of their expertise in matters pertaining to the charter school’s operations and their demonstrated
commitment to CCCS’ mission and targeted student population.
The then-seated CCCS board of directors will review candidates’ narrative statements and determine
the selection of representatives from the general community with an attempt to achieve the desired
commitment level and the mix of skills and expertise necessary to effectively govern the Charter
School. Then-seated CCCS board of directors’ members will vote to select new board members.
Pursuant to Education Code Section 47604(b), the District may appoint a representative to the Board
of Directors if it so desires.
Terms for Board Members
Filling Vacancies
Events Causing a Vacancy
A vacancy on the CCCS Board of Directors may occur for any of the following events:
1. The death of an incumbent (Government Code 1770)
2. The adjudication pursuant to a quo warranto proceeding declaring that an incumbent is
physically or mentally incapacitated due to disease, illness, or accident and that there is
reasonable cause to believe that the incumbent will not be able to perform the duties of
his/her office for the remainder of his/her term (Government Code 1770)
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3. A Board member's resignation (Government Code 1770): A vacancy resulting from
resignation occurs when the written resignation is filed with the Executive Director, except
where a deferred effective date is specified in the resignation so filed, in which case the
resignation shall become operative on that date. A Board member may not defer the effective
date of his/her resignation for more than 60 days. If the absence of the Board member for this
purpose exceeds six months, the Board may approve an additional six- month absence upon
a showing that there is a reasonable expectation that the member will return within the second
six-month period, and the Board may appoint an interim member to serve in his/her absence.
If two or more members of the Board are absent by reason of these circumstances, and those
absences result in the inability to establish a quorum at a regular meeting, the Board may
immediately appoint one or more interim members as necessary to enable the Board to
conduct business and discharge its responsibilities. The term of an interim member appointed
in these circumstances shall not extend beyond the return of the absent Board member or
beyond the next regularly scheduled election for that office, whichever occurs first.
4. A Board member's ceasing to discharge the duties of his/her office for the period of three
consecutive meetings.
5. A Board member's conviction of a felony or any offense involving a violation of
his/her official duties or conviction of a designated crime resulting in a forfeiture of
office (Government Code 1770, 3000-3003).
Timelines for Filling a Vacancy
When a vacancy occurs, the Board shall take the following action, as appropriate:
1. When a vacancy occurs longer than four months before the end of a Board member's term,
the Board shall, within 60 days of the date of the vacancy or the filing of the member's
deferred resignation, either order an election or make a provisional appointment, unless a
special election is mandated as described below (Education Code 5091).
2. When a vacancy occurs less than four months before the end of a Board member’s term,
the Board shall take no action (Education Code 5093).
When a vacancy occurs from six months to 130 days before a regularly scheduled Board election at
which the position is not scheduled to be filled, a special election to fill the position shall be
consolidated with the regular election. The person so elected shall take office at the first regularly
scheduled Board meeting following the certification of the election and shall serve only until the end
of the terms of the position which he/she was elected to fill (Education Code 5093).
Provisional Appointments
When authorized by law to make an appointment to fill a vacancy on the Board. The Board shall
select the appointee by a majority vote.
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Board Training and Sustainability
CCCS founders and board members are committed to continuous improvement and ongoing training
to assist the CCCS Board of Directors in fulfilling its responsibilities to act as stewards for the charter
school. To this end, the CCCS board will seek appropriate training and educational opportunities to
more effectively govern CCCS’ operations. Such training experiences may include individual
training sessions with legal counsel or other experts familiar with public school governance, and/or
training sessions with charter school governance experts. The Charter School will maintain in effect
general liability and board errors and omissions insurance policies.
Parental Involvement
CCCS believes that active student, parent, and employee participation in Charter School operations
and governance helps foster a public school’s long-term sustainability as a successful program.
CCCS will encourage parent involvement and will ensure that all faculty practice open
communication to enable every parent to take an active role in the academic progress of their enrolled
child as well as in the direction and governance of the Charter School. CCCS utilizes parent
newsletters, surveys, and parent/teacher conferences to seek feedback and encourage parental
involvement. Additionally, parents may meet with the CCCS counselor and staff at any time. CCCS
parental involvement outreach is directed toward the parents of those students under the age of 18.
In accordance with Education Code Section 47605(n), CCCS shall notify the parents and guardians
of applicants and enrolled students that parental involvement is not a requirement for acceptance to
or continued enrollment in the Charter School.
CCCS will establish an Advisory Board in the first year of renewal which would be chaired by
the CCCS CEO or designee, and may comprise of students, parents, certificated and classified
staff. The Advisory Board will play an important role in making CCCS a school responsive to
student, staff, and parents’ needs, and provide for continual improvement. The Advisory
Board will meet regularly and function to address and make recommendations to the CCCS
board of directors regarding specific areas of school operations. Those areas may include:
1. Curriculum/Instruction/Assessment
2. Mentoring/Internship Development
3. Extracurricular Programs/Activities
4. School Program Development
5. Fundraising and Development
The CCCS academic model requires frequent outreach to parents and easy accessibility to faculty.
Parents/guardians have at least monthly contact with their student’s academic team. Parents are
surveyed at least once a year to determine their satisfaction levels with the Charter School with
respect to open governance, curriculum, instructional design and delivery methods, achievement of
performance objectives, and other metrics that factor into the Charter School’s governance and
accountability. The CCCS counselor and teachers meet with each family to formulate a 4-year and
post-secondary plan, actively seeking parent involvement in this process.
These multiple reporting mechanisms, combined with the availability of faculty to parents during
and beyond normal business hours, are designed to keep parents apprised, informed, and involved.
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This puts parents in a position to influence school decisions affecting their child.
The forum for major CCCS school decisions will be public meetings of the Board of Directors. CCCS
will post all Board agendas on its website so parents will have the opportunity to share concerns and
provide written and oral testimony regarding decisions pending before the Board. CCCS will
encourage parents to form an association and if there is sufficient interest, can provide a bulletin
board on the school website to accommodate a Parent/Teacher Association-type entity.
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ELEMENT 5: EMPLOYEE QUALIFICATIONS
Governing Law: The qualifications to be met by individuals to be employed by the school. –
California Education Code Section 47605(b)(5)(E)
All administrators, faculty, and staff members to be employed by CCCS must possess the
qualifications, knowledge base, and experience essential to successfully fulfill their responsibilities.
CCCS will ensure that all required legal qualifications, including compliance with the requirements
of the Every Student Succeeds Act, are met for teachers, staff, paraprofessionals and other
administrative employees of the Charter School. Each certificated employee at the Charter School
will meet the state licensing requirements for the position that he/she holds. For all positions,
certificated and non-certificated, the employee, at minimum needs to satisfactorily meet the
performance specifications CCCS requires for the position, as outlined below, and must possess the
qualifications required to perform the essential functions of the position, as determined by the CCCS
board of directors and CEO.
Currently, all CCCS teachers are fully credentialed with the State of California, even those in “noncore, non-college preparatory courses.” This information is on file with CCCS and will be shared
with the District upon request.
Hiring Plan
CCCS seeks to hire a diverse faculty composed of highly effective teachers, and highly skilled
professionals who express an understanding of and support for our mission and student population.
We will achieve this goal by recruiting and compensating our faculty and staff based on their ability
to meet the needs of our program as outlined in our hiring and evaluation rubric. The rubric will
contain qualifications and criteria directly aligned to the qualities we believe are essential for
effective teaching and learning within the CCCS program, as outlined in Element I of this charter
petition.
The CEO will prepare and recommend to the CCCS board of directors for approval, salary and
benefit levels, working conditions and work year characteristics (e.g. length of year and day and
vacation policies) for all employees that will allow CCCS to attract and retain the caliber of
employees necessary for the Charter School’s success.
Employing a highly effective faculty and staff is critical to our program. The CCCS founding team
has extensive experience working with highly effective faculty. This charter petition has been signed
by a number of certificated teachers that we believe would be a good match for our program. In
addition to the signatories on our charter petition, CCCS will recruit certificated personnel from
regional and national graduate schools of education, professional publications, and through our
website.
In compliance with Education Code Section 51745.6, for independent study pupils 18 years of age
or less, CCCS maintains a fixed pupils-to-certificated ratio of no more than 25 to 1. CCCS currently
employs four full time credentialed teachers, and is hiring a fifth full time credentialed teacher as of
January 2019 due to anticipated growth. Based on a current enrollment of approximately 91 students,
our current ADA to FTE ratio is 22 to 1.
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Faculty and Staff Qualifications
CCCS has a highly specified set of qualities it will require of its teaching faculty. Pursuant to the
Every Student Succeeds Act, all teachers and paraprofessionals will meet applicable state
certification and licensure requirements. Teachers will continue to meet the following credentialing
requirements for employment as mandated by California Education Code Section 47605(l):
“Teachers in charter schools shall hold a Commission on Teacher Credentialing certificate,
permit, or other document equivalent to that which a teacher in other public schools would
be required to hold… It is the intent of the Legislature that charter schools be given flexibility
with regard to non-core, non-college preparatory courses.”
An instructor is responsible for implementing appropriate teaching and grading strategies that assist
each student in achieving his/her academic potential while also providing superior customer service
to all internal and external customers.
Typical activities may include:
● Assist CCCS staff with development of the annual strategic process for the respective
department.
● Grade student work as prescribed by CCCS’s grading policy, and provide feedback on graded
assignments, in which students are encouraged to be actively engaged in the learning process.
● Contribute to a climate where students are “actively engaged” in meaningful learning
experiences.
● Work with administration and other CCCS instructors to produce learning experiences suited
to the grade level and to the student developmental level that will enhance student
achievement.
● Communicate with students and families as prescribed by CCCS’s communication policy,
and update communications in communication log on a daily basis.
● Update student attendance day of and maintain records of student attendance.
● Use effective written communication skills with students on a regular basis.
● Model professional and ethical standards when dealing with students, parents and
community.
● Review contemporary educational literature to remain current with information related to job
responsibility.
● Respond promptly (within same day or 24 hours) when returning telephone calls and
replying to correspondence, emails, instant messages, and faxes.
● Meet established deadlines.
● Conform with and abide by CCCS’s work procedures and instructions, and CCCS regulations
and policies.
● Update announcements in courses weekly.
● Attend IEP meetings and complete necessary documentation.
● When requested, participate in student and parent/guardian conferences.
● Participate in committees and organizations as needed.
● Maintain effective and efficient records.
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● Maintain a daily product record of tasks completed, including communication with students
and grading.
● Implement curriculum using activities that contribute to a climate where students are actively
engaged in meaningful learning experiences and be available to assist students in- person or
via phone, email and instant message.
● Identify, select, and modify instructional resources to meet the need of students with varying
backgrounds, learning styles, and special needs.
● Communicate with stakeholders in a courteous, timely and professional manner.
● Approach situations with a student-centered attitude and flexibility that promotes student
success.
● Participate in Professional Development opportunities.
Administrative and Non-Instructional Staff
CCCS employs administrative and operational staff members who have demonstrated experience or
expertise in the issues and work tasks required of them. They are provided professional development
opportunities to ensure that they remain abreast of all relevant changes in laws appropriate for their
position within CCCS as outlined in the CCCS’s staffing plan and adopted personnel policies. See
Exhibit A for associated job descriptions and their requisite qualifications.
General Requirements, Hiring and Performance Review
Prior to employment and within thirty (30) days of hiring, each employee will submit to a criminal
background check as required by Education Code §44237. Prior to beginning work, all employees
will be required to undergo a criminal background check prior to hiring through a LiveScan
fingerprint process. These services will occur where the LiveScan service is offered, which may be
located at district, county or local college facilities. CCCS will adhere to California laws including
fingerprinting, drug testing, and prohibitions regarding the employment of persons who have been
convicted of a violent or serious felony.
All employees, and any volunteer who may have frequent or prolonged contact with students, must
undergo a risk assessment and/or be examined and determined to be free of active tuberculosis (TB)
within the period of 60 days prior to employment/service, or otherwise meet the requirements of
Education Code Section 49406. Employees must also furnish proof of documents establishing legal
employment status. The CEO and/or administrative designees will be responsible for monitoring and
maintaining documentation of medical and criminal investigation clearances, as required by
California and federal laws.
The CEO will have the authority to recruit and interview candidates and make hiring
recommendations to the CCCS board of directors for approval. The CEO and Program Director will
have the responsibility of evaluating the performance of the teaching and administrative staff on an
annual basis, and to review the results of the performance reviews with the CCCS board of directors.
The CCCS board of directors has the right, if it so chooses, to review these performance reviews
before they are delivered to the staff members.
The CEO, with input from the CCCS board of directors, will determine the criteria by which to judge
the performance of employees prior to conducting a formal performance review. These criteria will
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be tied directly to CCCS’s educational program goals and will utilize a performance review rubric.
The rubric will, among other criteria, be used to tie job reviews to relevant performance areas such
as delineated in individual job descriptions, Charter School and individual smart goals, and, in some
instances, student performance as measured by criteria listed earlier in this charter.
The CCCS board of directors will create the job and performance review of the CEO. The CEO’s
performance will be annually reviewed based on Charter School and student success as reflected in
a predefined set of performance criteria.
Professional Development for Instructional Staff
CCCS is committed to the ongoing improvement of its staff. Professional development conferences
(eg. CCSA, CSDC, ACSA) will be attended each year to keep up to date and be informed on current
educational trends. We hold virtual and face-to-face in person meetings to cover topics such as
Human Resources, Special Education, student achievement, legal trends and other educationally and
pertinent topics.
Our professional development program for new teachers is structured in three parts: onboarding, first
year induction (mentoring), and continuing education:
Onboarding
• Understanding the Independent Study experience
• Working within the Student Management System
• Communicating with students
• Understanding and using online and home school metrics
• Motivating students and meeting the special needs of students
• Monitoring and guiding student pacing
• Managing the protocols of Independent Study: student meetings, contact histories,
grading
• Technology tools for effective teaching
Mentoring
• During their first year, teachers are partnered with experienced educators.
• During their first year in teaching, teachers new to the profession may participate in the
Beginning Teacher Support and Assessment (BTSA) program.
Continuing Education
• Teachers are provided with opportunities to expand their knowledge of virtual instructional
strategies throughout the year by participating in synchronous professional development
programs.
• Teachers are surveyed to determine areas of need, and CCCS will provide programs to
meet the expressed needs.
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Individual Professional Development Plans
Additionally, all full-time staff members are required to develop annual goals that identify areas of
development that will lead to professional growth and improved instruction. This plan will be
developed in conjunction with the Program Director/immediate supervisor overseeing the
employee’s job review. Some areas of growth might include:
●
●
●
●

Serving on a recognized CCCS committee
Serving as a mentor for new Charter School staff
Presenting at a Charter School mini-professional development opportunity
Measurable implementation of selected best practices methodology that will be employed
to improve support for student success

CCCS will also allot monies every year to support individual professional development activities.
Requests for those funds should be submitted to the CEO.
Authority and Responsibility
The CEO and/or designee of CCCS is responsible for monitoring teacher credentials and
qualifications relative to their positions. While the Program Director is responsible for working with
each teacher in the development and management of an individualized professional development
plan, the CEO ensures that state mandates are appropriately enforced in all Charter School programs.
This work is further supported by the oversight of the CCCS Board of Directors.
Signatures
CCCS respectfully asks the MEUSD Board to please note that although signatures are not required
for renewal petitions per 5 CCR 11966.4(a)(2)(A), CCCS has offered them as Exhibit F as a
demonstration of the passion of staff in pursuit of CCCS’ mission and as part of CCCS’ intended
continued collaboration with the District in support of meeting stakeholder educational needs.
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ELEMENT 6: HEALTH & SAFETY POLICIES
Governing Law: The procedures that the charter school will follow to ensure the health and safety
of pupils and staff. These procedures shall include the requirement that each employee of the
charter school furnish the school record summary as described in Section 44237. — California
Education Code Section 47605(b)(5)(F)
Prior to commencing instruction, CCCS will adopt and implement a comprehensive set of health,
safety, and risk management policies. In general, health and safety matters will be dealt with in
accordance with these CCCS policies. These policies will be developed in consultation with the
Charter School’s insurance carriers and at a minimum will address the topics discussed below. These
policies and procedures will be incorporated as appropriate into the Charter School’s student and
staff handbooks and will be reviewed on an ongoing basis in the Charter School’s staff development
efforts and CCCS board of directors’ policies.
Immunizations and Criminal Background Checks
CCCS shall continue to comply with all applicable provisions of Education Code Section 44237,
including the requirement that as a condition of and prior to employment, each new employee not
possessing a valid California Teaching Credential must submit two sets of fingerprints to the
California Department of Justice for the purpose of obtaining a criminal record summary. CCCS will
adhere to prohibitions regarding the employment of persons who have been convicted of a violent or
serious felony. The Program Director or designees will be responsible for monitoring and
maintaining documentation of criminal investigation clearances, as required by California and
federal laws.
All employees, and any volunteer who may have frequent or prolonged contact with students, will
continue to be required to undergo a risk assessment and/or be examined and determined to be free
of active tuberculosis (TB) within the period of 60 days prior to employment/service, or otherwise
meet the requirements of Education Code Section 49406. Charter School shall maintain TB clearance
records and certificates on file.
CCCS shall continue to comply with all federal and state legal requirements, including but not limited
to the requirements of SB 277 (2015), related to student immunization, health examination, and
health screening, including but not limited to screening for vision, hearing, and scoliosis, to the same
extent as would be required if the students were attending a non-charter public school. CCCS shall
maintain student immunization, health examination, and health screening records on file.
CCCS will continue to comply with the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (“FERPA”), and
immunization forms and other pertinent medical and education records will be kept confidential by
the school administration. Parents are expected to ensure that their children obtain proper
immunizations prior to matriculating pursuant to Health and Safety Code Section 120325 et seq. The
school may exclude students from enrolling who are not properly immunized pursuant to Education
Code Section 48216. Those parents who are having difficulty obtaining immunizations for their
children will be provided information on where to get immunized in their community.
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Facilities Compliance
CCCS will operate as an Independent Study program, and will pursue a resource center or facility in
the MEUSD in accordance with Education Code Section 47605.1 and administrative facilities that
will comply with federal, state, and local building codes and requirements applicable to California
charter schools, including the Americans with Disabilities Act and other applicable fire, health, and
structural safety requirements, and will maintain on file records documenting such compliance.
CCCS will ensure that its offices will be housed in facilities that have received state Fire Marshal
approval and that have been evaluated by a qualified structural engineer who has determined the
facilities present no substantial seismic safety hazard. The Charter School will obtain all necessary
permits for these offices including a building and fire marshal inspection and/or a certificate of
occupancy.
Student Health
CCCS shall stock and maintain the required number and type of emergency epinephrine autoinjectors onsite and provide training to employee volunteers in the storage and use of the epinephrine
auto-injector as required by Education Code Section 49414 and Section 4119.2 of the Business and
Professions Code, as they may be amended from time to time. CCCS will have a policy establishing
the Charter School as a drug, alcohol, and tobacco free workplace.
Blood-Borne Pathogens
CCCS will implement policies relating to preventing contact with blood-borne pathogens. The CEO
shall ensure that CCCS meets state and federal standards for dealing with blood-borne pathogens and
other potentially infectious materials in the workplace. The CEO shall establish a written “Exposure
Control Plan” designed to protect employees from possible infection due to contact with blood-borne
viruses, including human immunodeficiency virus (HIV) and hepatitis B virus (HBV). Whenever
exposed to blood or other body fluids through injury or accident, students, and staff should follow
the latest medical protocol for disinfecting procedures.
Child Abuse Prevention and Reporting
CCCS will maintain detailed policies and procedures for the immediate reporting of suspected child
abuse, neglect, acts of violence, or other improprieties. Such policies will detail the role and
obligation of staff in the reporting of child abuse pursuant to Penal Code Section 11164 et seq. All
staff will be mandated child abuse reporters and will follow all applicable reporting laws, including
Penal Code Section 11166. CCCS shall provide all employees, and other persons working on behalf
of the Charter School who are mandated reporters, with annual training on child abuse detection and
reporting, which shall occur within the first six weeks of each school year, or within the first six
weeks of a person’s employment if employed after the beginning of the school year, in accordance
with the requirements of AB 1432 (2014).
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ELEMENT 7: RACIAL & ETHNIC BALANCE
Governing Law: The means by which the school will achieve a racial and ethnic balance among
its pupils that is reflective of the general population residing within the territorial jurisdiction of
the school district to which the charter petition is submitted. — California Education Code Section
47605 (b)(5)(G)
CCCS will actively recruit a diverse student population from within its legally prescribed service
area – MEUSD, San Diego County and its contiguous counties. Within that boundary, admission
will be open to any California resident, and all students will be considered for admission without
regard to race, ethnicity, national origin, gender, disability, or any other characteristic listed in
Education Code Section 220 (or association with an individual who has any of those characteristics).
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CCCS will implement a student recruitment strategy that will be represented by, but is not necessarily
limited to, a combination of the following elements or strategies to ensure a diverse student body and
a racial and ethnic balance among students that is reflective of MEUSD:
● An enrollment process that is scheduled and adopted to include a timeline that allows
for a broad-based recruiting and application process.
● Work with our website provider to target underrepresented populations.
● The development and distribution of promotional and informational material that
appeals to all of the various racial and ethnic groups represented in the Mountain
Empire Unified School District, including materials in languages other than English to
appeal to limited English proficient populations.
● Use of brochures, newsletters, TV/radio public service announcements, print and nonprint media for outreach communications.
● Collaboration with community-based organizations to support outreach efforts.
● Focused recruitment of groups that may be underrepresented among CCCS’s student
population, using brochures, public meetings, and door-to-door outreach.
Because we seek a targeted student population whose families may not be reachable by traditional
means, CCCS plans to utilize direct outreach strategies such as direct mailing and community home
meeting outreach efforts targeted in specific communities in the Mountain Empire Unified School
District.
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ELEMENT 8: ADMISSION REQUIREMENTS
Governing Law: Admission requirements, in accordance with:
1. A charter school shall admit all interested students, however, if interest exceeds the
school’s capacity, attendance shall be determined by a public random drawing.
a. Preference shall be extended to students currently attending the charter school and
students residing in the district except as provided in Section 47614.5;
b. Preference may be permitted by the chartering authority for siblings of admitted or
attending students, children of charter school teachers, staff and founders
identified in the initial charter; and
c. Priority order for any preferences:
i. shall be determined in the charter petition;
ii. shall be approved by the chartering authority at a public hearing;
iii. shall be consistent with federal law, the California Constitution, Education
Code Section 200;
iv. shall not result in limiting enrollment access for students with disabilities,
academically low achieving students, English Learners, neglected or
delinquent students, homeless or economically disadvantaged students,
foster youth, or students based on nationality, race, ethnicity, or sexual
orientation; and
v. shall not require mandatory parental volunteer hours as a criterion for
admission or continued enrollment; and
2. In the event of a random public drawing, the chartering authority shall make reasonable
efforts to accommodate the growth of the charter school and shall not take any action to
impede the charter school from expanding to meet enrollment demand.
– California Education Code Sections 47605(b)(5)(H) and 47605(d)(2)
CCCS seeks to enroll students committed to a rigorous educational experience. Families who
understand and value the Charter School’s mission and will commit to the Charter School’s
instructional and operational philosophy will be actively recruited. Prospective students and their
parents or guardians will be briefed regarding the Charter School’s instructional and operational
philosophy and will be informed of the Charter School’s student-related policies.
CCCS has no requirement for admission and will admit any child that wishes to attend in accord with
the representations contained in the Assurances herein. We do, however, have parent and student
commitment agreements, which all parents and students will be asked to sign when a student is
enrolled. In no instance will a student be refused admission nor subjected to any form of discipline
because of their parents’ failure to comply with the parent commitment agreement. In accordance
with Education Code Section 47605(n), CCCS shall notify the parents and guardians of applicants
and enrolled students that parental involvement is not a requirement for acceptance to or continued
enrollment in the Charter School.
Recruiting and Admissions Cycle
The Charter School will establish an annual recruiting and admissions cycle through the CCCS
website and/or distribution of brochures or pamphlets, which shall include a reasonable time for all
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of the following: (1) outreach and marketing, (2) orientation sessions for students and parents, an
admissions application period, (4) an admissions lottery, if necessary, and (5) enrollment. The school
may fill vacancies or openings that become available after this process using a waiting list created in
accordance with the admissions lottery procedures specified in this charter. Upon exhaustion of the
waiting list, the school will admit additional students at any time during the school year on an openended basis in order to best serve the needs of students.
Timeline for Recruiting and Enrollment
The Charter School will recruit and enroll students from areas they are legally allowed to recruit and
enroll from. In any year in which a random public drawing is not required because the number of
applications does not exceed the Charter School’s capacity, CCCS will implement an ongoing
admissions policy where students can enroll at any time during the course of the school year.
Applications for admission will be accessible through the CCCS website where an interest survey
can be filled out and submitted. An admissions clerk at CCCS will gather all interest surveys, contact
the submitters and the enrollment process will begin from there.
Lottery – Public Random Drawing
If the number of applications does not exceed the capacity of the charter school there will be no
lottery, and all students who submitted qualified applications will be enrolled. In the event that the
number of students seeking admission to any grade level exceeds capacity, a lottery will be held. It
will be completed by pulling slips of paper with applicants’ names on them out of a container, and
the drawing will be held in a public forum large enough to accommodate those who wish to attend.
All eligible names will be drawn from the container and those exceeding the number of available
spaces will be placed on a waiting list in the order drawn.
Pursuant to Education Code Section 47605(d)(2)(B), if the maximum number of slots in a particular
grade is reached, a public lottery is held in accordance with the procedures below. Once teacher
caseloads are full, a waiting list is created. Students that apply for enrollment after the open
enrollment period has ended are placed on the waiting list in the order that applications are received.
Once a child has been enrolled as a student at CCCS, they have the right to continue here until they
have completed the highest grade we offer. Students who are currently enrolled at CCCS must recommit for the following school year by the end of open enrollment by submitting an Intent to Enroll
Form or signing a Master Agreement.
Enrollment preferences as described in Education Code Section 47605(d)(2)(B) shall be given to the
following students applying to enroll:
1.
2.
3.

Current students and students who reside in the MEUSD boundaries (exempt
from the lottery);
Students who have siblings enrolled in the Charter School; and
Students who are the children of staff of the Charter School.

Admission will not be based on prior student performance or admission testing. Post matriculation,
various assessments may be administered to determine the student’s readiness for the grade of
entrance requirements or maintenance of said grade. These instruments aid in the development of
individualized learning plans for children. Children who are working below grade level or need a
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little extra help will be encouraged to attend programs such as Track A, after school classes, and
academic support classes, designed to remediate any academic deficiencies.
CCCS will be non-sectarian in its programs, admissions policies, employment practices, and all other
operations, shall not charge tuition, and shall not discriminate on the basis of race, ethnicity, national
origin, gender, disability, or any other characteristic listed in Education Code Section 220 (or
association with an individual who has any of those characteristics).
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ELEMENT 9: INDEPENDENT FINANCIAL AUDITS
Governing Law: The manner in which annual, independent financial audits shall be conducted,
which shall employ generally accepted accounting principles, and the manner in which audit
exceptions and deficiencies shall be resolved to the satisfaction of the chartering authority. —
California Education Code Section 47605(b)(5)(I)
The CCCS Board of Directors either directly, or through an audit committee it may form each fiscal
year, shall oversee selection of an independent auditor with educational finance experience and the
completion of an annual audit of the school's financial affairs. The audit will verify the accuracy of
the school's financial statements, attendance and enrollment, and accounting practices, and will
review the school's internal controls. The audit will be conducted in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and the selected auditor will have experience in education finance.
Please see Exhibit J for the year ending June 2017 financial audit report.
To the extent required under applicable federal law, the audit scope will be expanded to include items
and processes specified in any applicable Office of Management and Budget Circulars. The annual
audit will be completed and submitted to the requisite parties (MEUSD, the County Superintendent
of Schools, the Department of Education, and the State Controller’s Office) by December 15th of
each year. The Charter School's audit committee will review any audit exceptions or deficiencies and
report to the school's CCCS board of directors in a timely manner with recommendations on how to
resolve them. The CCCS board of directors will provide a written report to the MEUSD, and will
collaborate with the District by showing how any such exceptions or deficiencies will be resolved.
In addition to the annual audit discussed above, CCCS shall annually provide MEUSD with the
following financial reports pursuant to Education Code Section 47604.33:
● On or before July 1st, a preliminary budget. For a charter school in its first year of
operation, financial statements submitted with the charter petition pursuant to Education
Code 47605(g) will satisfy this requirement.
● On or before July 1st, an annual update required pursuant to Education Code Section
47606.5.
● On or before December 15th, a first interim financial report which reflects changes to the
final budget through October 31st.
● On or before March 15th, a second interim financial report which reflects changes to the
final budget through January 31st.
● On or before September 15th, a final unaudited financial report for the prior full fiscal year.
Performance Report
CCCS will compile and provide to the MEUSD a performance report, upon MEUSD request, with
a 60 days advance notice. This report may include the following data:
1. Summary data showing student progress toward the goals and outcomes specified in
Element 2 of this charter petition, as indicated by the assessment instruments and
techniques listed in Element 3 of this charter petition.
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2. An analysis of whether student performance is meeting the goals specified in Element 2 of
this charter petition. This data will be displayed on both a school-wide basis and
disaggregated by numerically significant pupil subgroups to the extent feasible without
compromising student confidentiality.
3. A summary and analysis of the Charter School's performance on state-mandated
assessments.
4. A summary of major decisions and policies established by the CCCS Board of Directors
during the school year.
5. Data on the level of parent involvement in the school's governance (and other aspects of
the school, if applicable) and summary data from an annual parent and student satisfaction
survey.
6. Data regarding the number of staff working for the charter school and their qualifications.
7. A copy of the Charter School's health and safety policies and/or a summary of any major
changes to those policies during the year.
8. Information demonstrating whether the Charter School implemented the means listed in
this charter petition to achieve a racially and ethnically balanced student population.
9. An overview of the Charter School's admissions practices during the year and data
regarding the numbers of students enrolled, the number on waiting lists, and the numbers
of students expelled and/or suspended.
10. Analyses of the effectiveness of the Charter School’s internal and external dispute
resolution mechanisms and data on the number and resolution of disputes and complaints.
11. Other information regarding the educational program and the administrative, legal, and
governance operations of the Charter School relative to compliance with the terms of the
charter generally.
12. Suspension and expulsion data.
CCCS and the MEUSD will jointly develop the content, evaluation criteria, timelines, and process
for the annual performance reports. CCCS and MEUSD will also jointly develop at a minimum, a
site visitation process and protocol to enable MEUSD to gather information needed to confirm the
Charter School's performance and compliance with the terms of this charter. CCCS and MEUSD
agree to work together to accomplish all tasks necessary to fully implement this charter, including
the submission of any necessary and duly prepared waiver requests to the State Board of Education.
MEUSD agrees to receive and review the annual fiscal and programmatic performance report as
specified in this section. Within sixty days of receipt, MEUSD will notify CCCS as to whether it
deems the Charter School to be making satisfactory progress toward the goals specified in the charter.
This notification will include the specific reasons for MEUSD's conclusions. If MEUSD concludes
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the Charter School is not making satisfactory progress, CCCS shall be provided with specifics
regarding areas of concern, and CCCS and MEUSD will work together in good faith to develop a
plan to address these areas of concern.
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ELEMENT 10: SUSPENSION/EXPULSION PROCESS
Governing Law: The procedures by which pupils can be suspended or expelled from the charter
school for disciplinary reasons or otherwise involuntarily removed from the charter school for any
reason. These procedures, at a minimum, shall include an explanation of how the charter school
will comply with federal and state constitutional procedural and substantive due process
requirements that is consistent with all of the following:
(i)
For suspensions of fewer than 10 days, provide oral or written notice of the charges
against the pupil and, if the pupil denies the charges, an explanation of the evidence
that supports the charges and an opportunity for the pupil to present his or her side of
the sto1y.
(ii)
For suspensions of 10 days or more and all other expulsions for disciplinary reasons,
both of the following:
(I)
Provide timely, written notice of the charges against the pupil and an explanation
of the pupil's basic rights.
(II)
Provide a hearing adjudicated by a neutral officer within a reasonable number of
days at which the pupil has a fair opportunity to present testimony, evidence, and
witnesses and confront and cross-examine adverse witnesses, and at which the
pupil has the right to bring legal counsel or an advocate.
(iii)
Contain a clear statement that no pupil shall be involuntarily removed by the charter
school for any reason unless the parent or guardian of the pupil has been provided
written notice of intent to remove the pupil no less than five schooldays before the
effective date of the action. The written notice shall be in the native language of the
pupil or the pupil's parent or guardian or, if the pupil is a foster child or youth or a
homeless child or youth, the pupil's educational rights holder, and shall inform him or
her of the right to initiate the procedures specified in clause (ii) before the effective
date of the action. If the pupil's parent, guardian, or educational rights holder initiates
the procedures specified in clause (ii), the pupil shall remain enrolled and shall not be
removed until the charter school issues a final decision. For purposes of this clause,
“involuntarily removed” includes disenrolled, dismissed, transferred, or terminated,
but does not include suspensions specified in clauses (i) and (ii). - California Education
Code Section 47605(b)(5)(J).
As indicated above, CCCS has never expelled a student and it has a 0% expulsion rate.
The CCCS Pupil Suspension and Expulsion Policy has been established in order to promote learning,
provide for the safety of students, staff, and visitors to CCCS and serve the best interests of students
and their parents or guardians. The establishment of this policy followed a review of procedures and
listed offenses applicable to students attending non-charter public schools. Compliance with the
procedures set forth in this section of this Charter shall be the only processes for CCCS to
involuntarily dismiss, remove or otherwise exclude a student who attends CCCS from further
attendance at CCCS for any reason, including but not limited to, disciplinary causes.
A student identified as an individual with disabilities or for whom CCCS has a basis of knowledge
of a suspected disability pursuant to the Individuals with Disabilities Education Improvement Act of
2004 ("IDEA") or who is qualified for services under Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973
("Section 504") is subject to the same grounds for suspension and expulsion and is accorded the same
due process procedures applicable to general education students except when federal and state law
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mandates additional or different procedures. CCCS will follow all applicable federal and state laws
including but not limited to the California.
Education Code, when imposing any form of discipline on a student identified as an individual with
disabilities or for whom CCCS has a basis of knowledge of a suspected disability or who is otherwise
qualified for such services or protections in according due process to such students.
When the Policy is violated, it may be necessary to suspend or expel a student from regular classroom
instruction. This policy shall serve as CCCS's policy and procedures for student suspension and
expulsion and it may be amended from time to time without the need to amend the charter so long
as the amendments comport with legal requirements. CCCS staff shall enforce disciplinary rules and
procedures fairly and consistently among all students. This Policy and its Procedures will be printed
and distributed as part of the Student Handbook and will clearly describe discipline expectations.
CCCS administration shall ensure that students and their parents/guardians are notified in writing
upon enrollment of all discipline policies and procedures. The notice shall state that this Policy and
Procedures are available on request.
Corporal punishment shall not be used as a disciplinary measure against any student. For purposes
of the Policy, corporal punishment does not include an employee's use of force that is reasonable and
necessary to protect the employee, students, staff or other persons or to prevent damage to school
property. Suspended or expelled students shall be excluded from all school and school-related
activities unless otherwise agreed during the period of suspension or expulsion.
Grounds for Suspension and Expulsion of Students
A student may be suspended or expelled for prohibited misconduct if the act is:
A. related to school activity;
B. related to school attendance occurring at CCCS or any other school; or
C. related to a Charter School sponsored event.
A student may be suspended or expelled for acts that are enumerated below and occur at any time
including but not limited to the following:
1) while on school grounds;
2) while going to or coming from school;
3) during the lunch period, whether on or off the school campus;
4) during, or while going to or coming from a school-sponsored activity.
Enumerated Offenses
CCCS wishes to preserve flexibility in the discipline process and pursue alternative discipline options
in lieu of suspension whenever possible. However, the Charter School may proceed with expulsion
of a student for any of the offenses included on the Discretionary list below committed at a charter
school site or at a charter school activity off school grounds unless otherwise stated.
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A.

Discretionary Suspension and Recommendation for Expulsion Offenses

Students may be suspended from school or recommended for expulsion for any of the following acts
when it is determined the pupil:
a)

b)
c)

d)

e)
f)
g)
h)

i)
j)
k)

l)
m)

n)

o)

Either:
1. Caused, attempted to cause, or threatened to cause physical injury to another
person.
2. Willfully used force or violence upon the person of another, except in self- defense.
3. Assault or battery (Penal Code section 240 and 242).
Possessed, sold, or otherwise furnished a firearm, knife, explosive, or other
dangerous object.
Unlawfully possessed, used, sold, or otherwise furnished, or been under the influence
of, a controlled substance listed in Chapter 2 (commencing with Section 11053) of
Division 10 of the Health and Safety Code, an alcoholic beverage, or an intoxicant of
any kind.
Unlawfully offered, arranged, or negotiated to sell a controlled substance listed in
Chapter 2 (commencing with Section 11053) of Division 10 of the Health and Safety
Code, an alcoholic beverage, or an intoxicant of any kind, and either sold, delivered, or
otherwise furnished to a person another liquid, substance, or material and represented
the liquid, substance, or material as a controlled substance, alcoholic beverage, or
intoxicant.
Committed or attempted to commit robbery or extortion.
Caused or attempted to cause damage to school property or private property.
Stole or attempted to steal school property or private property.
Possessed or used tobacco, or products containing tobacco or nicotine products,
including, but not limited to, cigarettes, cigars, miniature cigars, clove cigarettes,
smokeless tobacco, snuff, chew packets, and betel. However, this section does not
prohibit the use or possession by a pupil of his or her own prescription products.
Committed an obscene act or engaged in habitual profanity or vulgarity.
Unlawfully possessed or unlawfully offered, arranged, or negotiated to sell drug
paraphernalia, as defined in Section 11014.5 of the Health and Safety Code.
Disrupted school activities or otherwise willfully defied the valid authority of
supervisors, teachers, administrators, school officials, or other school personnel engaged
in the performance of their duties. A pupil enrolled in kindergarten or any of grades 1 to
3, inclusive, shall not be suspended for any of the acts enumerated in this subdivision,
and this subdivision shall not constitute grounds for a pupil enrolled in kindergarten or
any of grades 1 to 12, inclusive, to be recommended for expulsion.
Knowingly received stolen school property or private property.
Possessed an imitation firearm. As used in this section, "imitation firearm" means a
replica of a firearm that is so substantially similar in physical properties to an existing
firearm as to lead a reasonable person to conclude that the replica is a firearm.
Committed or attempted to commit a sexual assault as defined in Section 261, 266c,
286, 288, 288a, or 289 of the Penal Code or committed a sexual battery as defined in
Section 243.4 of the Penal Code.
Harassed, threatened, or intimidated a pupil who is a complaining witness or a witness
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p)
q)

r)

in a school disciplinary proceeding for purposes of either preventing that pupil from
being a witness or retaliating against that pupil for being a witness, or both.
Unlawfully offered, arranged to sell, negotiated to sell, or sold the prescription drug
Soma.
Engaged in, or attempted to engage in, hazing. For purposes of this subdivision,
"hazing" means a method of initiation or preinitiation into a pupil organization or body,
whether or not the organization or body is officially recognized by an educational
institution, that is likely to cause serious bodily injury or personal degradation or
disgrace resulting in physical or mental harm to a former, current, or prospective pupil.
For purposes of this subdivision, "hazing" does not include
athletic events or school-sanctioned events.
Engaged in an act of bullying, including, but not limited to, bullying committed by
means of an electronic act.
i) "Bullying" means any severe or pervasive physical or verbal act or conduct,
including communications made in writing or by means of an electronic act, and
including one or more acts committed by a student or group of students which would
be deemed hate violence or harassment, threats, or intimidation, which are directed
toward one or more students that has or can be reasonably predicted to have the effect
of one or more of the following:
(1) Placing a reasonable student (defined as a student, including, but is not
limited to, a student with exceptional needs, who exercises average care, skill,
and judgment in conduct for a person of his or her age, or for a person of his or
her age with exceptional needs) or students in fear of harm to that student's or
those students' person or property.
(2) Causing a reasonable student to experience a substantially detrimental
effect on his or her physical or mental health.
(3) Causing a reasonable student to experience substantial interference
with his or her academic performance.
(4) Causing a reasonable student to experience substantial interference
with his or her ability to participate in or benefit from the services,
activities, or privileges provided by CCCS.
ii) "Electronic Act" means the creation or transmission originated on or off the school
site, by means of an electronic device, including, but not limited to, a telephone,
wireless telephone, or other wireless communication device, computer, or pager, of a
communication, including, but not limited to, any of the following:
(l) A message, text, sound, video, or image.
(2) A post on a social network Internet Web site including, but not limited to:
(a) Posting to or creating a burn page. A "burn page" means an Internet
Web site created for the purpose of having one or more of the effects as
listed in subparagraph (1) above.
(b) Creating a credible impersonation of another actual pupil for the
purpose of having one or more of the effects listed in subparagraph (1) above.
"Credible impersonation" means to knowingly and without consent
impersonate a pupil for the purpose of bullying the pupil and such that another
pupil would reasonably believe, or has reasonably believed, that the pupil was
or is the pupil who was impersonated.
(c) Creating a false profile for the purpose of having one or more of the
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effects listed in subparagraph (I) above. "False profile" means a profile of a
fictitious pupil or a profile using the likeness or attributes of an actual pupil
other than the pupil who created the false profile.
iii) An act of cyber sexual bullying.
(1) For purposes of this clause, "cyber sexual bullying" means the dissemination
of, or the solicitation or incitement to disseminate, a photograph or other visual
recording by a pupil to another pupil or to school personnel by means of an
electronic act that has or can be reasonably predicted to have one or more of the
effects described in subparagraphs (i) to (iv), inclusive, of paragraph (1). A
photograph or other visual recording, as described above, shall include the
depiction of a nude, semi-nude, or sexually explicit photograph or other visual
recording of a minor where the minor is identifiable from the photograph, visual
recording, or other electronic act.
(2) For purposes of this clause, "cyber sexual bullying" does not include a
depiction, portrayal, or image that has any serious literary, artistic, educational,
political, or scientific value or that involves athletic events or schoolsanctioned activities.
iv) Notwithstanding the above, an electronic act shall not constitute pervasive
conduct solely on the basis that it has been transmitted on the Internet or is
currently posted on the Internet.
v) "Reasonable pupil" for purposes of this subsection means a pupil, including, but
not limited to, an exceptional needs pupil, who exercises average care, skill, and
judgment in conduct for a person of his or her age, or for a person of his or her age
with his or her exceptional needs.
s) A pupil who aids or abets, as defined in Section 31 of the Penal Code, the infliction or
attempted infliction of physical injury to another person may be subject to suspension,
but not expulsion, pursuant to this section, except that a pupil who has been adjudged by
a juvenile court to have committed, as an aider and abettor, a crime of physical violence
in which the victim suffered great bodily injury or serious bodily injury shall be subject
to discipline pursuant to subdivision (a).
t) As used in this section, "school property" includes, but is not limited to, electronic files
and databases.
u) For a pupil subject to discipline under this section, the Program Director may use his or
her discretion to provide alternatives to suspension or expulsion that are age appropriate
and designed to address and correct the pupil's specific misbehavior.
v) In addition to the reasons specified above, a pupil may be suspended from school or
recommended for expulsion from school if the Program Director or Designee determines
that the pupil has committed sexual harassment as defined in Ed. Code section 212.5. For
the purposes of this section, the conduct described in Section 212.5 must be considered
by a reasonable person of the same gender as the victim to be sufficiently severe or
pervasive to have a negative impact upon the individual's academic performance or to
create an intimidating, hostile, or offensive educational environment. This section shall
not apply to pupils enrolled in kindergarten and grades 1 to 3, inclusive.
w) In addition to the reasons set forth above, a pupil in any of grades 4 to 12, inclusive, may
be suspended from school or recommended for expulsion from school if the Program
Director or Designee determines that the pupil bas caused, attempted to cause, threatened
to cause, or participated in an act of, hate violence, as defined in subdivision (e) of
Education Code section 233.
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x) In addition to the grounds specified above, a pupil enrolled in any of grades 4 to 12,
inclusive, may be suspended from school or recommended for expulsion from school if
the Program Director or Designee determines that the pupil has intentionally engaged in
harassment, threats, or intimidation, directed against school personnel or pupils, that is
sufficiently severe or pervasive to have the actual and reasonably expected effect of
materially disrupting classwork, creating substantial disorder, and invading the rights of
either school personnel or pupils by creating an intimidating or hostile educational
environment.
y) In addition to the grounds specified above, a pupil may be suspended from school or
recommended for expulsion if the superintendent or the principal of the school in
which the pupil is enrolled determines that the pupil has made terroristic threats
against school officials or school property, or both.
1)
For the purposes of this section, "terroristic threat" shall include any
statement, whether written or oral, by a person who willfully threatens to commit a
crime which will result in death, great bodily injury to another person, or property
damage in excess of one thousand dollars ($1,000), with the specific intent that the
statement is to be taken as a threat, even if there is no intent of actually carrying it
out, which, on its face and under the circumstances in which it is made, is so
unequivocal , unconditional , immediate, and specific as to convey to the person
threatened, a gravity of purpose and an immediate prospect of execution of the
threat, and thereby causes that person reasonably to be in sustained fear for his or
her own safety or for his or her immediate family's safety, or for the protection of
school district property, or the personal property of the person threatened or his or
her immediate family.
z) Causing serious physical injury to another person, except in self-defense.
aa) Assault or battery, as defined in Sections 240 and 242 of the Penal Code,
upon any school employee.
2. Immediate Suspension and Mandatory Recommendation for Expulsion Offenses
1) Possessing, selling, or furnishing a firearm, as defined below. E.C. 48915(c)(l)
2) Brandishing a knife1 at another person. E.C. 48915(c)(2)
3) Unlawfully selling a controlled selling a controlled substance listed in Health and
Safety Code section 11053 et seq. E.C. 48915(c)(3)
4) Committing or attempting to commit a sexual assault or committing a sexual battery,
as defined in the enumerated offenses above. E.C. 48915(c)(4)
5) Possession of an explosive2. E.C. 48915(c)(5)

_____________________________________________________________________
1

As used in this section, "knife" means any dirk, dagger, or other weapon with a fixed, sharpened blade fitted
primarily for stabbing, a weapon with a blade fitted primarily for stabbing, a weapon with a blade longer than 31/2 inches, a folding
knife with a blade that locks into place, or a razor with an unguarded blade.
2
As used in this section, the term "explosive" means "destructive device" as described in Section 921 of Title 18 of the United
States Code.
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C.

Suspension Procedure
The following suspension procedures shall be followed:
1. Suspensions for violations of the offenses listed in the "Discretionary Suspension and
Recommendation for Expulsion Offenses" stated herein shall be for no more than five
consecutive days.
2. The total number of days for which a pupil may be suspended from school shall not
exceed twenty (20) schooldays.
Suspensions shall be initiated according to the following procedures:
1. Conference

Suspension shall be preceded by an informal conference conducted by the Program Director or
Designee with the student and, whenever practical, his or her parent and the teacher, supervisor or
CCCS employee who referred the student to the Program Director or Designee. For suspensions of
fewer than 10 days, the charter school shall provide oral or written notice of the charges against the
pupil and, if the pupil denies the charges, an explanation of the evidence that supports the charges
and an opportunity for the pupil to present his or her side of the story.
At the conference, the pupil shall be informed of the reason for the disciplinary action and the
evidence against him or her and shall be given the opportunity to present his or her version and
evidence in his or her defense. Notice and the opportunity for the student to respond shall be provided
before the suspension begins. The conference may be delayed only if the Program Director or
Designee determines that an emergency situation exists. An "emergency situation" is one that
presents a clear and present danger to the lives, safety, or health of students or Charter School
personnel. If a student is suspended without this conference, both the parent/guardian and student
shall be notified of the student's right to return to school for the purpose of a conference. In the event
the conference is delayed due to an emergency, the conference shall be held within (2) two school
days unless the pupil waives this right or is physically unable to attend for any reason including, but
not limited to, incarceration or hospitalization. No penalties may be imposed on a pupil for failure of
the pupil's parent or guardian to attend a conference with CCCS officials. Reinstatement of the
suspended pupil shall not be contingent upon attendance by the pupil's parent or guardian at the
conference.
For suspensions of 10 days or more, CCCS shall do both of the following:
a) Provide timely written notice of the charges against the pupil and an explanation of the
pupil’s basic rights. The notice shall contain a clear statement that no pupil shall be
involuntarily removed by CCCS for any reason unless the parent or guardian of the pupil
has been provided written notice of intent to remove the pupil no less than five (5) school
days before the effective date of the action. The written notice shall be in the native
language of the pupil or the pupil’s parent or guardian or, if the pupil is a foster child or
youth or a homeless child or youth, the pupil's educational rights holder, and shall inform
him or her of the right to initiate the expulsion hearing procedures before the effective date
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of the action. If the pupil's parent, guardian, or educational rights holder initiates the hearing
procedures, the pupil shall remain enrolled and shall not be removed until CCCS issues a
final decision on the matter. For purposes of this clause, “involuntarily removed” includes
disenrolled, dismissed, transferred, or terminated, but does not include suspensions for
fewer than 10 days.
b) Provide a hearing adjudicated by a neutral officer within a reasonable number of days at
which the pupil has a fair opportunity to present testimony, evidence, and witnesses and
confront and cross-examine adverse witnesses, and at which the pupil has the right to bring
legal counsel or an advocate.

2. Notice to Parents/Guardians
At the time of the suspension, an administrator or Designee shall make a reasonable effort to contact
the parent/guardian by telephone or in person. Whenever a student is suspended, the parent/guardian
shall be notified in writing of the suspension and the date and time the student may return to school
following suspension. This notice shall state the specific offense committed by the student. If Charter
School officials wish to ask the parent/guardian to confer regarding matters pertinent to the
suspension, the notice may request that the parent/guardian respond to such requests without delay.

3. Suspension Time Limits/Recommendation for Expulsion
Upon a recommendation of Expulsion by the Program Director or Designee, the pupil and the pupil's
guardian or representative will be invited to a conference to determine if the suspension for the pupil
should be extended pending an expulsion hearing. This determination will be made by the Program
Director or Designee upon either of the following: 1) the pupil's presence will be disruptive to the
education process; or 2) the pupil poses a threat or danger to others. Upon either determination, the
pupil's suspension will be extended pending the results of an expulsion hearing. However, if the
student’s parent or guardian initiates the expulsion hearing process, as indicated above, the student
must remain enrolled and may not be removed until a final decision is issued by CCCS.
D. Expulsion Procedures

Students will be recommended for expulsion after the Program Director or Designee conducts
an investigation process by gathering written statements, meeting with witnesses, and
conducting a pre-expulsion conference with the student and family. For acts included on the
mandatory recommendation for expulsion list, the Program Director or Designee will
automatically issue an expulsion if the evidence indicates that the student engaged in conduct
included on the mandatory recommendation for expulsion list. Where a student has been
charged with an offense on the list of discretionary expulsion offenses, a recommendation for
expulsion by the Program Director or Designee will be based on one or both of the following
findings:
1. Other means of conduct support and correction are not feasible and have
repeatedly failed to bring about an improvement in conduct.
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2. Due to the nature of the violation, the presence of the student causes a continuing
danger to the health and/or safety of the student, other students in the schools, and/or
faculty.
Upon this determination, the student will be suspended, pending the results of an expulsion hearing.
The Program Director's or Designee's recommendation to expel the student will satisfy all the
procedural requirements stated herein.
E. Expulsion Hearing - Rules and Regulations

For any recommendation of expulsion, CCCS shall do both of the following:
a) Provide timely written notice of the charges against the pupil and an explanation of
the pupil’s basic rights. The notice shall contain a clear statement that no pupil shall be
involuntarily removed by CCCS for any reason unless the parent or guardian of the pupil
has been provided written notice of intent to remove the pupil no less than five (5) school
days before the effective date of the action. The written notice shall be in the native
language of the pupil or the pupil’s parent or guardian or, if the pupil is a foster child or
youth or a homeless child or youth, the pupil's educational rights holder, and shall inform
him or her of the right to initiate the expulsion hearing procedures before the effective
date of the action. If the pupil's parent, guardian, or educational rights holder initiates
the hearing procedures, the pupil shall remain enrolled and shall not be removed until
CCCS issues a final decision on the matter. For purposes of this clause, “involuntarily
removed” includes disenrolled, dismissed, transferred, or terminated.
b) Provide a hearing adjudicated by a neutral officer within a reasonable number of days
at which the pupil has a fair opportunity to present testimony, evidence, and witnesses
and confront and cross-examine adverse witnesses, and at which the pupil has the right
to bring legal counsel or an advocate.
The hearing will be presided over by an administrative panel (three to five impartial individuals)
appointed by the Program Director. A document will be prepared by the Program Director or
Designee that includes a full description of the reasons for the expulsion, including dates, previous
conferences and actions taken, and events.
CCCS's Board of Directors shall establish rules and regulations CCCS governing procedures for the
expulsion of pupils. These procedures shall include, but are not necessarily limited to, all of the
following:
1. The pupil shall be entitled to a hearing to determine whether the pupil should be expelled.
An expulsion hearing shall be held within 30 school days after the date the principal
determines that the pupil has committed any of the acts enumerated herein, unless the
pupil requests, in writing, that the hearing be postponed. The adopted rules and regulations
shall specify that the pupil is entitled to at least one postponement of an expulsion hearing,
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for a period of not more than 30 calendar days. Any additional postponement may be
granted at the discretion of the principal. The administrative panel shall make its decision
to expel within 3 school days after the hearing's conclusion.
2. If compliance by the administrative panel with the time requirements for the conducting
of an expulsion hearing and a decision to expel is impracticable during the regular school
year, the principal or the principal's designee may, with the consent of the student or the
student’s parent or guardian, extend the time period for the holding of the expulsion
hearing for an additional five schooldays. Upon the commencement of the hearing, all
matters shall be pursued and conducted with reasonable diligence and shall be concluded
without any unnecessary delay.
2.1. Written notice of the hearing shall be forwarded to the pupil at least 10 calendar
days before the date of the hearing. The notice shall include all of the following:
2.2.The date and place of the hearing.
2.3.A statement of the specific facts and charges upon which the proposed expulsion is
based.
2.4.A copy of the disciplinary rules of the school that relate to the alleged
violation.
2.5.A notice of the parent, guardian, or pupil’s obligations pursuant to Ed. Code section
48915.1(b).
2.6.Notice of the opportunity for the pupil or the pupil’s parent or guardian to appear in
person or to be represented by legal counsel or by a non-attorney adviser, to inspect
and obtain copies of all documents to be used at the hearing, to confront and question
all witnesses who testify at the hearing, to question all other evidence presented, and
to present oral and documentary evidence on the pupil's behalf, including witnesses.
In a hearing in which a pupil is alleged to have committed or attempted to commit a
sexual assault as specified in subdivision (n) of Section 48900 or to have committed
a sexual battery as defined in subdivision (n) of Section 48900, a complaining
witness shall be given five days' notice before being called to testify, and shall be
entitled to have up to two adult support persons, including, but not limited to, a
parent, guardian, or legal counsel, present during his or her testimony. Before a
complaining witness testifies, support persons shall be admonished that the hearing
is confidential. This subdivision shall not preclude the person presiding over an
expulsion hearing from removing a support person whom the presiding person finds
is disrupting the hearing. If one or both of the support persons is also a witness, the
provisions of Section 868.5 of the Penal Code shall be followed for the hearing. This
section does not require a pupil or the pupil's parent or guardian to be represented by
legal counsel or by a non-attorney adviser at the hearing.
For purposes of this section, "legal counsel" means an attorney or lawyer who is admitted to the
practice of law in California and is an active member of the State Bar of California.
For purposes of this section, "non-attorney adviser" means an individual who is not an attorney or
lawyer, but who is familiar with the facts of the case and has been selected by the pupil or pupil's
parent or guardian to provide assistance at the hearing.
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3. The administrative panel shall conduct a hearing to consider the expulsion of a pupil in a
session closed to the public, unless the pupil requests, in writing, at least five days before the
date of the hearing, that the hearing be conducted at a public meeting. Regardless of whether
the expulsion hearing is conducted in a closed or public session, the administrative panel may
meet in closed session for the purpose of deliberating and determining whether the pupil
should be expelled. Due to the requirement to conduct closed session deliberations and the
Brown Act public meeting requirements with which CCCS has voluntarily agreed to comply,
the administrative panel for an expulsion hearing shall not include more than one member of
the Charter School board of directors.
3.1. If the administrative panel admits any other person to a closed deliberation
session, the parent or guardian of the pupil, the pupil, and the counsel of the pupil also
shall be allowed to attend the closed deliberations.
3.2. If the hearing is to be conducted at a public meeting, and there is a charge of
committing or attempting to commit a sexual assault as defined in subdivision (n) of
Ed. Code section 48900 or to commit a sexual battery as defined in subdivision (n) of
Ed. Code section 48900, a complaining witness shall have the right to have his or her
testimony heard in a session closed to the public when testifying at a public meeting
would threaten serious psychological harm to the complaining witness and there are no
alternative procedures to avoid the threatened harm, including, but not limited to,
videotaped deposition or contemporaneous examination in another place
communicated to the hearing room by means of closed-circuit television.
4. If the administrative panel decides not to expel, the expulsion proceedings shall be
terminated, and the pupil immediately shall be reinstated and permitted to return to the
classroom instructional program from which the expulsion referral was made. The decision not
to recommend expulsion shall be final.
5. If the administrative panel determines to expel, findings of fact in support of the
recommendation shall be prepared. All findings of fact and recommendations shall be based
solely on the evidence adduced at the hearing.
6. The decision of the administrative panel to expel a pupil shall be based upon substantial
evidence relevant to the charges adduced at the expulsion hearing or hearings. The
administrative panel may, upon a finding that good cause exists, determine that the disclosure
of either the identity of a witness or the testimony of that witness at the hearing, or both, would
subject the witness to an unreasonable risk of psychological or physical harm. Upon this
determination, the testimony of the witness may be presented at the hearing in the form of
sworn declarations that shall be examined only by the administrative panel. Copies of these
sworn declarations, edited to delete the name and identity of the witness, shall be made
available to the student recommended for expulsion and his or her representative.
7. A record of the hearing shall be made. The record may be maintained by any means,
including electronic recording, so long as a reasonably accurate and complete written
transcription of the proceedings can be made.
68

8. Technical rules of evidence shall not apply to the hearing, but relevant evidence may be
admitted and given probative effect only if it is the kind of evidence upon which reasonable
persons are accustomed to rely in the conduct of serious affairs. A decision of the administrative
panel to expel shall be supported by substantial evidence showing that the pupil committed any
of the acts enumerated in this policy.
9. In hearings that include an allegation of committing or attempting to commit a sexual assault
as defined in subdivision (n) of Ed. Code section 48900 or to commit a sexual battery as defined
in subdivision (n) of Ed. Code section 48900, evidence of specific instances, of a complaining
witness's prior sexual conduct is to be presumed inadmissible and shall not be heard absent a
determination by the person conducting the hearing that extraordinary circumstances exist
requiring the evidence be heard. Before the person conducting the hearing makes the
determination on whether extraordinary circumstances exist requiring that specific instances of
a complaining witness's prior sexual conduct be heard, the complaining witness shall be
provided notice and an opportunity to present opposition to the introduction of the evidence.
In the hearing on the admissibility of the evidence, the complaining witness shall be entitled to
be represented by a parent, guardian, legal counsel, or other support person. Reputation or
opinion evidence regarding the sexual behavior of the complaining witness is not admissible
for any purpose.
10. Final action to expel a pupil shall be taken only by the administrative panel in a public
session. Written notice of any decision to expel or to suspend the enforcement of an expulsion
order during a period of probation shall be sent by the principal or his or her designee to the
pupil or the pupil's parent or guardian.
11. The CCCS board of directors of CCCS shall maintain a record of each expulsion, including
the cause for the expulsion. Records of expulsions shall be non-privileged, disclosable public
records.
11.1. The expulsion order and the causes for the expulsion shall be recorded in the pupil's
mandatory interim record and shall be forwarded to any school in which the pupil
subsequently enrolls upon receipt of a request from the admitting school for the
pupil's school records.
F. Decision of the Panel

The final decision by the administrative panel will be made within 3 school days following the
conclusion of the hearing.
The administrative panel will make one of two determinations:
1. Uphold the expulsion.
2. Determine the expulsion was not within CCCS's guidelines and overturn it.
Following the final decision of the administrative panel, the administrative panel will send written
Findings of Fact to the parent that contain the following information:
1. The outcome of the hearing and the decision of the administrative panel
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2. The specific offenses committed by the student for any of the acts listed in the above
"Reasons for Suspension and/or Expulsion" section (if expulsion is decided)
3. Notification of the family's responsibility to inform any new district in which the
student seeks to enroll of the student's status with CCCS (if expulsion is decided)
4. Reinstatement eligibility review date (if expulsion is decided)
5. A copy of the rehabilitation plan (if expulsion is decided)
6. The type of educational placement during the period of expulsion (if expulsion is
decided)
7. Pupils who are expelled shall be responsible for seeking alternative education programs
G. Alternative Education

Pupils who are expelled shall be responsible for seeking alternative education programs including,
but not limited to, programs within the County for their school district of residence. The school shall
work cooperatively with parents/guardians as requested by parents/guardians or by the school district
of residence to assist with locating alternative placements during expulsion.
H. Rehabilitation Plans

Students who are expelled from CCCS shall be given a rehabilitation plan upon expulsion as
developed by the administrative panel at the time of the expulsion order, which may include, but is
not limited to, periodic review as well as assessment at the time of review for readmission. The
rehabilitation plan should include a date not later than one year from the date of expulsion when the
pupil may reapply to CCCS for readmission.
I. Readmission

The decision to readmit a pupil or to admit a previously expelled pupil from another school district
or charter school shall be in the sole discretion of CCCS’s Board of Directors following a meeting
with the CEO or designee and the pupil and guardian or representative to determine whether the pupil
has successfully completed the rehabilitation plan and to determine whether the pupil poses a threat
to others or will be disruptive to the school environment. The CEO or designee shall make a
recommendation to CCCS’s Board of Directors following the meeting regarding his or her
determination. The pupil's readmission is also contingent upon CCCS enrollment capacity at the time
the student seeks readmission.
J. Notice of Expulsion to Last Known District of Residence

CCCS shall, in accordance with Education Code § 47605(d)(3), notify the superintendent of the
school district of the pupil's last known address within 30 days of expulsion, and shall, upon request
of the district, provide the district with a copy of the student's cumulative record, including a
transcript of grades or report card and health information.

K. Special Procedures for Expulsion Hearings Involving Sexual Assault or Battery
Offenses:
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1. CCCS must also provide the victim a room separate from the hearing room for the
complaining witness's use prior to and during breaks in testimony.
2. At the discretion of the person or panel conducting the hearing, the complaining witness
shall be allowed periods of relief from examination and cross-examination during which
he or she may leave the hearing room.
3. The person conducting the expulsion hearing may also arrange the seating within the
hearing room to facilitate a less intimidating environment for the complaining witness.
4. The person conducting the expulsion hearing may also limit time for taking the
testimony of the complaining witness to the hours he/she is normally in school, if there is
no good cause to take the testimony during other hours.
5. Prior to a complaining witness testifying, the support persons must be admonished that
the hearing is confidential. Nothing in the law precludes the person presiding over the
hearing from removing a support person whom the presiding person finds is disrupting the
hearing. The person conducting the hearing may permit any one of the support persons for
the complaining witness to accompany him or her to the witness stand.
6. If one or both of the support persons is also a witness, CCCS must present evidence that
the witness's presence is both desired by the witness and will be helpful to the school. The
person presiding over the hearing shall permit the witness to stay unless it is established
that there is a substantial risk that the testimony of the complaining witness would be
influenced by the support person, in which case the presiding official shall admonish the
support person or persons not to prompt, sway, or influence the witness in any way.
Nothing shall preclude the presiding officer from exercising his or her discretion to remove
a person from the hearing whom he or she believes is prompting, swaying, or influencing
the witness.

L. Probation
The administrative panel, upon voting to expel a pupil, may suspend the enforcement of the expulsion
order for a period of not more than one calendar year and may, as a condition of the suspension of
enforcement, assign the pupil to a school, class, or program that is deemed appropriate for the
rehabilitation of the pupil. The rehabilitation program to which the pupil is assigned may provide for
the involvement of the pupil's parent or guardian in his or her child's education in ways that are
specified in the rehabilitation program. A parent or guardian's refusal to participate in the
rehabilitation program shall not be considered in the administrative panel's determination as to
whether the pupil has satisfactorily completed the rehabilitation program.
The administrative panel shall apply the criteria for suspending the enforcement of the expulsion
order equally to all pupils, including individuals with exceptional needs as defined in California Ed.
Code Section 56026.
During the period of the suspension of the expulsion order, the pupil is deemed to be on probationary
status.
The administrative panel may revoke the suspension of an expulsion order if the pupil commits any
of the acts enumerated in Ed. Code section 48900 or violates any of the school's rules and regulations
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governing pupil conduct. When the administrative panel revokes the suspension of an expulsion
order, a pupil may be expelled under the terms of the original expulsion order. Upon satisfactory
completion of the rehabilitation assignment of a pupil, the administrative panel shall reinstate the
pupil in the school and may also order the expungement of any or all records of the expulsion
proceedings.
The pupil shall be notified of the final order, in writing, either by personal service or by certified
mail. The order shall become final when rendered.
The Program Director or Designee shall send a copy of the written notice of the decision to expel to
the school district of student's last known residence, within thirty (30) days.
Special Procedures for the Consideration of Suspension and Expulsion of Students with
Disabilities
As a member of the Sonoma County Charter SELPA, CCCS will immediately notify them and
coordinate the procedures in this policy with the SELPA of the discipline of any student with a
disability or student who CCCS or SELPA would be deemed to have knowledge that the student had
a disability.
1. Services During Suspension
Students with disabilities suspended and/or placed in an interim alternative setting shall
continue to receive services so as to provide FAPE and enable the student to continue to
participate in the general education curriculum and to progress toward meeting the goals
set out in the child's IEP/504. Any discipline that includes removal from school for more
than ten (10) consecutive days, including placement in an interim alternative educational
setting, constitutes a change in placement and a manifestation determination shall be
conducted.
An IEP or 504 meeting is required within ten (10) days of initial suspension or placement
in an interim alternative educational setting.
2. Procedural Safeguards/Manifestation Determination
Within ten (10) school days of a recommendation for expulsion or any decision to change the
placement of a child with a disability because of a violation of a code of student conduct, CCCS,
the parent, and relevant members of the IEP/504 Team shall review all relevant information in the
student's file, including the child's IEP/504, any teacher observations, and any relevant information
provided by the parents to determine:
a. If the conduct in question was caused by, or had a direct and substantial
relationship to, the child's disability; or
b. If the conduct in question was the direct result of the local educational agency's failure
to implement the IEP/504.
If CCCS, the parent, and relevant members of the IEP/504 Team determine that either of the above
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is applicable for the child, the conduct shall be determined to be a manifestation of the child's
disability.
If CCCS, the parent, and relevant members of the IEP/504 Team make the determination that the
conduct was a manifestation of the child's disability, the IEP/504 Team shall:
a. Conduct a functional behavioral assessment or a functional analysis assessment, and
implement a behavioral intervention plan for such child, provided that CCCS had not
conducted such assessment prior to such determination before the behavior that resulted in
a change in placement;
b. If a behavioral intervention plan has been developed, review the behavioral intervention
plan if the child already has such a behavioral intervention plan, and modify it, as
necessary, to address the behavior; and
c. Return the child to the placement from which the child was removed, unless the parent
and CCCS agree to a change of placement as part of the modification of the behavioral
intervention plan.
If CCCS, the parent, and relevant members of the IEP/504 team determine that the behavior was not
a manifestation of the student's disability and that the conduct in question was not a result of the
failure to implement the IEP/504, then CCCS may apply the relevant disciplinary procedures to
children with disabilities in the same manner and for the same duration as the procedures would be
applied to students without disabilities.
3. Due Process Appeals
The parent of a child with a disability who disagrees with any decision regarding placement,
or the manifestation determination, or CCCS if it believes that maintaining the current
placement of the child is substantially likely to result in injury to the child or to others, may
request an expedited administrative hearing through the Special Education Unit of the
Office of Administrative Hearings.
When an appeal relating to the placement of the student or the manifestation determination
has been requested by either the parent or CCCS, the student shall remain in the interim
alternative educational setting pending the decision of the hearing officer or until the
expiration of the forty-five-day (45) time period provided for in an interim alternative
educational setting, whichever occurs first, unless the parent and CCCS agree otherwise.
4. Special Circumstances
CCCS personnel may consider any unique circumstances on a case-by-case basis when
determining whether to order a change in placement for a child with a disability who
violates a code of student conduct.
The Program Director or Designee may remove a student to an interim alternative
educational setting for not more than forty-five (45) days without regard to whether the
behavior is determined to be a manifestation of the student's disability in cases where a
student:
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a. Carries or possesses a weapon, as defined in 18 USC 930, to or at school, on
school premises, or to or at a school function;
b. Knowingly possesses or uses illegal drugs, or sells or solicits the sale of a
controlled substance, while at school, on school premises, or at a school function;
or
c. Has inflicted serious bodily injury, as defined by 20 USC 1415(k)(7)(D), upon
a person while at school, on school premises, or at a school function.
5. Interim Alternative Educational Setting
The student's interim alternative educational setting or change of placement shall be
determined by the student's IEP/504 team. A change of placement is a removal from
education for more than ten (10) consecutive days or a pattern of removal, even if for less
than ten (10) days. For effective change of placement, there first need be:
a. Notice
b. Manifestation determination
c. Continued receipt of special education services
6. Procedures for Students Not Yet Eligible for Special Education Services
A student who has not been identified as an individual with disabilities pursuant to IDEA
and who has violated the District's disciplinary procedures may assert the procedural
safeguards granted under these procedures only if CCCS had knowledge that the student
was disabled before the behavior occurred.
CCCS shall be deemed to have knowledge that the student had a disability if one of the following
conditions exists:
1. The parent/guardian has expressed concern in writing, or orally if the parent/guardian
does not know how to write or has a disability that prevents a written statement, to CCCS
supervisory or administrative personnel, or to one of the child's teachers, that the student
is in need of special education or related services; or
2. The parent has requested an evaluation of the child; or
3. The child's teacher, or other CCCS personnel, has expressed specific concerns about a
pattern of behavior demonstrated by the child, directly to the director of special education
or to other Charter School supervisory personnel.
If CCCS knew or should have known the student had a disability under any of the three (3)
circumstances described above, the student may assert any of the protections available to IDEAeligible children with disabilities, including the right to stay-put.
If CCCS had no basis for knowledge of the student's disability, it shall proceed with the proposed
discipline. CCCS shall conduct an expedited evaluation if requested by the parents; however, the
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student shall remain in the education placement determined by CCCS pending the results of the
evaluation.
CCCS shall not be deemed to have knowledge that the student had a disability if the parent has not
allowed an evaluation, refused services, or if the student has been evaluated and determined to not
be eligible.
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ELEMENT 11: EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS
Governing Law: The manner by which staff members of the charter schools will be covered by the
State Teachers’ Retirement System, the Public Employees’ Retirement System, or federal social
security. — California Education Code Section 47605(b)(5)(K)
In accordance with Education Code Section 47605, CCCS retains the option for its Board of
Directors to choose to participate in STRS, Public Employees’ Retirements System, or Social
Security depending upon employee eligibility and what the board determines is in the best interest
of the staff and the Charter School as a whole. This determination shall be made no later than the
first meeting of the CCCS board of directors, and will be reflected in CCCS’ personnel policies and
employment handbook and will be presented to employees prior to their employment with the
Charter School.
Under Federal Regulations, the wages of employees of a state or local government are exempt from
social security taxes if the employee is a member of a qualifying retirement system maintained by
the state or local government entity. (26 CFR § 31.3121(b)(7)-2.) Accordingly, CCCS Faculty will
participate in the federal social security system or will be eligible for participation in STRS according
to policies developed by the Board of Directors and adopted as the Charter School's employee
policies. CCCS currently offers an Internal Revenue Code Section 403(b) plan with an employer
contribution or other comparable benefits plan in conjunction with Social Security for all other staff.
Teachers and staff may also have access to other school-sponsored retirement plans according to
policies developed by the CCCS board of directors.
If the Board of Directors approves participation in STRS, in accordance with Education Code Section
47611.3, the authorizing District shall create any reports required by STRS. At the District’s request,
the Charter School shall pay the District a reasonable fee for the provision of such services.
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ELEMENT 12: STUDENT ATTENDANCE ALTERNATIVES
Governing Law: The public school attendance alternatives for pupils residing within the school
district who choose not to attend charter schools. – California Education Code Section
47605(b)(5)(L)
No student is required to attend CCCS. Students who do not attend the Charter School may attend
their local school district of residence or pursue an inter-district transfer in accordance with existing
enrollment and transfer policies of their school district or county of residence.
Parents or guardians of each student enrolled in CCCS will be informed, at the time they enroll and
within the student/parent handbook, that the student has no right to admission in a particular school
of any local educational agency as a consequence of enrollment at CCCS, except to the extent that
such a right is offered by the local educational agency.
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ELEMENT 13: RETURN RIGHTS DISTRICT EMPLOYEES
Governing Law: A description of the rights of any employee of the school district upon leaving the
employment of the school district to work in a charter school, and of any rights of return to the
school district after employment at a charter school. – California Education Code Section
47605(b)(5)(M)
Members of MEUSD staff who leave employment in the District to work at CCCS shall not have
any right to return to employment within the District without prior consent by the District.
Employees who were not previously employed by the District will not become employees of the
District and will not have the right to employment within the District upon leaving the employment
of CCCS.
District employees cannot be required to work at CCCS, nor can the District require the Charter
School to hire District employees, with the exception of District employees provided to CCCS as
part of an agreement for services paid to the District by CCCS under a separately negotiated
agreement or memorandum of understanding.
CCCS employees are not subject to District transfers without written consent of that employee.
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ELEMENT 14: DISPUTE RESOLUTION
Governing Law: The procedures to be followed by the charter school and the entity granting the
charter to resolve disputes relating to provisions of the charter. – California Education Code
Section 47605(b)(5)(N)
This dispute resolution procedure is intended as an agreement to a mutually acceptable dispute
resolution process. CCCS is willing to consider alternatives to this procedure as suggested by the
District and which may be included in any associated Memorandum of Understanding (MOU).
Intent
The intent of this dispute resolution process is to (1) resolve disputes within the Charter School
pursuant to the Charter School’s policies, (2) minimize the oversight burden on the Mountain Empire
Unified School District as the Charter School’s authorizing agent, (3) insure a fair and timely
resolution of disputes, and (4) frame a charter oversight and renewal process and timeline so as to
avoid disputes regarding oversight and renewal matters.
The staff and board of directors’ members of CCCS, CCCS and the MEUSD agree to resolve all
disputes regarding this charter pursuant to the terms of this section.
Disputes Arising from Within the School
Disputes over personnel discipline will not be covered by this dispute resolution process, and instead,
will be resolved through the personnel policies and procedures. CCCS shall adopt comprehensive
personnel policies and procedures, approved by the CCCS Board of Directors that will be provided
to each employee upon hire. These policies will set forth personnel obligations, rights,
responsibilities, complaint procedures, discipline procedures, and other pertinent policies essential
to preserving a safe and harmonious work environment. The CEO will resolve complaints and
grievances and will administer any personnel discipline, with the assistance of the CCCS Board of
Directors, if necessary, in accordance with these policies. The Mountain Empire Unified School
District agrees to refer all complaints regarding the school's operations to the CCCS CEO for
resolution in accordance with the school's adopted policies.
CCCS shall establish and provide a uniform complaint procedure in accordance with applicable
federal and state laws and regulations, including but not limited to all applicable requirements of
California Code of Regulations, title 5, section 4600 et seq. This procedure may be used to resolve
internal disputes among parents, students, and others.
Disputes Between CCCS and The District
In the event that CCCS and the District have disputes regarding the terms of this charter or any
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other issue regarding the Charter School, the parties will follow the process outlined below, as
amended by mutual agreement.
In the event of a dispute between the Charter School and the District, both parties agree to first frame
the issue in writing (“Written Notification”) and refer the issue to the District superintendent, or
his/her designee, and the Charter School CEO. In the event the District superintendent believes the
dispute relates to an issue that could lead to revocation of the charter, the matter will be addressed in
accordance with the laws and regulations pertaining to charter revocation. CCCS requests that the
existence of a disputed issue that could lead to charter revocation be specifically noted in the Written
Notification, and the District may pursue the revocation procedures in the Charter Schools Act and
implementing regulations.
a. Meet and Confer: Upon receipt of the Written Notification, the Charter CEO and the
District superintendent shall informally meet and confer in a timely fashion to attempt to
resolve the dispute. In the event that this informal meeting is unsuccessful, both parties
shall identify two board members from their respective boards who shall jointly meet with
the superintendent of the District and the Charter CEO and attempt to resolve the dispute.
b. Mediation: If the dispute cannot be resolved at the informal meet and confer, the parties
shall schedule a mediation to resolve the matter. The parties shall mediate in good faith.
The mediator shall be selected by mutual agreement of the parties. Each party shall bear its
own attorneys’ fees, costs, and expenses associated with the mediation. The mediator's fees
and the administrative fees of the mediation shall be shared equally among the parties.
Mediation proceedings shall commence within 120 days from the date of either party's
request for mediation.
c. Arbitration: If the dispute cannot be resolved by mediation, then the parties agree to
resolve the dispute by binding arbitration conducted by a single arbitrator. The arbitrator
shall be selected by mutual agreement and the format of the arbitration session shall be
developed jointly and must be an active member of the State Bar of California or a retired
judge of the state or federal judiciary of California. Arbitration proceedings shall be
administered in accordance with the commercial arbitration rules of the American
Arbitration Association. Each party shall bear its own attorney's fees, costs and expenses
associated with the arbitration. The arbitrator's fees and the administrative fees of the
arbitration shall be shared equally among the parties.
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ELEMENT 15: PROCEDURES FOR CLOSURE
Governing Law: A description of the procedures to be used if the charter school closes. The
procedures shall ensure a final audit of the school to determine the disposition of all assets and
liabilities of the charter school, including plans for disposing of any net assets and for the
maintenance and transfer of pupil records. – California Education Code Section 47605(b)(5)(P)
Financial
In the event CCCS closes for any reason, the CCCS Board of Directors shall be responsible for
conducting closure-related activities in accordance with California Code of Regulations, Title 5,
Section 11962. The CCCS Board of Directors will allocate sufficient funding for, or otherwise
determine how CCCS will fund these closure activities. The assets and liabilities of the Charter
School will be disposed of by the CCCS Board of Directors to another charter school, non-profit, or
other appropriate entity in accordance with the asset disposition provisions of the Charter School’s
bylaws and applicable laws. The CCCS Board of Directors members will attend to enumerating and
disposing of the assets and liabilities as directed in the bylaws, and the board treasurer shall ensure
that a final audit of the Charter School’s assets and liabilities is performed within six months after
the school closure. All required final financial and other reports will be submitted to the California
Department of Education and other applicable agencies pursuant to Education Code Section
47604.33.
Students, Families and Staff
In the event the Charter School closes, CCCS will notify staff, parents/guardians of pupils, the
District, the San Diego County Office of Education, the SELPA, the retirement system in which the
Charter School’s employees participate, and the California Department of Education, in writing, as
far in advance as possible. This notice shall include:
● The effective date of the closure;
● The name(s) of and contact information for the person(s) to whom reasonable inquiries
may be made regarding the closure;
● The pupils’ school districts of residence; and
● The manner in which parents/guardians may obtain copies of pupil records, including
specific information on completed courses and credits that meet graduation requirements.
The CCCS website will provide links to resident school district enrollment/transfer procedures if
these are published online (limited to the home districts of currently enrolled students).
Copies of student records will be sent to each resident district, and transcripts will be mailed to
parents/guardians. CCCS will maintain student records and personnel records for a term and in a
manner consistent with applicable federal and state law.
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MISCELLANEOUS CHARTER PROVISIONS
Governing Law: Potential civil liability effects, if any, upon the school and upon the District. –
California Education Code Section 47605(g).
1) Financial Plan / Budget
A financial plan for the Charter School, including budget, is attached as Exhibit B.
2) Local Control Funding Formula
CCCS acknowledges and agrees that it must comply with all applicable laws and regulations related
to AB 97 (Local Control Funding Formula), as they may be amended from time to time, which
include the requirement that CCCS submit a Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP)/ Annual
Update to the District and the County Superintendent of Schools on or before July 1 of each year. In
accordance with California Education Code §§ 47604.33 and 47606.5, CCCS shall annually update
its goals and annual actions to achieve those goals identified in the charter pursuant to Education
Code § 47605(b)(5)(A)(ii), and may use the LCAP template adopted by the State Board of Education.
Charter School shall comply with all requirements of Education Code § 47606.5, including but not
limited to the requirement that CCCS “shall consult with teachers, principals, administrators, other
school personnel, parents, and pupils in developing the annual update.”
3) Financial Reporting
Financial Systems and Processes
County Collaborative Charter School has contracted with a back-office provider for most of the
business operations of the school. The CEO will oversee those services.
To ensure that they are meeting the needs of CCCS, we anticipate utilizing a back-office provider to
organize CCCS’s chart of accounts in an easy to use accounting software package (e.g., QuickBooks)
and to train the CEO on the proper classification of entries utilizing this chart of accounts.
Other Financial Reports
CCCS will implement an attendance recording and accounting system which complies with state law
and the District’s requirements.
CCCS anticipates applying for the Charter School Revolving Loan Fund. If it does so, CCCS
understands that it must comply with Education Code Section 41365 if it receives funds.
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CCCS will be a direct-funded charter school and anticipates depositing its funds in a non- speculative
and federally insured bank account for use by the school.
CCCS will provide all reports that are required by law, including but not necessarily limited to the
California Basic Educational Data System (CBEDS), actual Average Daily Attendance reports, and
School Accountability Report Card (SARC), the latter attached as Exhibit K.
4) Insurance
Insurance Certificates
CCCS shall keep on file certificates signed by an authorized representative of the insurance carrier.
Certificates shall be endorsed as follows: The insurance afforded by this policy shall not be
suspended, cancelled, reduced in coverage or limits or non-renewed except after thirty (30) days
prior written notice by certified mail, return receipt requested, has been given to MEUSD. Facsimile
or reproduced signatures are not acceptable. MEUSD reserves the right to require complete certified
copies of the required insurance policies. Required insurance includes Commercial General Liability,
Commercial Auto Liability, Worker’s Compensation, Property and Fire, and Errors and Omissions.
All insurance requirements are specified in the MOU.
Optional Insurance
Should CCCS deem it prudent and/or desirable to have insurance coverage for damage or theft to
school, employee or student property, for student accident, or any other type of insurance coverage
not listed above, such insurance shall not be provided by MEUSD and its purchase shall be the
responsibility of CCCS.
Indemnification
With respect to its operations under this charter, CCCS shall, to the fullest extent permitted by law,
hold harmless, indemnify, and defend MEUSD, its officers, directors, and employees from and
against any and all claims, demands, actions, suits, losses, liability expenses and costs including,
without limitation, attorneys’ fees and costs arising out of injury to any persons, including death or
damage to any property caused by, connected with, or attributable to the willful misconduct,
negligent acts, errors or omissions of CCCS or its officers, employees, agents and consultants,
excepting only those claims, demands, actions, suits, losses, liability expenses and costs caused by
the negligence or willful misconduct of the District, its officers, directors and employees. MEUSD
shall be named as an additional insured under all insurance carried on behalf of CCCS as outlined
above.
5) Administrative Services
The CEO will be responsible for administering the Charter School under policies adopted by CCCS’
Board of Directors.
Pursuant to California law, MEUSD will be required to provide certain oversight duties, including
monitoring the Charter School and student performance data, reviewing the Charter School's
financial statements and audit reports, performing annual site visits, engaging in the
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dispute resolution process, and considering charter amendments and renewal requests.
CCCS will coordinate with the County to report pertinent STRS payroll data if STRS is used. The
County may request a reasonable fee for coordinating this transfer of data. The Charter School plans
on obtaining its own health and benefits via small business plan type offerings from local vendors
(e.g., Kaiser and Blue Cross).
6) Facilities
CCCS is operated in an independent study environment. As such, minimal facility usage is required.
CCCS will maintain a central administrative office wherein important student and personnel records
will be maintained. Resource centers will be created in accordance with the law, as needed within
the MEUSD. Many of our programs will meet either virtually or in mutually agreed upon public
locations every twenty days with no resource center needed.
Administrative offices are located at 100 East San Marcos Blvd. Suite 350, San Marcos, CA 92069.
7) Transportation
As an Independent Study program, CCCS does not anticipate providing any home to school or school
to home transportation services; however, CCCS will ensure that students with IEPs that require such
services receive them. CCCS does anticipate occasionally arranging for public, rented or parental
transportation for field trip-type excursions and learning opportunities.
8) Civil Liability
CCCS is a California nonprofit public benefit corporation and will be responsible for governing
CCCS pursuant to Education Code Section 47604. Pursuant to Education Code Section 47604(c),
MEUSD is not liable for the debts or obligations of the Charter School, or for claims arising from
the performance of acts, errors, or omissions by the Charter School, so long as MEUSD performs its
oversight responsibilities. CCCS intends to purchase liability, property, and errors and omissions
insurance as outlined above to protect the school’s assets, staff, board of directors’ members, and,
where appropriate, the district from unforeseen liability.
9) Financial Management and School Services Contracts
Financial Management
The CEO will be responsible for administering the Charter School under policies adopted by CCCS’
Board of Directors. As described further below, the Charter School may contract with a back-office
provider and School Pathways (as a student information systems and state reporting provider) for
certain of its operational, administrative, and financial services.
The back-office provider and Student information system must demonstrate a track record of
experience with virtual/homeschool public schools, and will meet the Charter School’s service needs
based on mandatory state data tracking and reporting requirements.
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Material Contracts
County Collaborative Charter School (CCCS) has contracted the following material agreements for
services:
•
•
•

•
•
•
•
•
•

An agreement for payroll processing services.
An agreement for accounting and tax services.
An agreement with an independent financial auditor that meets the certification and
licensure requirements for conducting an independent financial audit of California public
schools. This agreement will be made upon terms and conditions that are standard for the
industry and will ensure a legally compliant annual audit of CCCS’s finances.
An agreement for curriculum with Edgenuity to supply CCCS’s online instructional
program.
An agreement with approved vendors to supply curriculum for the home school program.
An agreement for student information systems with School Pathways.
An agreement for back office services
An agreement for technology support for faculty and students.
An agreement for website design and maintenance.
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GENERAL PROVISIONS OF THE PROPOSED CHARTER
Term
The term of this Charter shall be July 1, 2019 – June 30, 2024. This Charter may be renewed for one
or more subsequent five (5) year terms upon the mutual agreement of the parties.
Revisions
Material revisions of this Charter may be made in writing with the mutual consent of MEUSD after
a public hearing. Material revisions shall be made pursuant to the standards, criteria, and timelines
set forth in Education Code Section 47605; provided however that CCCS shall not be required to
obtain petition signatures prior to making material revisions to the charter petition.
Severability
The terms of this Charter are severable. In the event that any provision is determined to be
unenforceable or invalid for any reason, the remainder of the Charter shall remain in effect, unless
mutually agreed otherwise by the respective boards of CCCS and the Mountain Empire Unified
School District.
Miscellaneous
The Mountain Empire Unified School District and CCCS shall engage in a mutually agreeable
memorandum of understanding (MOU), which outlines further details of the relationship between
MEUSD and CCCS. The MOU may include, but not be limited to, the following:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Transportation and food services to be provided by MEUSD, if any
Services to be purchased by the Charter School from MEUSD, and the fee schedule for
such services
Details of the oversight and monitoring relationship between CCCS and MEUSD
Mutual indemnification from loss
Cash advances to handle cash flow issues, if necessary
CCCS’s receipt of mandated cost reimbursement
Fiscal reporting requirements to the state, either independently or through MEUSD
MEUSD support for the Charter School in seeking additional funding
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Exhibit A: Job Descriptions

Chief Executive Officer
Job Description
Reports To:
FLSA Status:
School Classification:
Pay Range:
Work Schedule:
Location:

School Board of Directors
Exempt
Certificated Administration
Based upon experience/by contract
220 days
Onsite/Remote Office

Position Summary: As Chief Executive Officer (CEO), the employee will operate under the policy direction
of the School Board of Directors and in accordance with federal and state laws; providing direction to the
COO in developing, formulating and revising guidance documents in school finance, school program
planning and educational program review. The CEO has the authority to specify actions required and to
detail how the school will operate. Work is accomplished by providing leadership to the school employees
and members of the community, and by system management that recognizes the need to achieve student,
staff and School Board goals, as well as the system improvement plans and objectives.
Communications are provided to all levels within the school, the government, the community served by the
school and state organizations and agencies. Each of the programs must be conducted in compliance with
policies and procedures of the School Board, as well as state rules and regulations and state and federal
statutes.

Qualifications: To perform this job successfully, an individual must be able to perform each essential
duty satisfactorily. The requirements listed below are representative of the knowledge, skill, and/or
ability required.
●
●

●

Master's Degree and Education Specialist (Ed. S) degree or higher in Administration and
Supervision or Educational Leadership preferred.
Five years of successful teaching and five years of educational administration experience.
Prefer school or school system administrative experience with concentration in
administration, supervision, curriculum, finance and personnel management.
A valid, current, and appropriate California state administrative credential. A copy of
credential to be provided and kept current.

●

●
●

State and federal fingerprint clearance (LiveScan) to work with students (Ed. Code 44237). No
prospective employee can report to work without this clearance being received and Human
Resources notifying the immediate supervisor of this clearance.
Proof of a clear TB test dated within the last 60 days (Ed. Code 49406) upon employment
and thereafter updated every four years
Valid California Driver’s License

ESSENTIAL DUTIES and RESPONSIBILITIES:
Upholding Mission
● Understand and promote the charter’s mission, purposes and objectives to parents, staff,
board members, and community.
● Build shared vision among all stakeholders, focusing on the program’s mission and identity.
● Establish and maintain a healthy and mutually supportive relationship with our partners to
advance the mission of the School.
● Ensure the charter school enacts its mission.
Administrative Responsibilities
● Develop new and revised policies for recommendation to the Board and ensure that all laws,
Board policies, procedures and administrative regulations are implemented.  
● Make administrative decisions necessary for the proper functioning of the School.
● Secure legal interpretations on all issues pertaining to the School and the operation of the
School.
● Create and oversee system to handle organizational tasks such as student records, teacher
records, purchasing, budgets, and timetables.
● Serve as professional advisor to the Board, keeping them fully informed on all programs,
practices, issues and problems of the charter school; provide them with all information and
data for decision making. When recommendations are requested or offered, the CEO will
provide rationale for the recommendation. 
● Provide leadership in designing, implementing, and evaluating major programs and activities
to bring about needed change and higher performance.  
● Provide leadership to the School staff in determining instructional objectives and identifying
charter needs as the basis for developing long- and short-range plans for the charter.
● Continuously develop and expand the educational goals and programs, and inform the Board
of status, progress, and implementation.  
● Keep informed of current educational philosophy, practices and public policies by advanced
study, by visiting other charters, by attending educational conferences and workshops, and by
reading current professional literature. Keep the Board informed of trends in education.
● Complete and submit required documents as requested or required by the charter and/or the
School Board of Directors and/or the District.
● Participate in and develop professional development workshops as needed.
Chief Executive Officer Job Description
Board Approved: June 13, 2017

2 of 7

●
●
●

●

Maintain good working relationships with the total staff, directing and implementing lines of
communication with employees.
Foster a climate of innovation and collaborative creative problem solving with charter
personnel, students, parents, and community.
Establish and maintain a system to handle organizational tasks such as student records,
teacher records, teacher credentialing information, contemporaneous attendance logs,
purchasing, budgets, and timetables.
Work with the School staff to develop the annual school calendar and Master Schedule.

District Liaison
● Serve as liaison between the School and school districts on all educational matters; work with
the School attorney on contracts with contractor.
● Attend District Administrative meetings as requested by the District and stay in direct contact
with the District regarding changes, progress, etc.
● Provide monthly progress reports to districts.
● Attend board meetings of districts, as needed.
● Promote and publish the Charter Program in the community and promote positive public
relations and interact effectively with media.
Financial Oversight – working with back-office provider
● Oversee school finances to ensure financial stability; maintain up-to-date financial records.
● Attend meetings with the Chief Financial Officer of the District on fiscal oversight issues as
requested by the District.
● Direct the preparation of the annual budget of the School, presenting it to the Board along
with facts and pertinent information relative to its adoption; make recommendations
regarding the same and direct the administration of the budget after its adoption.
● Provide all necessary financial reports as required for proper attendance reporting.
● With Board direction, follow Board-approved procedures for purchasing materials; provide
explanation to the Board of departure from established procedures and obtain prior written
board approval for expenditures exceeding $500.00.
● Oversee reimbursements and expenses.
● Oversee the processing and submission of required state and federal reports. Direct the
maintenance of all records that are required by law and Board policy.
Provider/Systems Liaison
● Oversee marketing to recruit new families and students.
● Organize efforts for RFPs to various providers.
● Serve as liaison between the School and school providers on all educational matters to
ensure providers are adhering to contracts and quality of services.

·

Work with the School attorney on contracts with contractors/providers.

Chief Executive Officer Job Description
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Legal Compliance
● Ensure compliance with all applicable state and federal laws.
● Oversee state and federal assessment requirements.
● Oversee the development of the School Annual Performance Report and the SARC.
● Present independent fiscal audit to the School Board of Directors and after review by the
Board of Directors present audit to the District Board of Education and the County
Superintendent of Schools, the State Controller and the California Department of Education.
● Prepare/coordinate the agenda for all Board Meetings, all records and correspondence of the
Board, and assure legal requirements are met in scheduling and conducting Board Meetings.
(CEO will submit to the Office Manager whom will, in turn, assemble the agenda and post it
72 hours prior to the meeting.)
● Oversee the processing and submission of required state and federal reports. Direct the
maintenance of all records that are required by law and Board policy.
● Oversee and assist in securing local grants.
Faculty Oversight
● Support, supervise and evaluate non-teaching personnel (counselors, assessment
coordinator, etc.).
● Encourage, create and support teacher professional development.
● Oversee non-teaching personnel development and progress of SMART goals.
● Direct the evaluation and make all recommendations for retention, discipline, or dismissal of
employees, supported by accurate and adequate records.
● Interview and recommend employee hiring, promotion, discipline, and/or dismissal.
● Ensure that appropriate evaluation techniques are used for both students and staff.
● Identify the staffing needs of the School based on the budget and ADA and direct the
assignment/duties for instructional personnel.
● Track and evaluate performance of student completion rates.
● Direct the preparation of reports showing objectives, plans, programs, educational
accomplishments.
Attendance Compliance
● Provide all necessary financial reports as required for proper attendance reporting.
● Take responsible steps to secure full and regular attendance at school of the students
enrolled in accordance with policies established by the Board of Directors.
Supervisor Responsibilities:
Supervises, coordinates, and evaluates the assigned staff. Carries out supervisory responsibilities in
accordance with the organization’s policies and applicable laws.
● Chief Operation Officer
● Other administrative staff as assigned
Other Duties
Chief Executive Officer Job Description
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●

●

Document and report to the school’s management all formal disciplinary actions involving
students and staff; addressing and resolving complaints from students, parents, and staff in a
timely manner; ensuring compliance with the school’s Uniform Complaint Policy; the school’s
Uniform Technology Policy; and the provisions of California Penal Code Section 11166 (Child
Abuse and Neglect Reporting Act)
Perform other duties as assigned

Language Skills:
● Ability to read, write and interpret documents such as curriculum guides, test results,
contracts, grant applications, statutes and policies.
● Ability to understand and generate written memorandums, employee evaluations and
correspondence with business and public contacts.
● Ability to write routine reports and correspondence.
● Ability to speak effectively to individuals and groups.
● Ability to effectively present information and respond to questions from parents, staff,
students and the general public. Ability to navigate the WASC accreditation process to a
successful conclusion.
Mathematical Skills:
● Ability to calculate figures and amounts such as discounts, interest, proportions, percentages,
area, circumference and volume.
● Ability to apply concepts of basic algebra and geometry.
● Experience in working with and preparing budgets.
● The ability to read and interpret fiscal reports.
Computer Skills:
● Must be knowledgeable of current school software and a variety of electronic tools.
● Must be capable of correspondence using email or other web-based applications.
Reasoning Ability:
● Analyze problems, collect data, establish facts, and draw valid conclusions.
● Ability to interpret an extensive variety of technical instructions in mathematical or diagram
form and deal with several abstract and concrete variables.

Use of Computer Technology:
To perform this job successfully, an individual should have general knowledge of database software,
how to use the internet to find information and complete tasks, email usage, order processing
systems, spreadsheet software, and word processing software. The employee is expected to acquire
and maintain a working computer with an internet connection and a printer.

Chief Executive Officer Job Description
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Physical Demands:
The physical demands described here are representative of those that must be met by an employee
to successfully perform the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations may be
made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions.
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

Hearing and speaking to exchange information
Dexterity of hands and fingers to demonstrate activities
Operates a computer and other office productivity machinery
Seeing to read a variety of materials and monitor students
Bending at the waist, kneeling or crouching
Sitting or standing for extended periods of time
Lifting objects up to 50 pounds
Close vision and ability to adjust focus

Work Environment:
The work environment characteristics described here are representative of those an employee
encounters while performing the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations may be
made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions.
●
●
●
●

Noise level is generally moderate
Meetings conducted in public and private settings
Indoor and outdoor in varying temperature
Employee must have available transportation and be able to drive up to 100 miles in a day

HAZARDS:
Contact with dissatisfied individuals.

Employee Acknowledgement:

____________________________
Employee Signature

____________________________
Printed Name

_______________
Date
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Director of Assessment, Accountability, and Student Services
Job Description
Position Title:
Reports To:
FLSA Status:
School Classification:
Pay Range:
Work Schedule:
Location:

Director of Assessment, Accountability, and Student Services
Chief Executive Officer (or designee)
Exempt
Certificated Administration
$115,000
220 days
Remote Office

Position Summary: T
 he Director of Assessment, Accountability, and Student Services manages and
oversees the operations team and coordinates the administration and processing of all state, and
federally-mandated assessments, provides training and support for program test coordinators and
program leads, and maintains test security ensuring appropriate test administration and test preparation
procedures are followed by all programs. Additionally, the Director of Assessment, Accountability, and
Student Services oversees the training of staff, data management and certification of electronic state
reporting systems including CALPADS, CBEDS, TOMS and the California Schools Dashboards for all
charters as well as ensures that deadlines are met, systems are in place, and others are held accountable so
that the programs within the charters operate effectively.
Qualifications: To perform this job successfully, an individual must be able to perform each essential
duty satisfactorily. The requirements listed below are representative of the knowledge, skill, and/or
ability required.
●

●
●

●
●

Any combination equivalent to: bachelor's degree, including courses needed to meet CA
credential requirements and student teaching classroom experience. Training in one or more
areas of high school curriculum.
Valid California teaching credential
State and federal fingerprint clearance (LiveScan) to work with students (Ed. Code 44237). No
prospective employee can report to work without this clearance being received and the
Human Resources Manager notifying the immediate supervisor of this clearance.
Proof of a clear TB Tine test dated within the last 60 days (Ed. Code 49406) upon
employment and thereafter updated every four years
Valid California Driver’s License
Director of Assessment, Accountability, and Student Services Job Description
Board Approved: June 14, 2018
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ESSENTIAL DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES
●

●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

●
●
●
●
●
●

Support the mission, vision, and goals of the Collaborative schools. Serve as a contributing
member of the Collaborative Cabinet and collaborate with all Program members to achieve
the school’s goals.
Ensures all programs follow independent study compliance per Education Code.
Train, support, and monitor all Program Directors, teachers, and staff in compliance practices
and procedures.
Conducts internal auditing of independent study compliance files.
Works with auditor to provide required reports and records for independent study and
financial audit.
Set up deadlines to meet state reporting periods.
Ensure all attendance is verified and contains all necessary documentation.
Run reports, correct anomalies, and creates final attendance reports for all reporting periods.
Works with back office provider, sponsoring districts, and State on attendance reporting (20
Day Report, P1, P2, and P Annual).
Ensures all enrollment, re-enrollment, and lottery processes and procedures meet State and
charter requirements.
Train and monitor admission teams on all aspects of student enrollment.
Setup, train, and monitor processes and procedures for maintenance of cumulative files.
Monitor processes for identification and recording of English Learners.
Set procedures and monitor recording and maintaining special education files.
Create and monitor immunization policies and train staff to record records.
Ensure data collection of NSLP/Income Survey are completed, recorded, and filed according
outlined process.
Monitor contiguous county enrollments.
Setup and maintenance of the student information system (SIS) for district oversight scopes
and program scopes, including policies, reporting periods, course catalogs, archiving,
RegOnline, etc.
Work with back office provider to create multitrack calendars to meet state requirements and
maximize average daily attendance.
Create learning periods to meet independent study requirements and reporting periods.
Set graduation requirements to align with state and charter requirements.
Create and maintain course catalogs to align with state course codes and CALPADS reporting.
Monitor staff accounts in SIS, including proper classification, employment records,
permissions, credentialing, and HQT status for state reporting.
Troubleshoot SIS issues and work closely with School Pathways team.

Assistant Director of Assessment and Demographic Reporting Job Description
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●
●
●
●
●
●
●

●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

●
●
●
●
●

Collaborate with staff of back office provider relative to State reporting: CBEDS,
Immunization, Attendance Reporting, Calpads, and other State or county reports.
Provide training and support for high school programs, including transcripts, credit
evaluations, and concurrent enrollment practices.
Ensure course catalogs match A-G courses.
Work with Cabinet, back office provider, and program leads on budgets.
Create and run reports showing demographic data, including EL, LCFF etc.
Provide enrollment data reports, including gains and losses.
Monitor and support Calpads tech team with SIS updates and corrections to clear all
anomalies, upload and post all corrected files into Calpads for Fall 1, Fall 2, and EOY reporting
periods.
Reach out to students, parents, teachers and Program Directors about mandatory assessment
related information
Ensure students/parents/staff are aware of testing calendar dates and are aware of testing
center information and locations, etc.
Encourages students to attend tests in a positive manner
Register students for testing locations for each test administration for programs as needed
Coordinate inter-program test administration sites, as needed, to accommodate all students
in all charters
Work with staff and admin to inform students with multiple contacts of testing locations,
testing expectations and reminders of when to attend
Offer test preparation and answer all assessment related questions
Develop and implement a Collaborative-wide assessment plan
Monitor budgetary issues related to assessment
Work with The Collaborative business office to ensure all meeting spaces are paid for in a
timely manner
Distribute and explain assessment information with teachers and administrative staff
Prepare reports and maintain standard operating procedures
Analyze individual program and charter level assessment data and work with administration
on data disaggregation for improving testing scores; present this data to the board and other
stakeholders.
Ensure all reporting is in compliance with state standards
Ensure all reporting is completed by state deadlines
Stay up to date on changes/updates to State requirements in the areas of assessment and
accountability
Maintain accurate student assessment and English Learner records for all programs/charters
Train and support program leads and assessment coordinators on the re-identification and
redesignation of English Learner status, using the criteria from the English Learner Master
Plan for all relevant EL students on an annual basis
Assistant Director of Assessment and Demographic Reporting Job Description
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●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

Update and maintain all English Learner correspondence, in both English and Spanish, for the
use of all programs
Train and support program leads on creating and managing ELF (English Learner File) cards
bi-annually
Collect, organize, format and upload PFT data from all Physical Education instructors and
program leads to the state testing website
Work with administration to keep the Student Information System up to date and error free
for CALPADS submissions
Complete CALPADS updates both weekly and bi-monthly for programs as needed
Train staff as needed on CALPADS policies and procedures
Monitor CALPADS coordinator file uploads for all programs to ensure that data is ready for
certifications each year
Reconcile data between the SIS and CALPADS for the completion of all three annual
certifications for each charter
Respond in a timely manner to all requests for information from The Collaborative
administration in regards to SARC, audits, or other data as needed
Complete/Certify CBEDS data annually for each charter
Act as the California School dashboard coordinator for all charters- reviewing and updating
information as needed
Act as lead of The Collaborative’s English Learner Committee
Respond via phone or email to school stakeholders within stated policies and procedures
○ Parents and students within 24 hours
○ Colleagues within business day
Facilitate communications between students and instructional staff when needed
Facilitate communication between staff
Disseminate and collect all test score result data/materials to each programs
Inform students of test results via email and/or U.S. mail when they are received and ensure
that program leads are doing such for their students
Inform parents of re-designation of English Learner statuses of their students as applicable
and ensure that program leads are doing such for their students
Attend meetings (leadership, faculty, PLC, and relevant admin)
Obtain reports as needed from the SIS
Meet established deadlines
Follow all school policies and procedures
Follow legal mandates relative to reporting
Work with testing agencies to ensure the accuracy and timeliness of all test orders, pre-ID,
and score results/reports
Organize training for proctors within all districts and satellite campuses
Correspond with staff to determine availability and preferences for test proctoring
Assistant Director of Assessment and Demographic Reporting Job Description
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●
●
●
●

Be available to all staff and students during testing periods via telephone and email
Work with teachers and staff to assist with student outreach/follow up and proctoring of all
tests
Oversee additional faculty who support Assessment/Accountability
Fulfill school-wide and individual SMART goals

Oversight Responsibilities:
● Student Services Department
● IT Department

Other Duties
● Document and report to the school’s management all formal disciplinary actions involving
students and staff; addressing and resolving complaints from students, parents, and staff in a
timely manner; ensuring compliance with the school’s Uniform Complaint Policy; the school’s
Uniform Technology Policy; and the provisions of California Penal Code Section 11166 (Child
Abuse and Neglect Reporting Act)
● Perform other duties as assigned

KNOWLEDGE AND ABILITIES
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

Student Information System (School Pathways)
California Longitudinal Pupil Achievement Data System
Independent Study and Student Record compliance
Applicable sections of the Education Code and other applicable laws.
Demonstrate effective interpersonal skills.
Communicate clearly in a timely manner, both orally and in writing.
Foster teamwork in a collaborative work environment.
Direct, motivate, listen to, and establish effective rapport with students and parents.
Analyze and assess student learning.
Use technology in an effective manner for teaching, communicating, analyzing, and
reporting.
Maintain professional, cordial relationships with students, parents, and staff.
Use professional judgment in making reasonable decisions or recommendations in
conjunction with other staff members and/or administrative leadership.
Solve problems and take responsibility for a variety of situations in a reasonable manner
where only limited standardization exists.
Interpret a variety of instructions furnished in written, oral, diagram, or schedule form
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Physical Demands:
The physical demands described here are representative of those that must be met by an employee
to successfully perform the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations may be
made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions.
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

Hearing and speaking to exchange information
Speak clearly so listeners can understand
Focusing on one source of sound and ignore others
Dexterity of hands and fingers to demonstrate activities
Operates a computer and other office productivity machinery
Seeing to read a variety of materials
Bending at the waist, kneeling or crouching
Sitting or standing for extended periods of time
Lifting objects up to 50 pounds
Close vision and ability to adjust focus

Work Environment:
The work environment characteristics described here are representative of those an employee
encounters while performing the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations may be
made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions.
●
●
●
●
●

Noise level is generally moderate
School/public setting
Indoor and outdoor setting
Varying temperature
Employee must have available transportation and be able to drive up to 100 miles in a day

Employee Acknowledgement:

___________________________
Employee Signature

___________________________
Printed Name

________________
Date
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Director of Special Education
Job Description
Reports To:

Chief Executive Officer (CEO)

FLSA Status:

Exempt

School Classification: Certificated Administration
Pay Range:
Work Schedule:
Location:

$

,

-$

,

/annual

days
Onsite and Remote Office

Position Summary: The Director of Special Education serves as a member of Cabinet and is responsible to
plan, organize, and direct the Collaborative Special Education Program and related services involving
teachers, assistants, and auxiliary staff; supervises and evaluates the performance of assigned personnel;
advises the CEO on matters related to special education services and assures compliance with State and
federal laws, rules and regulations related to assigned areas including local SELPA policies.
Minimum Qualifications: To perform this job successfully, an individual must be able to perform each
essential duty satisfactorily.
●

●
●
●
●
●

●

Five ( ) or more years of successful special education teaching experience. Two or more
years of experience in program leadership or educational administrative experience in the
education of individuals with exceptional needs.
A valid, current, and appropriate California Special Education credential. A copy of credential
to be provided at the time of hire and must be kept current.
A valid California administrative services credential.
Master’s degree in special education preferred.
Hold and maintain a valid California Driver’s License; proof of automobile insurance; and full
time use of a dependable automobile that is insured pursuant to California regulations.
State and federal background clearance (LiveScan) to work with students (Ed. Code
).
No prospective employee can report to work without this clearance being received and
Director of Human Resources notifying the immediate supervisor of this clearance.
Proof of a clear TB test dated within the last
days (Ed. Code
) upon employment
and thereafter updated every four years.

ESSENTIAL DUTIES and RESPONSIBILITIES:
.

Plan, organize, control and direct The Collaborative’s Special Education Services including
health, speech and language, and psychological services; assure compliance with State and
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.
.

.

.

.

.

.
.

.

.

.
.

.

federal laws, rules and regulations related to assigned areas including local SELPA policies;
manage departmental operations.
Supervise the performance of assigned personnel; interview and select employees and
recommend transfers, reassignment, termination and disciplinary actions.
Provide technical and professional guidance to Special Education teachers, instructional
assistants and others; interpret and maintain current knowledge of developments in
curriculum and instruction and make recommendations for inclusion in the Collaborative’s
Special Education Program; implement mandated legislation; study, evaluate and make
recommendations related to new instructional materials, methods and programs in assigned
areas.
Direct, plan and coordinate a variety of other programs and services related to assigned areas
including community social services, nursing services, outreach program, Schools’
intervention/at-risk programs, home teaching, transition partnership programs, and summer
special education programs.
Direct the formulation of a philosophy and objectives for the Special Education Program and
provide staff leadership to assure understanding of and promote educational objectives of
the Schools' Special Education Program; oversee the development, implementation and
evaluation of in-service and staff development training programs for Special Education.
Direct the planning, organization, administration and evaluation of aspects related to student
identification, assessment, placement and due process; provide liaison between IEP teams
and the Special Education Programs.
Provide technical expertise, information and assistance to the CEO regarding assigned
functions; assist in the formulation and development of policies, procedures and programs to
assure an economical, safe and efficient work environment.
Plan, organize and implement long and short-term programs and activities designed to
enhance assigned programs and services.
Develop and prepare annual preliminary budgets for Special Education Programs; analyze
and review budgetary and financial data; control and authorize expenditures in accordance
with established limitations.
Direct the preparation and maintenance of a variety of narrative and statistical reports,
records and files related to assigned activities and personnel; oversee maintenance of student
files referred to or serving in the program.
Communicate with other administrators, personnel and outside organizations to coordinate
activities and programs, resolve issues and conflicts and exchange information; communicate
with parents to resolve difficult issues or concerns.
Operate a computer and assigned software programs; operate other office equipment as
assigned; drive a vehicle to various sites to conduct work.
Attend and conduct a variety of meetings as assigned; represent the Schools at local, County,
State and national meetings, workshops and conference; attend Board of Directors meetings;
participate on assigned committees; serve on expulsion panel; make oral presentations;
attend SELPA meetings representing the Collaborative’s interests.
Oversee the maintenance and confidentiality of student records.
Director of Special Education Job Description
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. Oversee the Medi-Cal billing process; review billing for accuracy and completeness; train and
direct staff as needed.
. Maintain professional competence through professional development via numerous
educational activities; attend and participate in a variety of assigned meetings, conferences,
trainings and/or special events.
Other Duties:
● Document and report to the school’s management all formal disciplinary actions involving
students; supporting management with addressing and resolving complaints from students
and parents in a timely manner; ensuring compliance with the provisions of California Penal
Code Section
(Child Abuse and Neglect Reporting Act).
● Respond to all school related written correspondence, phone calls, voicemails, and emails
within
business hours.
● Perform other related duties as assigned.
Knowledge and Abilities: To perform this job successfully, an individual must be able to perform each
essential duty satisfactorily. The requirements listed below are representative of the knowledge, skill,
and/or ability required.
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

Planning, organization and direction of Special Education Programs and Services
Principles and practices of administration, supervision and training
Applicable laws, codes, regulations, policies and procedures
Compliance review mandates
Budget preparation and control
IEP preparation and implementation methods and procedures
Appropriate referral agencies
Testing practices, procedures and methods
Oral and written communication skills
Interpersonal skills using tact, patience and courtesy
Operation of a computer and assigned software
Public speaking techniques
Communicate effectively both orally and in writing
Interpret, apply and explain rules, regulations, policies and procedures
Establish and maintain cooperative and effective working relations with others
Analyze situations accurately and adopt an effective course of action
Meet schedules and timelines
Work independently with little direction
Prepare comprehensive narrative and statistical reports
Direct the maintenance of a variety of reports and files related to assigned activities
Maintain current knowledge of curriculum and instruction legislation related to assigned areas

Physical Demands: The physical demands described here are representative of those that must be
Director of Special Education Job Description
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met by an employee to successfully perform the essential functions of this job. Reasonable
accommodations may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential
functions.
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

Hearing and speaking to exchange information
Dexterity of hands and fingers to operate a computer keyboard
Operates a computer and other office productivity machinery
Seeing to read a variety of materials and monitor students
Close vision and ability to adjust focus for extended periods of time
Bending at the waist, kneeling, or crouching
Sitting or standing for extended periods of time
Lifting objects up to
pounds with or without assistance

Work Environment: The work environment characteristics described here are representative of those
an employee encounters while performing the essential functions of this job. Reasonable
accommodations may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential
functions.
●
●
●
●
●

Noise level is generally moderate
Constant interruptions
Meetings conducted in public and office settings
Indoor and outdoor in varying temperatures
Employee must have available transportation and be able to drive up to

miles in a day

Hazards:
● Contact with dissatisfied individuals.
The above job description is not intended to be an all-inclusive list of duties and standards of the
position. Incumbents will follow any other instructions, and perform any other related duties, as
assigned by their supervisor.
Employee Acknowledgement:
____________________________ ____________________________ _______________
Employee Signature
Printed Name
Date
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Program Expansion Coordinator
Stipend Job Description
Position Title:
Reports To:
Stipend:
Work Schedule:
Location:

Program Expansion Coordinator
Chief Executive Officer (or designee)
$15,000 - $25,000/year
12 months
Remote Office

Position Summary: Successful children emerge as productive participants in our communities. The
Program Expansion Coordinator’s efforts are about building a new, sustainable way of serving every one
of our children: a community-wide effort aimed at aligning resources around a common strategy to drive
youth success. The Program Expansion Coordinator’s goal is to support every child and young adult
through the process of successfully completing the compulsory education requirements made by the
State of California.
●

●

●
●
●

Promote free public school independent study and home school options in the areas served by
the schools of the Collaborative (Imperial, Inyo, Kern, Los Angeles, Orange, Riverside, San
Bernardino, San Diego, and Ventura Counties)
Develop and promote partnerships with existing entities serving school age children through
formal and informal clubs, groups, community organizations, sporting organizations, and other
activities supporting child engagement, enrichment, and growth.
Identify leaders from the education, health and human services, nonprofit, business, civic, and
philanthropic sectors who work to improve outcomes for young people
Recruit and retain new individuals and organizations to enroll in educational programs of The
Collaborative
Monitor existing partnerships to maintain enrollment and provide increased opportunities

Qualifications: To perform this job successfully, an individual must be able to perform each essential
duty satisfactorily. The requirements listed below are representative of the knowledge, skill, and/or
ability required.
●
●
●

BA or BS required, advanced degree preferred
A valid, current, and appropriate California state school administrator or teacher credential. A
copy of credential to be provided and kept current.
A minimum of three years experience in educational leadership, Charter school leadership, or
teaching preferred. Experience with progressively increasing levels of responsibility in
leadership/mentoring – work experience in a non-education context will also be considered
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●
●
●

●
●

Strong administrative/organizational/time-management skills required with a demonstrated
capacity to multitask/prioritize, and work independently with limited direction
Knowledge of California laws and regulations for Public and Charter Schools, budget development
and management, and implementation of curriculum and educational reform models
State and federal fingerprint clearance (LiveScan) to work with students (Ed. Code 44237). No
prospective employee can report to work without this clearance being received and the Human
Resources Manager notifying the immediate supervisor of this clearance.
Proof of a clear TB Tine test dated within the last 60 days (Ed. Code 49406) upon
employment and thereafter updated every four years
Valid California Driver’s License

ESSENTIAL DUTIES and RESPONSIBILITIES:
●
●
●
●
●

●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

Support efforts with staff of each program in The Collaborative to increase enrollment
Work with each staff of The Collaborative to identify areas of student and family interest
Identify key venues in each community used by school age children
Initiate expansion of independent study and home school enrollment for children and families
using public venues
Seek out and work on establishing relationships with programs for school aged children in faith
based organizations, public parks, recreation centers, YMCAs, athletic programs, arts programs,
service organizations, civic groups, STEAM programs etc.
Develop contacts and partnerships with groups who have children engaged in activity outside the
school and home
Create alliances with trade unions, employers, and professional organizations to promote student
engagement and community involvement
Work with agencies to introduce independent study to students impacted by AB
167/216/1806
Develop plan for growth each year in public venues in coordination with municipal authorities
Work with parents and community members to develop new programs of support for child
enrichment that would benefit from enrollment in independent study or home school.
Coordinate introduction of new programs
Be proactive in getting the independent study and homeschool format prevalent throughout the
service areas of The Collaborative in any venue working with participants ages 6 - 26 years old.
Identify community service organizations that work with school age children
Educate local organizations about partnership opportunities, procedures, and possibilities
Develop a template for program delivery that best suits the needs of unique organizations
Develop a referral structure to assist with program delivery
Provide information and updates for pages on websites and other publications
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●
●
●

Attend community based meetings and functions
Link potential partners with appropriate programs of The Collaborative
Monitor local, regional, state, national, and global trends and organizations for age group
interests to identify potential individuals or groups who might benefit from independent study
and home school partnerships

Other Duties:
●

●

Document and report to the school’s management all formal disciplinary actions involving
students and staff; addressing and resolving complaints from students, parents, and staff in a
timely manner; ensuring compliance with the school’s Uniform Complaint Policy; the school’s
Uniform Technology Policy; and the provisions of California Penal Code Section 11166 (Child
Abuse and Neglect Reporting Act)
Perform other duties as assigned

Use of Computer Technology:
To perform this job successfully, an individual should have general knowledge of database software,
how to use the internet to find information and complete tasks, email usage, order processing systems,
spreadsheet software, and word processing software. The employee is expected to acquire and
maintain a working computer with an internet connection and a printer.
Physical Demands:
The physical demands described here are representative of those that must be met by an employee to
successfully perform the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations may be made to
enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions.
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

Hearing and speaking to exchange information
Dexterity of hands and fingers to demonstrate activities
Operates a computer and other office productivity machinery
Seeing to read a variety of materials and monitor students
Bending at the waist, kneeling or crouching
Sitting or standing for extended periods of time
Lifting objects up to 50 pounds
Close vision and ability to adjust focus

Work Environment:
The work environment characteristics described here are representative of those an employee
encounters while performing the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations may be
made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions.
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●
●
●
●

Noise level is generally moderate
Meetings conducted in public and private settings
Indoor and outdoor in varying temperature
Employee must have available transportation and be able to drive up to 100 miles in a day

Employee Acknowledgement:

Employee Signature

Printed Name

Date
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Program Director - County
Job Description
Position Title:
Program Director(County)
Reports To:
Chief Executive Officer (or designee)
FLSA Status:
Exempt
School Classification: Certificated Administration
Pay Range:
Based upon experience & student enrollment
Work Schedule:
220 days
Location:
Remote Office

Position Summary: The Program Director has the responsibility for all operational functions of the Charter
School's County Collaborative program. The Program Director reports directly to the Chief Executive Officer
and works collaboratively with the Chief Executive Officer regarding legal or business aspects of the
program. All duties will be carried out within the guidelines established by the School's charter.
Qualifications:
●
●
●
●
●
●

●
●

BA or BS required, advanced degree preferred
Professional Clear CA Credential (Multiple or Single Subject), Administrative credential
preferred
3 or more years of teaching experience with progressively increasing levels of responsibility in
leadership/mentoring – work experience in a non-education context will also be considered
Minimum of five years homeschool teaching/administrative strongly preferred
Strong administrative/organizational/time-management skills required with a demonstrated
capacity to multitask/prioritize, and work independently with limited direction
State and federal fingerprint clearance (LiveScan) to work with students (Ed. Code 44237).
No prospective employee can report to work without this clearance being received and
Human Resources notifying the immediate supervisor of this clearance.
Proof of a clear TB Tine test dated within the last 60 days (Ed. Code 49406) upon
employment and thereafter updated every four years
Valid California Driver License
ESSENTIAL DUTIES and RESPONSIBILITIES:

Incumbents may perform any combination of the essential functions shown below. This position description
is not intended to be an exhaustive list of all duties, knowledge, or abilities associated with this classification,
but is intended to accurately reflect the principle job elements.
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Strategic Planning:
●
●
●

●

●

Contribute to the program and charter school’s strategic planning
Be responsible for implementation and management of the TK-12 Program
As required, contribute to and coordinate the establishment, management and delivery of the
HS program, including the development and coordination of the academic and enrichment
programs offered
Contribute and oversee the effective management and delivery of the academic programs
through various means, including direct instruction at the site, parent instruction, online
instruction, enrichment courses, etc.
Develop and organize new courses in accordance with the school’s mission and charter,
including online and onsite workshops, enrichment courses, intervention classes, etc.

Educational Leadership:
●
●
●

●
●

Provide leadership and contribute to the overall performance and welfare of the teaching
staff for the TK-12 program, with specific emphasis on the High School program
Oversee the professional development program for the TK-12 teaching staff in conjunction
with the HS program
Be the key contact for the maintenance and development of the academic program and
ensure compliance with Common Core Standards and any state and school mandated testing
requirements
Support the faculty with regard to implementation of the HS requirements and issues that
arise with families
Be familiar with the Common Core Standards and make sure that appropriate academic
progress is made towards these standards by HS students

Operational Management:
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

Hire, train, and supervise all homeschool teachers and specialists
Support faculty in managing daily HS organization and activities to ensure efficiency while
achieving student outcomes
Support faculty to ensure effective day to day organization of teaching areas
Develop, maintain and evaluate curricula as necessary to ensure appropriate academic
progress towards the Common Core standards
Run/attend weekly/monthly meetings with HS staff as necessary and attend any other
meetings with school administration as required, including board meetings
Work closely with families, students, teachers and other charter school staff and
administration to achieve efficiency in administration and academic performance
Manage resources (human and material)
Observe and evaluate HS Program Leads at a minimum annually
Establish and maintain open communication between the teachers, students, families and
administration
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●

Ensure ethical and transparent practices in management of HS program and the HS team

Financial Management:
●
●

Ensure that organization targets are met within the context of the HS program’s policies and
HS rules and regulations
Take shared responsibilities for the management of the budget for the HS program and
ensure effective budget management and monitoring for the HS program while working
closely with the charter school’s administration and board

Student Welfare:
●
●
●

Support faculty in providing academic counseling to students about their progress and
the HS program’s requirements, policies and expectations as needed
Support faculty in scheduling classes/extracurricular activities for HS students and families
Support faculty in organizing and administer of placement testing (if any) for prospective
students as well as all state and school mandated testing as required to ensure appropriate
academic student progress

Divisional and External Communication:
●
●
●

●

●

Develop and maintain close, cooperative and collegiate relationship with teachers,
families/students, and community, as appropriate.
Work cooperatively and effectively as a member of the HS management team
Contribute to the marketing and development of the HS program, including the preparation
and development of promotional materials, hosting visitors, liaising with other schools,
enterprises, organizations, community groups and the media, etc.
Participate in the growth and development of the HS program through various means,
including PR on social networks, radio, newspapers and other media, as well as participating in
school events for the promotion of the HS program
Represent the HS program positively in all conversations with staff, families, and the
community

Other Duties:
●

●

Document and report to the school’s management all formal disciplinary actions involving
students and staff; addressing and resolving complaints from students, parents, and staff in a
timely manner; ensuring compliance with the school’s Uniform Complaint Policy; the school’s
Uniform Technology Policy; and the provisions of California Penal Code Section 11166 (Child
Abuse and Neglect Reporting Act)
Perform other duties as assigned
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KNOWLEDGE AND ABILITIES
KNOWLEDGE OF:
● Common Core Standards;
● Educational choices for students and parents;
● Variety of instructional methods and techniques;
● Curriculum development and instructional improvement;
● Progressive/constructivist education methodologies;
● Multiple Intelligence Theory;
● Authentic assessment;
● Current research in education/teaching methods;
● The cognitive, social, and physical needs of children;
● Interpersonal skills using tact, patience, and courtesy.
ABILITY TO:
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

Work respectfully with diverse groups in the community;
Establish and maintain effective working relationships with others;
Utilize effective leadership skills that work well in a team setting;
Plan and organize work;
Work independently and in a team environment to implement the philosophy of the School;
Analyze situations accurately and adopt an effective course of action;
Supervise, and evaluate the performance of assigned staff;
Work closely with Program Leads to plan and implement curriculum
Oversee California Standardized Testing for the school (CELDT, Physical Fitness Testing, etc.)
Support Program leads in Participating as a member of the Student Study Team and attend
all IEP meetings for all Homeschool students;
Attend IEP meetings if needed;
Perform the essential functions of this position.

Use of Computer Technology:
To perform this job successfully, an individual should have general knowledge of database software,
how to use the internet to find information and complete tasks, email usage, order processing
systems, spreadsheet software, and word processing software. The employee is expected to acquire
and maintain a working computer with an internet connection and a printer.
Physical Demands:
The physical demands described here are representative of those that must be met by an employee
to successfully perform the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations may be
made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions.
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●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

Hearing and speaking to exchange information
Dexterity of hands and fingers to demonstrate activities
Operates a computer and other office productivity machinery
Seeing to read a variety of materials and monitor students
Bending at the waist, kneeling or crouching
Sitting or standing for extended periods of time
Lifting objects up to 50 pounds
Close vision and ability to adjust focus

Work Environment:
The work environment characteristics described here are representative of those an employee
encounters while performing the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations may be
made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions.
●
●
●
●

Noise level is generally moderate
Meetings conducted in public and private settings
Indoor and outdoor in varying temperature
Employee must have available transportation and be able to drive up to 100 miles in a day

Employee Acknowledgement:

Employee Signature

Printed Name

Date
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Office Clerk
Job Description
Reports To:
FLSA Status:
School Classification:
Pay Range:
Work Schedule:
Location:

Executive Director of Student Services, Asst. Director of Business Services
Non-Exempt
Classified
$35,000-$40,000/annual
12 months
Onsite Office

Position Summary: The Office Clerk will maintain student records and perform a wide range of clerical
and administrative tasks.
Qualifications: To perform this job successfully, an individual must be able to perform each essential
duty satisfactorily. The requirements listed below are representative of the knowledge, skill, and/or
ability required.
●
●
●

●

Any combination equivalent to graduation from high school and three years clerical or
secretarial experience
Two (2) years of related experience preferred
State and federal fingerprint clearance (LiveScan) to work with students (Ed. Code 44237). No
prospective employee can report to work without this clearance being received and the
Human Resources Manager notifying the immediate supervisor of this clearance.
Proof of a clear TB test dated within the last 60 days (Ed. Code 49406) upon employment
and thereafter updated every four years

General skills:
● Team player
● Love of learning – a lifelong learner
● Flexibility and adaptability
● Well developed, clear communication and interpersonal skills that maintain a respectful,
professional and courteous manner
● Able to communicate effectively and regularly with the department head regarding questions
and concerns
● Organized

●

●
●
●
●
●

Computer and technology literacy:
○ Operate office equipment including a calculator, copier, fax machine, computer and
assigned software.
○ Knowledge and experience using Google docs, Google spreadsheets and other online
collaboration tools to send and receive information
○ Methods of collecting and organizing data and information
○ Basic database skills
Perform varied and responsible educational assistant duties
Record-keeping techniques
Methods of collecting and organizing data and information
Maintain confidentiality of sensitive and privileged information
Work independently with little direction

ESSENTIAL DUTIES and RESPONSIBILITIES:
●
●

Follow policies and procedures that ensure that student record data is entered, processed,
and stored in accordance with legal and school guidelines
Maintain confidential information

●

Student Enrollment and Withdrawal
○ Answer parent questions regarding enrollment
○ Complete intake process with parents prior to enrollment
○ Check CALPADS for previous enrollment history

●

Cume File Maintenance
○ Create, review, organize, and maintain cume files and supporting documentation
following school guidelines and processes
○ Request cume files from other schools
○ Prepare and send cume files to other schools
○ Ensure cume files are in compliance with student record keeping laws and are ready
for audit

●

Administrative
○ Maintain physical and computerized records
○ Perform general tasks such as making copies, answering phones
○ Maintain inventory level of office materials and supplies
○ Provide clerical support to office staff
Office Clerk Job Description
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Other Duties
● Perform other duties as assigned
Use of Computer Technology:
To perform this job successfully, an individual should have general knowledge of database software,
how to use the internet to find information and complete tasks, email usage, order processing
systems, spreadsheet software, and word processing software. The employee is expected to acquire
and maintain a working computer with an internet connection and a printer.
Physical Demands:
The physical demands described here are representative of those that must be met by an employee
to successfully perform the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations may be
made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions.
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

Hearing and speaking to exchange information
Dexterity of hands and fingers to demonstrate activities
Operates a computer and other office productivity machinery
Seeing to read a variety of materials
Bending at the waist, kneeling or crouching
Sitting or standing for extended periods of time
Lifting objects up to 50 pounds
Close vision and ability to adjust focus

Work Environment:
The work environment characteristics described here are representative of those an employee
encounters while performing the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations may be
made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions.
●
●
●

Noise level is generally moderate
Meetings conducted in an office setting
Indoor varying in temperature

Employee Acknowledgement:

____________________________
Employee Signature

____________________________
Printed Name

_______________
Date
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Lead Teacher County
Stipend Job Description
Position Title:
Reports To:
FLSA Status:
School Classification:
Pay Range:
Work Schedule:
Location:

Lead Teacher County
Program Lead
Exempt
Certificated
$4,000/annually
5 Additional Days
Remote Office

Position Summary: The Lead Teacher works collaboratively with members of the department and school
to ensure the school’s goals, policies, procedures, and mission are upheld within the department served.
Qualifications: To perform this job successfully, an individual must be able to perform each essential
duty satisfactorily. The requirements listed below are representative of the knowledge, skill, and/or
ability required.
●
●

●
●

A valid, current, and appropriate California state teaching credential for teaching staff. A copy
of Teaching Credential to be provided and kept current.
State and federal fingerprint clearance (LiveScan) to work with students (Ed. Code 44237). No
prospective employee can report to work without this clearance being received and Human
Resources notifying the immediate supervisor of this clearance.
Proof of a clear TB Tine test dated within the last 60 days (Ed. Code 49406) upon
employment and thereafter updated every four years
Valid California Driver’s License
ESSENTIAL FUNCTIONS and RESPONSIBILITIES:

●
●
●
●
●

Department liaison and spokesperson
Works with department members to fulfill school-wide SMART goals, policies and procedures
Works collaboratively to uphold the school’s mission and vision
Attends and participated in all department chair meetings
Hosts and facilitates department meetings

Lead Teacher Other Duties
● One additional week of work (report for work 1 week before teachers)
● Booking lab science days/locations
● Ordering lab supplies
● Upkeep of teacher/student resource folders
● Training/Mentoring new teachers
● Oversight of activities planning

Lead Teacher County Stipend Job Description
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●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

●

Credit Recovery Finals master list
Completion rate spreadsheets
Professional leadership to staff, present relevant best practices
Leadership team meetings as needed
Other projects as needed
Proctoring duties as needed during the testing season
Respond to all school related written correspondence, phone calls, voicemails, and emails
within 24 business hours
Document and report to the school’s management all formal disciplinary actions involving
students; supporting management with addressing and resolving complaints from students
and parents in a timely manner; ensuring compliance with the provisions of California Penal
Code Section 11166 (Child Abuse and Neglect Reporting Act)
Perform other duties as assigned

Use of Computer Technology:
To perform this job successfully, an individual should have general knowledge of database software,
how to use the internet to find information and complete tasks, email usage, order processing
systems, spreadsheet software, and word processing software. The employee is expected to acquire
and maintain a working computer with an internet connection and a printer.
Physical Demands:
The physical demands described here are representative of those that must be met by an employee
to successfully perform the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations may be
made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions.
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

Hearing and speaking to exchange information
Dexterity of hands and fingers to demonstrate activities
Operates a computer and other office productivity machinery
Seeing to read a variety of materials and monitor students
Bending at the waist, kneeling or crouching
Sitting or standing for extended periods of time
Lifting objects up to 50 pounds
Close vision and ability to adjust focus

Work Environment:
The work environment characteristics described here are representative of those an employee
encounters while performing the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations may be
made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions.
●
●
●

Noise level is generally moderate
Meetings conducted in public and private settings
Indoor and outdoor in varying temperature
Lead Teacher County Stipend Job Description
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●

Employee must have available transportation and be able to drive up to 100 miles in a day

Employee Acknowledgement:

____________________________
Employee Signature

____________________________
Printed Name

_______________
Date
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County Collaborative High Substitute Teacher/Counselor
Job Description
Position Title:
Reports To:
FLSA Status:
School Classification:
Pay Range:
Work Schedule:
Location:

Substitute Teacher
Program Director
Exempt
Certificated
$
-$
/day
As needed
Virtual

Position Summary: The Substitute Teacher provides instruction to a group of 20-24 students in a variety
of classroom environments.

Qualifications: To perform this job successfully, an individual must be able to perform each essential
duty satisfactorily. The requirements listed below are representative of the knowledge, skill, and/or
ability required.
●
●
●

●
●

Passing scores for the basic skills requirement
-day substitute teaching permit preferred
State and federal fingerprint clearance (LiveScan) to work with students (Ed. Code
). No
prospective employee can report to work without this clearance being received and Human
Resources notifying the immediate supervisor of this clearance.
Proof of a clear TB Tine test dated within the last
days (Ed. Code
) upon
employment and thereafter updated every four years
Valid California Driver’s License

ESSENTIAL FUNCTIONS and RESPONSIBILITIES:
●
●
●
●
●
●

Direct the learning procedure toward accomplishing curriculum objectives and goals as
implied in the lesson plans for projects, lessons or units assigned
Make use of instructional procedures and materials which are most suitable for attaining
lesson goals
Go through the attendance according to the procedures of the school
Ensure an orderly and tidy classroom and may need to keep tables and chairs well arranged
and clear of the chalkboard
Adhere to all procedures, guidelines, and policies followed by regular teachers in line with
recommended teaching procedure
Ensure a sustainable relationship with parents, pupils, school personnel and members of the
public by communicating in a confidential, polite and refined manner.

Substitute Teacher Job Description
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WORK SCHEDULE:
● Flexible work days, approximately . hours per day.
● Assignments are either day-to-day or long term.
Other Duties
● Proctoring duties as needed during the testing season
● Respond to all school related written correspondence, phone calls, voicemails, and emails
within
business hours
● Document and report to the school’s management all formal disciplinary actions involving
students; supporting management with addressing and resolving complaints from students
and parents in a timely manner; ensuring compliance with the provisions of California Penal
Code Section
(Child Abuse and Neglect Reporting Act)
● Perform other duties as assigned

Use of Computer Technology:
To perform this job successfully, an individual should have general knowledge of database software,
how to use the internet to find information and complete tasks, email usage, order processing
systems, spreadsheet software, and word processing software. The employee is expected to acquire
and maintain a working computer with an internet connection and a printer.
Physical Demands:
The physical demands described here are representative of those that must be met by an employee
to successfully perform the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations may be
made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions.
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

Hearing and speaking to exchange information
Dexterity of hands and fingers to demonstrate activities
Operates a computer and other office productivity machinery
Seeing to read a variety of materials and monitor students
Bending at the waist, kneeling or crouching
Sitting or standing for extended periods of time
Lifting objects up to
pounds
Close vision and ability to adjust focus

Work Environment:
The work environment characteristics described here are representative of those an employee
encounters while performing the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations may be
made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions.
●

Noise level is generally moderate

Substitute Teacher Job Description
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●
●

Meetings conducted in public and private settings
Indoor and outdoor in varying temperature

Employee Acknowledgement:

____________________________
Employee Signature

____________________________
Printed Name

_______________
Date
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Independent Study/Blended High School/At-Risk Teacher
Job Description
Position Title:
Reports To:
FLSA Status:
School Classification:
Pay Range:
Work Schedule:
Location:

Independent Study/Blended High School/At-Risk Teacher
Program Director
Exempt
Certificated
Per pay scale below
days
Onsite/Remote Office

Position Summary: Provide stimulating learning experiences to ensure academic success and to motivate
students according to their individualized learning plan.

Qualifications: To perform this job successfully, an individual must be able to perform each essential
duty satisfactorily. The requirements listed below are representative of the knowledge, skill, and/or
ability required.
●
●

●
●

A valid, current, and appropriate California state teaching credential for teaching staff. A copy
of Teaching Credential to be provided and kept current.
State and federal fingerprint clearance (LiveScan) to work with students (Ed. Code
). No
prospective employee can report to work without this clearance being received and Human
Resources notifying the immediate supervisor of this clearance.
Proof of a clear TB Tine test dated within the last
days (Ed. Code
) upon
employment and thereafter updated every four years
Valid California Driver’s License

ESSENTIAL DUTIES and RESPONSIBILITIES:
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

Support the mission, vision, and goals of Charter School.
Serve as a contributing member of the Charter staff and collaborate with team members to
achieve the school’s goals.
Teach all courses of study prescribed by the State of California.
Assign and monitor required courses per transcript evaluation.
Deliver individualized and small group instruction.
Develop, adapt, and use instructional materials to teach students of varying physical,
emotional, and mental aptitudes.
Create and maintain a safe, supportive, and effective learning environment.
Evaluate students' academic and social growth through multiple measures.
Issue grades and credits earned, and prepare progress reports and report cards.
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●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

Implement school adopted assessment program into learning plans. Facilitate required
testing and assessments.
Assist with Community College enrollments and documentation.
Communicate regularly and effectively with parents, minimally every twenty school days.
Assist in preparation of withdrawal documentation, including withdrawal grades and credit
earned.
Participate and collaborate in meetings to improve student learning (e.g. SST, IEP,
intervention, curriculum development, individualized learning plan).
Select and requisition instructional materials; maintain inventory.
Identify student needs and cooperate with other professional staff members in assessing and
helping solve students’ health, attitude, and learning challenges.
Create and maintain all required necessary Independent Study compliance records
(attendance, compliance) in the student information system (School Pathways).
Maintain professional competence through professional development educational activities.
Participate cooperatively with the appropriate administrator in employee evaluation.
Utilize technology as a means of educating and communicating.
Operate a computer and standard office equipment.
Supervise students during out of classroom activities as necessary (e.g. field trips).
Participate in faculty committees, the sponsorship of student activities, and program wide
activities.

Additional Lead Teacher Duties (if applicable):
● Oversee and manage the entire program
● Ensuring compliance with the charter’s Uniform Complaint Policy; the charter’s Uniform
Technology Policy
● Administer standardized tests in accordance with state requirements.
Other Duties
● Proctoring duties as needed during the testing season
● Respond to all school related written correspondence, phone calls, voicemails, and emails
within
business hours
● Document and report to the school’s management all formal disciplinary actions involving
students; supporting management with addressing and resolving complaints from students
and parents in a timely manner; ensuring compliance with the provisions of California Penal
Code Section
(Child Abuse and Neglect Reporting Act)
● Perform other duties as assigned

KNOWLEDGE AND ABILITIES
Knowledge of:
● Current trends and research concerning the growth and development of th- th grade
children.
Independent Study/Blended High School/At-Risk Teacher Job Description
Board Approved: June 13, 2017

of

●
●
●
●
●
●
●

Principles, theories, practices, and methodologies used in curriculum development,
instruction, and assessment.
Procedures and best practices that promote appropriate student conduct (e.g. classroom
management strategies).
Educational research concerning extrinsic and intrinsic student motivation.
Guidance of special education practices, policies, and procedures.
Applicable sections of the Education Code and other applicable laws.

Ability to:
● Demonstrate effective interpersonal skills.
● Communicate clearly in a timely manner, both orally and in writing.
● Foster teamwork in a collaborative work environment.
● Direct, motivate, listen to, and establish effective rapport with students and parents.
● Analyze and assess student learning.
● Use technology in an effective manner for teaching, communicating, analyzing, and
reporting.
● Motivate students to develop the skills, attitudes, and understanding needed to set a good
foundation for secondary level education, in accordance with each student's ability.
● Maintain professional, cordial relationships with students, parents, and staff.
● Monitor children in classrooms and other learning environments.
● Use professional judgment in making reasonable decisions or recommendations in
conjunction with other staff members and/or administrative leadership.
● Solve problems and take responsibility for a variety of situations in a reasonable manner
where only limited standardization exists.
● Interpret a variety of instructions furnished in written, oral, diagram, or schedule form.
● Provide leadership to students in emergency preparedness drills and during actual
emergencies, following the charter’s Safety Plan. the site emergency preparedness plan.
Supervise and lead students during monthly site disaster drills and an annual“charter wide”
disaster drill.
Use of Computer Technology:
To perform this job successfully, an individual should have general knowledge of database software,
how to use the internet to find information and complete tasks, email usage, order processing
systems, spreadsheet software, and word processing software. The employee is expected to acquire
and maintain a working computer with an internet connection and a printer.

Physical Demands:
The physical demands described here are representative of those that must be met by an employee
to successfully perform the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations may be
made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions.
●

Hearing and speaking to exchange information
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●
●
●
●
●
●
●

Dexterity of hands and fingers to demonstrate activities
Operates a computer and other office productivity machinery
Seeing to read a variety of materials and monitor students
Bending at the waist, kneeling or crouching
Sitting or standing for extended periods of time
Lifting objects up to
pounds
Close vision and ability to adjust focus

Work Environment:
The work environment characteristics described here are representative of those an employee
encounters while performing the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations may be
made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions.
●
●
●
●

Noise level is generally moderate
Meetings conducted in public and private settings
Indoor and outdoor in varying temperature
Employee must have available transportation and be able to drive up to

miles in a day

Employee Acknowledgement:

____________________________
Employee Signature

____________________________
Printed Name

_______________
Date
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Special Education Case Manager
Job Description

Position Title:
Reports To:

FLSA Status:
School Classification:
Pay Range:
Work Schedule:
Location:


Special Education Case Manager
Program Director or Designee
Exempt
Certificated
$63,962.80 - $78,000.00
185 days (Mild/Moderate) 205 days (Mod/Severe)
Onsite and Remote Office

Position Summary:
Under the direction of the Program Director or Designee plans, organizes, presents, and
evaluates a program of meaningful instruction to pupils in areas assigned and carries out
other assigned related duties necessary to the successful operation of the school.
ESSENTIAL DUTIES and RESPONSIBILITIES
1. Develop, write and manage IEPs including annual goals for students with special
needs. Coordinate IEPs and follow up with attendees.
2. Provide direct SAI (either online or in person) to students in accordance with their
IEP, and support assigned students receiving SAI.
3. Complete academic assessments and write Assessment Plans, Reports, Prior Written
Notices, and other related IEP documents in preparation for IEPs or to assess
ongoing progress, within appropriate timelines, and as needed.
4. Assists in the selection of books, equipment, and other instructional materials within
the school or department.
5. Collaborate with specialists (OTs, SLPs and other related service providers) and
school staff on monitoring student progress throughout the year, including annual
IEP goals.
6. Follow up with service providers to confirm that IEP attendance, reports, and
services are being completed, and complete IEP Progress Reports for each student,
including Related Services Provider progress as reported by the Related Services
Providers.
7. Schedule and hold individual monthly phone conferences with the general education
teachers and for families of students assigned to caseload.
8. Report and follow up on all parent, teacher and/or service provider concerns. Report
all concerns to the Special Education Administrative Team.
9. Draft ITP’s and hold transition meetings, as appropriate.
10. Provide ongoing consultation and guidance on the use of new and innovative
methods, strategies, and materials which enhance the education progress of students
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with special needs.
11. Ensure all documents are submitted and available prior to IEP meeting
(psychologist’s report, related services provider reports/goals, GE/parent progress
reports) and forwarded to IEP team members.
12. Works to establish and maintain open lines of communication with students and
their parents concerning both the broad academic and behavioral progress of all
assigned students.
13. Maintains accurate and correct records as required by law, District Policy and
Administrative Regulation. Updates appropriate database(s) with services,
accommodations, IEP dates and other necessary information. Track IEPs. Provide
parents with a copy of all reports.
14. At the end of the year gather all individual student records and communications for
digital archiving (IEP’s, monthly progress notes from teacher, parent input form,
reports from evaluations, etc.)
15. Obtain academic present levels/baselines.
16. Complete ongoing contact logs and service logs.
17. Respond as soon as possible but no later than 24 hours to parent, student, teacher
and administrative inquiries via phone and/or e-mail during regular work week.
18. Attend staff trainings, department and teacher meetings, professional development,
committees.
Qualifications:
To perform this job successfully, an individual must be able to perform each essential duty
satisfactorily. The requirements listed below are representative of the knowledge, skill,
and/or ability required.
1. Bachelor’s Degree from an accredited college or university
2. Must hold a valid California Education Specialist Instruction
Credential Mild/Moderate
3. minimum of two years teaching experience in special education at the K-12 level
4. Strong content and subject-matter knowledge
5. Ability to support and guide adults, as well as students
6. Strong written and verbal communication skills
7. Organization and time-management skills
8. Excellent writing and grammar skills
9. Flexible schedule
10. TB Test clearance & DOJ background check
11. Familiarity with the CA Common Core State Standards
12. An enthusiasm for curriculum development to support a young and growing
school program.
13. Must include a copy of a valid California Mild/Moderate Education
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Specialist Instruction Credential
14. Must have strong computer skills including word processing, entering data into
a database, using the internet, electronic mail, and other digital literacy skills
15. Proficiency in SEIS and experience using SEIS in a professional capacity
16. Must have own transportation, a valid driver’s license, and vehicle insurance as
required by California law.
Supervision received and exercised:
1. Receives direction from higher level supervisory or management staff.
2. Exercises technical and functional supervision over student access to curriculum.
Competencies:
1. Business Ethics: I nspires the trust of others; keeps commitments; treats people
with respect; upholds organizational values; works with integrity and ethically.
2. Communications: E
 xhibits good listening and comprehension; expresses ideas and
thoughts in written form; expresses ideas and thoughts verbally; keeps others
adequately informed; selects and uses appropriate communication methods.
3. Leadership: E
 xhibits confidence in self and others; inspires respect and trust;
motivates others to perform well; reacts well under pressure; shows courage to
take action.
4. Planning & Organization: Integrates changes smoothly; plans for additional
resources; prioritizes and plans work activities; sets goals and objectives; uses time
efficiently; works in an organized manner.
Other Duties:
5. Proctoring duties as needed during the testing season
6. Respond to all school related written correspondence, phone calls, voicemails, and
emails within 24 business hours
7. Document and report to the school’s management all formal disciplinary actions
involving students; supporting management with addressing and resolving
complaints from students and parents in a timely manner; ensuring compliance
with the provisions of California Penal Code Section 11166 (Child Abuse and
Neglect Reporting Act)
8. Perform other duties as assigned
Use of Computer Technology:
To perform this job successfully, an individual should have general knowledge of database
software, how to use the internet to find information and complete tasks, email usage,
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order processing systems, spreadsheet software, and word processing software. The
employee is expected to acquire and maintain a working computer with an internet
connection and a printer. The employee adapts to new technologies; demonstrates
required skills; keeps technical skills up to date; troubleshoots technological problems;
uses technology to increase productivity.
Physical Demands:
The physical demands described here are representative of those that must be met by an
employee to successfully perform the essential functions of this job. Reasonable
accommodations may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the
essential functions.
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.
8.

Hearing and speaking to exchange information
Dexterity of hands and fingers to demonstrate activities
Operates a computer and other office productivity machinery
Seeing to read a variety of materials and monitor students
Bending at the waist, kneeling or crouching
Sitting or standing for extended periods of time
Lifting objects up to 50 pounds
Close vision and ability to adjust focus

Work Environment:
The work environment characteristics described here are representative of those an
employee encounters while performing the essential functions of this job. Reasonable
accommodations may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the
essential functions. A flexible schedule is required. This position is a virtual position
working from a home office. Must have ability to travel throughout the school year within
and between assigned geographic areas to support students, attend regularly scheduled
meetings, proctor state exams and participate in school activities and orientations.
9. Noise level is generally moderate
10. Meetings conducted in public and private settings
11. Indoor and outdoor in varying temperature
12. Employee must have available transportation and be able to drive up to 100 miles
in a day
The above job description is not intended to be an all-inclusive list of duties
and standards of the position. Incumbents will follow any other
instructions, and perform any other related duties, as assigned by their
supervisor.
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______________________
Employee Signature
______________________
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Special Education Case Manager Job Description
Board Approved: July 11, 2018

5 of 5

Special Education Program Specialist
Job Description
Position Title:
Reports To:
FLSA Status:
School Classification:
Pay Range:
Work Schedule:
Location:

Special Education Program Specialist
Assistant Director of Special Education and Director of Special Education
Exempt
Certificated
$90,000 - $100,000/year
220 days
Onsite/Remote Office

Position Summary:
Provides overall program and technical assistance; provides and coordinates staff development in
one or more areas of expertise.
Qualifications: To perform this job successfully, an individual must be able to perform each essential
duty satisfactorily. The requirements listed below are representative of the knowledge, skill, and/or
ability required.
●
●
●

●
●
●

A valid, current, and appropriate California state special education credential in the area of
expertise for teaching staff. A copy of Teaching Credential to be provided and kept current.
Administration and/or supervision desirable.
State and federal fingerprint clearance (LiveScan) to work with students (Ed. Code 44237). No
prospective employee can report to work without this clearance being received and Human
Resources notifying the immediate supervisor of this clearance.
Proof of a clear TB Tine test dated within the last 60 days (Ed. Code 49406) upon
employment and thereafter updated every four years
Valid California Driver’s License
A Master’s degree in an appropriate credential field and successful experience in the
education of individuals with exceptional needs.
ESSENTIAL DUTIES and RESPONSIBILITIES:

●
●
●
●

●

Observes, consults with, and assists Education Specialists, and designated instruction and
services instructors.
Plans programs, coordinates curricular resources, and assists in evaluating the effectiveness of
programs for individuals with exceptional needs.
Provides coordination, consultation and program development in his/her area(s) of expertise.
Assists in planning and implementation, and participates in staff development, program
development, and innovation of special methods and approaches of staff development
activities at school, charter administration and SELPA levels.
Participates as a member of IEP team as appropriate.
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●
●
●
●
●
●
●

Assists special education personnel in implementing and coordinating the services in the IEP.
Responsible for monitoring curriculum, materials, and methodology in his/her area(s) of
expertise.
Serves as a resource in the identification, selection, and use of instructional materials.
Assists in the articulation of special education programs between TK-12 grades.
Maintains knowledge of current laws and regulations pertaining to fair hearing materials.
Attends meetings, conferences, and professional development training.
Performs other duties as assigned.

Other Duties
● Proctoring duties as needed during the testing season
● Respond to all school related written correspondence, phone calls, voicemails, and emails
within 24 business hours
● Document and report to the school’s management all formal disciplinary actions involving
students; supporting management with addressing and resolving complaints from students
and parents in a timely manner; ensuring compliance with the provisions of California Penal
Code Section 11166 (Child Abuse and Neglect Reporting Act)
● Perform other duties as assigned
Use of Computer Technology:
To perform this job successfully, an individual should have general knowledge of database software,
how to use the internet to find information and complete tasks, email usage, order processing
systems, spreadsheet software, and word processing software. The employee is expected to acquire
and maintain a working computer with an internet connection and a printer.
Physical Demands:
The physical demands described here are representative of those that must be met by an employee
to successfully perform the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations may be
made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions.
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

Hearing and speaking to exchange information
Dexterity of hands and fingers to demonstrate activities
Operates a computer and other office productivity machinery
Seeing to read a variety of materials and monitor students
Bending at the waist, kneeling or crouching
Sitting or standing for extended periods of time
Lifting objects up to 50 pounds
Close vision and ability to adjust focus

Work Environment:
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The work environment characteristics described here are representative of those an employee
encounters while performing the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations may be
made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions.
●
●
●
●

Noise level is generally moderate
Meetings conducted in public and private settings
Indoor and outdoor in varying temperature
Employee must have available transportation and be able to drive up to 100 miles in a day

Employee Acknowledgement:

____________________________
Employee Signature

____________________________
Printed Name

_______________
Date
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Education Specialist - Mild/Moderate Disabilities
Job Description
Reports To:

Director of Special Education

FLSA Status:

Exempt

Pay Range:

$65,625 - $73,911

Work Schedule:

185 days

Location:

Onsite and Remote Office

Position Summary: The Special Education Education Specialist Mild/Moderate Disabilities is responsible
to provide direct special education Specialized Academic Instructional services to students with disabilities
in person and/or virtually, according to their Individualized Education Program Plan (IEP); provide and
manage all facets of the IEP planning for students with disabilities including but not limited to case
management, assessment, conducting annual/triennial IEP meetings and other case management duties;
provide special education expertise to/for students with disabilities in the areas of academic assessments
(formative, standardized, and others), Individualized Transition Planning (ITP) for students age 16 to 22,
community and resource linkages that assist students with IEPs in accessing available resources that
support their disability, and consultation and collaboration with students’ general education teachers,
families, the Special Education Department, and other stakeholders on behalf of students with disabilities.
Minimum Qualifications: To perform this job successfully, an individual must be able to perform each
essential duty satisfactorily.
● Two (2) years of teaching experience. Charter school experience is preferred.
● Bachelor’s degree from an accredited college or university.
● Must hold a valid California Education Specialist Instruction Credential Mild/Moderate with
Autism authorization and English Learner certification.
● Hold and maintain a valid California Driver’s License; proof of automobile insurance; and full
time use of a dependable automobile that is insured pursuant to California regulations.
● State and federal background clearance (LiveScan) to work with students (Ed. Code 44237).
No prospective employee can report to work without this clearance being received and the
Director of Human Resources notifying the immediate supervisor of this clearance.
● Proof of a clear TB test dated within the last 60 days (Ed. Code 49406) upon employment
and thereafter updated every four years.

Education Specialist Updated Job Description

General skills:
● Team player
● Love of learning – a lifelong learner
● Flexible and adaptable
● Open to differing views and objectives
● Conflict resolution skills
● Uphold the Collaborative’s vision and mission by acting with integrity
ESSENTIAL DUTIES and RESPONSIBILITIES
1.

2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.

8.
9.
10.

11.

12.

Complete thorough initial evaluations, additional assessments and three-year reevaluations
within district, state and federal guidelines and develop legally compliant assessment reports
and IEP’s.
Utilize comprehensive assessment results in developing appropriate IEP goals and objectives
to accommodate the wide variety of individual needs of each student.
Participate as a member of the IEP team to develop IEP goals, objectives, adaptations,
accommodations, modifications and instructional plans; implement and monitor the IEP.
Provide appropriate instruction and services to students whose needs have been identified in
an IEP, and others as requested by Program Director or Director of Special Education.
Design educational programs to meet individual learning needs within the least restrictive
environment.
Utilize core curriculum to develop lesson plans to instruct/remediate diagnosed learning
needs and make progress towards agreed upon goals.
Provide individual and/or group instruction in remediation to adapt the general education
curriculum as per the unique needs of the student and effectively utilize the available
instructional time.
Employ a variety of behavior management strategies and techniques, including behavior
modification, reinforcement and other positive behavior shaping techniques.
Prepare, administer, score, and record the results of criterion and/or norm referenced and
group standardized tests in evaluating student growth and progress.
Provide consultation and/or in-service to school staff and parents which relates to student
assessment, specialized instruction, accommodations and modifications, and behavior
management techniques.
Maintain records and reports, and complete frequent progress monitoring (i.e. data on goals
and objectives, service logs, progress reports, etc.) that are required by the district, state
and/or federal regulations.
Serve as case manager of the IEP, when requested participate in the Student Study Team or
Education Specialist - Mild/Moderate Disabilities Job Description
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13.
14.

15.
16.

17.
18.

other types of meeting.
Communicate effectively and work collaboratively with all other school district personnel and
parents while maintaining confidentiality at all times.
Work collaboratively and consultatively with teachers in the implementation and design of
pre-referral interventions and accommodations/modifications in the general education
curriculum, interpreting the abilities and disabilities of these students, and assisting the
student’s curriculum needs; assist other professional staff members in supporting the unique
psychological or disciplinary concerns of such students.
Plan and coordinate the work of assigned instructional assistants as well as provide training
for effective work with students.
Assist students with personal care such as feeding, toileting, changing diapers and clothing,
cleaning/grooming and other physical or health care needs. Assist in transferring students in
and out of wheelchairs, braces, and other types of orthopedic equipment as necessary; assure
the safe use and operation of wheelchairs and other orthopedic equipment
Perform direct Specialized Academic Instruction, observations, and assessments at off-site,
public locations.
Maintain professional competence through professional development via numerous
educational activities; attend and participate in a variety of assigned meetings, conferences,
trainings and/or special events.

Other Duties:
● Proctoring duties as needed during the testing season.
● Document and report to the school’s management all formal disciplinary actions involving
students; supporting management with addressing and resolving complaints from students
and parents in a timely manner; ensuring compliance with the provisions of California Penal
Code Section 11166 (Child Abuse and Neglect Reporting Act).
● Respond to all school related written correspondence, phone calls, voicemails, and emails
within 24 business hours.
● Perform other related duties as assigned.
Knowledge and Abilities: To perform this job successfully, an individual must be able to perform each
essential duty satisfactorily. The requirements listed below are representative of the knowledge, skill,
and/or ability required.
●
●
●
●

Federal and State laws and regulations surrounding the provision of special education services
and district policies and procedures
Strong content and subject-matter knowledge
California Common Core State Standards
Principles, theories, techniques, and strategies pertaining to the teaching and instruction of
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●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

students with special needs
Educational trends and research findings pertaining to students with disabilities
Behavior management and behavior shaping strategies
Ability to effectively support students’ with meeting or exceeding current IEP goals
Strong written and verbal communication skills
Organization and time-management skills
Excellent writing and grammar skills
Use technology in an effective manner for communicating, analyzing, and reporting
Establish and maintain collaborative working relationships with all stakeholders

Business Ethics: Inspires the trust of others; keeps commitments; treats people with respect; upholds
organizational values; works with integrity and ethically.
Communications: Exhibits good listening and comprehension; expresses ideas and thoughts in
written form; expresses ideas and thoughts verbally; keeps others adequately informed; selects and
uses appropriate communication methods.
Leadership: Exhibits confidence in self and others; inspires respect and trust; motivates others to
perform well; reacts well under pressure; shows courage to take action.
Planning & Organization: Integrates changes smoothly; plans for additional resources; prioritizes and
plans work activities; sets goals and objectives; uses time efficiently; works in an organized manner.
Use of Computer Technology: To perform this job successfully, an individual must be proficient
utilizing SEIS software prefered, Microsoft Office applications specifically Microsoft Excel, and a
variety of web-based applications; have the ability to utilize the Internet to conduct research and
participate in virtual meetings; and respond to a high volume of emails in a timely manner.
Physical Demands: The physical demands described here are representative of those that must be
met by an employee to successfully perform the essential functions of this job. Reasonable
accommodations may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential
functions.
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

Hearing and speaking to exchange information
Dexterity of hands and fingers to demonstrate activities
Operates a computer and other office productivity machinery
Seeing to read a variety of materials and monitor students
Close vision and ability to adjust focus
Bending at the waist, kneeling or crouching
Sitting or standing for extended periods of time
Education Specialist - Mild/Moderate Disabilities Job Description
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●

Lifting objects up to 50 pounds with or without assistance

Work Environment: The work environment characteristics described here are representative of those
an employee encounters while performing the essential functions of this job. Reasonable
accommodations may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential
functions. A flexible schedule is required. This position is a virtual position working from a home
office. Must have ability to travel throughout the school year within and between assigned geographic
areas to support students, attend regularly scheduled meetings, proctor state exams and participate
in school activities and orientations.
●
●
●
●

Noise level is generally moderate
Meetings conducted in public and remote office settings
Indoor and outdoor in varying temperature
Employee must have available transportation and be able to drive up to 100 miles in a day

The above job description is not intended to be an all-inclusive list of duties and standards of the
position. Incumbents will follow any other instructions, and perform any other related duties, as
assigned by their supervisor.
Employee Acknowledgement:

____________________________
Employee Signature

____________________________
Printed Name

_______________
Date
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Independent Study Teacher (County)
Job Description
Position Title:
Reports To:
FLSA Status:
School Classification:
Pay Range:
Work Schedule:
Location:

Independent Study Teacher
Program Lead
Exempt
Certificated
$ ,
-$ ,
days
Onsite/Remote Office

Position Summary: Provide stimulating learning experiences to ensure academic success and to motivate
students according to their individualized learning plan.

Qualifications: To perform this job successfully, an individual must be able to perform each essential
duty satisfactorily. The requirements listed below are representative of the knowledge, skill, and/or
ability required.
●
●

●
●

A valid, current, and appropriate California state teaching credential for teaching staff. A copy
of Teaching Credential to be provided and kept current.
State and federal fingerprint clearance (LiveScan) to work with students (Ed. Code
). No
prospective employee can report to work without this clearance being received and Human
Resources notifying the immediate supervisor of this clearance.
Proof of a clear TB Tine test dated within the last
days (Ed. Code
) upon
employment and thereafter updated every four years
Valid California Driver’s License

ESSENTIAL DUTIES and RESPONSIBILITIES:
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

Support the mission, vision, and goals of Charter School.
Serve as a contributing member of the Charter staff and collaborate with team members to
achieve the school’s goals.
Teach all courses of study prescribed by the State of California.
Assign and monitor required courses per transcript evaluation.
Deliver individualized and small group instruction.
Develop, adapt, and use instructional materials to teach students of varying physical,
emotional, and mental aptitudes.
Create and maintain a safe, supportive, and effective learning environment.
Evaluate students' academic and social growth through multiple measures.
Issue grades and credits earned, and prepare progress reports and report cards.
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●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

Implement school adopted assessment program into learning plans. Facilitate required
testing and assessments.
Assist with Community College enrollments and documentation.
Communicate regularly and effectively with parents, minimally every twenty school days.
Assist in preparation of withdrawal documentation, including withdrawal grades and credit
earned.
Participate and collaborate in meetings to improve student learning (e.g. SST, IEP,
intervention, curriculum development, individualized learning plan).
Select and requisition instructional materials; maintain inventory.
Identify student needs and cooperate with other professional staff members in assessing and
helping solve students’ health, attitude, and learning challenges.
Create and maintain all required necessary Independent Study compliance records
(attendance, compliance) in the student information system (School Pathways).
Maintain professional competence through professional development educational activities.
Participate cooperatively with the appropriate administrator in employee evaluation.
Utilize technology as a means of educating and communicating.
Operate a computer and standard office equipment.
Supervise students during out of classroom activities as necessary (e.g. field trips).
Participate in faculty committees, the sponsorship of student activities, and program wide
activities.

Additional Lead Teacher Duties (if applicable):
● Oversee and manage the entire program
● Ensuring compliance with the charter’s Uniform Complaint Policy; the charter’s Uniform
Technology Policy
● Administer standardized tests in accordance with state requirements.
Other Duties
● Proctoring duties as needed during the testing season
● Respond to all school related written correspondence, phone calls, voicemails, and emails
within
business hours
● Document and report to the school’s management all formal disciplinary actions involving
students; supporting management with addressing and resolving complaints from students
and parents in a timely manner; ensuring compliance with the provisions of California Penal
Code Section
(Child Abuse and Neglect Reporting Act)
● Perform other duties as assigned

KNOWLEDGE AND ABILITIES
Knowledge of:
● Current trends and research concerning the growth and development of th- th grade
children.
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●
●
●
●
●
●
●

Principles, theories, practices, and methodologies used in curriculum development,
instruction, and assessment.
Procedures and best practices that promote appropriate student conduct (e.g. classroom
management strategies).
Educational research concerning extrinsic and intrinsic student motivation.
Guidance of special education practices, policies, and procedures.
Applicable sections of the Education Code and other applicable laws.

Ability to:
● Demonstrate effective interpersonal skills.
● Communicate clearly in a timely manner, both orally and in writing.
● Foster teamwork in a collaborative work environment.
● Direct, motivate, listen to, and establish effective rapport with students and parents.
● Analyze and assess student learning.
● Use technology in an effective manner for teaching, communicating, analyzing, and
reporting.
● Motivate students to develop the skills, attitudes, and understanding needed to set a good
foundation for secondary level education, in accordance with each student's ability.
● Maintain professional, cordial relationships with students, parents, and staff.
● Monitor children in classrooms and other learning environments.
● Use professional judgment in making reasonable decisions or recommendations in
conjunction with other staff members and/or administrative leadership.
● Solve problems and take responsibility for a variety of situations in a reasonable manner
where only limited standardization exists.
● Interpret a variety of instructions furnished in written, oral, diagram, or schedule form.
● Provide leadership to students in emergency preparedness drills and during actual
emergencies, following the charter’s Safety Plan. the site emergency preparedness plan.
Supervise and lead students during monthly site disaster drills and an annual“charter wide”
disaster drill.
Use of Computer Technology:
To perform this job successfully, an individual should have general knowledge of database software,
how to use the internet to find information and complete tasks, email usage, order processing
systems, spreadsheet software, and word processing software. The employee is expected to acquire
and maintain a working computer with an internet connection and a printer.

Physical Demands:
The physical demands described here are representative of those that must be met by an employee
to successfully perform the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations may be
made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions.
●

Hearing and speaking to exchange information
Independent Study Teacher Job Description
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●
●
●
●
●
●
●

Dexterity of hands and fingers to demonstrate activities
Operates a computer and other office productivity machinery
Seeing to read a variety of materials and monitor students
Bending at the waist, kneeling or crouching
Sitting or standing for extended periods of time
Lifting objects up to
pounds
Close vision and ability to adjust focus

Work Environment:
The work environment characteristics described here are representative of those an employee
encounters while performing the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations may be
made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions.
●
●
●
●

Noise level is generally moderate
Meetings conducted in public and private settings
Indoor and outdoor in varying temperature
Employee must have available transportation and be able to drive up to

miles in a day

Employee Acknowledgement:

____________________________
Employee Signature

____________________________
Printed Name

_______________
Date
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Data Management Specialist
Job Description
Reports To:
FLSA Status:
School Classification:
Pay Range:
Work Schedule:
Location:

Director of Student Services (or designee)
Exempt
Classified
$55,000-$65,000/annual
12 months
Onsite Office- San Marcos

Position Summary: The Data Management Specialist supports the operations of the Student Services
department and works with the Director and school administration to assist teachers, develop procedures,
and oversee functions related to admissions, records, student information system, pupil attendance, and
compliance.
Qualifications: To perform this job successfully, an individual must be able to perform each essential
duty satisfactorily; support the mission, vision, and goals of the Collaborative; serve as a contributing
member of the Collaborative staff, and collaborate with team members to achieve the school’s goals.
The requirements listed below are representative of the knowledge, skill, and ability required.
●

●
●

●
●

Three years of increasingly responsible experience in data processing and reporting in a
Student Information System (SIS); transcript preparation; and student attendance or any
combination of equivalent experience to demonstrate the knowledge and abilities to perform
the duties of the position.
Graduation from high school or equivalent. Two years of college level coursework in
computer science, information systems or a related field is highly desirable.
State and federal fingerprint clearance (LiveScan) to work with students (Ed. Code 44237). No
prospective employee can report to work without this clearance being received and Director
of Human Resources notifying the immediate supervisor of this clearance.
Proof of a clear TB Tine test dated within the last 60 days (Ed. Code 49406) upon
employment and thereafter updated every four years.
Valid California Driver’s License.

General skills:
● Team player
● Love of learning – a lifelong learner

●
●
●
●

Flexible and adaptable
Open to differing views and objectives
Conflict resolution skills
Uphold the Collaborative’s vision and mission by acting with integrity

ESSENTIAL FUNCTIONS and RESPONSIBILITIES:
1.

2.

3.
4.
5.
6.
7.
8.
9.
10.
11.
12.
13.
14.
15.
16.
17.

Support the Student Services operations in maintaining a district-level database for the
purpose of collecting, organizing, analyzing, tracking, and reporting all student information
(i.e. attendance, grading, academic progress, test results, enrollment, transfers, etc.) required
by the District and by county, state and federal agencies.
Prepare files for electronic transmission of data to various State and education agencies (i.e.
California Longitudinal Pupil Achievement Data System (CALPADS) and the Civil Rights Data
Collection (CRDC)).
Assist in the development and oversight of policies and procedures related to student records
to maximize the integrity of data; regularly conduct internal audit of the SIS data.
Field questions and troubleshoot with the Director of Student Services, Program Directors (or
designee) and teachers relative to the SIS and Independent Study (IS) compliance.
Respond to complex data inquiries to meet the information and reporting needs of system
users.
Update and create training materials for IS compliance (i.e. master agreements, assignment
work records, archiving, attendance, learning logs, etc.); conduct staff training in the SIS.
Manage course development and curriculum uploads into the course catalog.
Assist with publishing the Career Technical Education course catalog.
Assist with the development and oversight of lottery procedures.
Project Average Daily Attendance in the SIS for revenue forecasting; prepare data for
attendance accounting and compliance.
Assist with development of multi-track school calendars.
Assist with English Learner compliance procedures and processes, including administering
assessments, identifying levels, updating the SIS, and preparing communication.
Assist with student transcripts evaluation.
Train and provide work direction and guidance to staff in the absence of the Director of
Student Services.
Assist with creating, maintaining, and continuously developing compliance policies and
procedures for student services.
Maintain professional competence through professional development via numerous
educational activities.
Participate in faculty committees, the sponsorship of student activities, and program-wide
activities.
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Other Duties
● Respond to all school related written correspondence, phone calls, voicemails, and emails
within 24 business hours
● Perform other duties as assigned.
Knowledge and Abilities:
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

Student demographic and academic data and reporting (CALPADS compliance).
Student attendance accounting and enrollment procedures and immunization laws.
Data processing principles and practices using relational database management systems.
Computer and technology literacy
Independent Study compliance
Conduct internal audits of student information within the SIS
Conduct needs assessment and develop project plans
Demonstrate effective interpersonal skills.
Communicate clearly in a timely manner, both orally and in writing.
Foster teamwork in a collaborative work environment.
Use technology in an effective manner for communicating, analyzing, and reporting.
Maintain professional, cordial relationships with students, parents, and staff.
Use professional judgment in making reasonable decisions or recommendations in
conjunction with other staff members and/or administrative leadership.
Solve problems and take responsibility for a variety of situations in a reasonable manner
where only limited standardization exists.
Interpret a variety of instructions furnished in written, oral, diagram, or schedule form.
Communicate in a respectful, professional, and courteous manner
Deliver information effectively
Organize people and processes
Maintain confidentiality
Take direction and uphold department policies and practices

Use of Computer Technology:
To perform this job successfully, an individual must be proficient utilizing SIS software and Microsoft
Office applications; have the ability to utilize the Internet to conduct research and participate in
virtual meetings; and respond to a high volume of emails in a timely manner.
Physical Demands:
The physical demands described here are representative of those that must be met by an employee
to successfully perform the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations may be
made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions.
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●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

Hearing and speaking to exchange information
Dexterity of hands and fingers to demonstrate activities
Operates a computer and other office productivity machinery
Seeing to read a variety of materials and monitor students
Bending at the waist, kneeling or crouching
Sitting or standing for extended periods of time
Lifting objects up to 50 pounds
Close vision and ability to adjust focus

Work Environment:
The work environment characteristics described here are representative of those an employee
encounters while performing the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations may be
made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions.
●
●
●
●

Noise level is generally moderate
Meetings conducted in public and private settings
Indoor and outdoor in varying temperature
Employee must have available transportation and be able to drive up to 100 miles in a day

HAZARDS:
● Potential physical hazards involved in intervening in altercations and antisocial behavior.
● Contact with dissatisfied individuals.

Employee Acknowledgement:

____________________________
Employee Signature

____________________________
Printed Name

_______________
Date
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Hourly Guidance Counselor Job Description
County Collaborative High School
Position Title: Substitute Guidance Counselor
Reports To: Program Director
FLSA Status: Exempt School Classification
Hourly Pay Range: $40/hour Work Schedule: 220 days Location: Remote Office
Position Summary: The school Guidance Counselors create comprehensive school counseling programs
that focus on student outcomes, teach student competencies and are delivered with identified professional
competencies. The Guidance Counselor provides students with advice on postsecondary education,
careers and other major life issues. The Guidance Counselor plays a significant role in the lives of
students with having one-on-one sessions with students.
Qualifications: To perform this job successfully, an individual must be able to perform each essential duty
satisfactorily. The requirements listed below are representative of the knowledge, skill, and/or ability
required.
● A valid, current, and appropriate California state credential for Specialization in School Counseling or
Pupil Personnel Services specializing in school counseling, preferred. A copy of Credential to be provided
and kept current.
● Master’s degree in School Counseling preferred
● State and federal fingerprint clearance (LiveScan) to work with students (Ed. Code 44237). No
prospective employee can report to work without this clearance being received and Human Resources
notifying the immediate supervisor of this clearance.
● Proof of a clear TB Tine test dated within the last 60 days (Ed. Code 49406) upon employment and
thereafter updated every four years
● Valid California Driver’s License
ESSENTIAL DUTIES and RESPONSIBILITIES:
Student Advocate/Supporting Student Success
● Acts as liaison between students/parents and staff
● Creates student contracts to foster student academic success
● Reviews transcripts to ensure students are placed appropriately; assists pupils in choosing courses of
study best suited to their goals, aptitudes and interests
● Annually reviews each student’s educational progress and career plans
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● Provides information to students about post-secondary options
● Conducts orientation (welcome) call to assigned students within first week of enrollment into program.
● Assists each student in better understanding him or herself, develop personal decision-making
competencies, and resolve problems
● Advocates for students’ needs with school leadership team
● Recommends at-risk students for academic intervention
● Liaison for Live session accommodations
● Attends IEP meetings
● Provides graduation status information to students/parents to encourage graduation and completion
rate
● Holds regular informational sessions to address various student needs
● Sets up courses
● Schedules students into courses
● Enters transcripts into the student information system
● Provide counseling services in individual and group settings
Compliance
● Sends out graduation plan and report cards to students
● Creates, sends, and tracks Master Agreements
● Sends out transcripts/Social Security paperwork/Enrollment verification
● Maintains accurate student records
● Processes Work Permit applications
Communication
● Responds via phone or email to school stakeholders within stated policies and procedures
○ Parents and students within 24 hours
○ Colleagues within business day
● Daily outreach phone calls to students (20 is the goal per day)
● Facilitates communications between students and instructional staff when needed
General Expectations
● Attends weekly meetings
● Participates in PLCs
● Obtains reports as needed from the SIS
● Meets established deadlines

● Follows all school policies and procedures
● Follows legal mandates relative to reporting
● Proctors exams per school policy
Staff Support
● Provides weekly principal report (including withdrawals and new students)
Guidance Counselor Job Description Board Approved: June 13, 2017 2 of 4

● Provides weekly teacher reports (including withdrawals, new students and credit recovery students)
● Meets with teachers relevant to student success
● Provides professional development for staff and faculty
● Sends teachers exit grades and other pertinent information regarding newly enrolled students
Other Duties
● Respond to all school related written correspondence, phone calls, voicemails, and emails within 24
business hours
● Document and report to the school’s management all formal disciplinary actions involving students;
supporting management with addressing and resolving complaints from students and parents in a timely
manner; ensuring compliance with the provisions of California Penal Code Section 11166 (Child Abuse
and Neglect Reporting Act)
● Perform other duties as assigned
Use of Computer Technology: To perform this job successfully, an individual should have general
knowledge of database software, how to use the internet to find information and complete tasks, email
usage, order processing systems, spreadsheet software, and word processing software. The employee is
expected to acquire and maintain a working computer with an internet connection and a printer.
Physical Demands: The physical demands described here are representative of those that must be met by
an employee to successfully perform the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations may
be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions.
● Hearing and speaking to exchange information
● Dexterity of hands and fingers to demonstrate activities
● Operates a computer and other office productivity machinery
● Seeing to read a variety of materials and monitor students
● Bending at the waist, kneeling or crouching
● Sitting or standing for extended periods of time
● Lifting objects up to 50 pounds
● Close vision and ability to adjust focus
Work Environment: The work environment characteristics described here are representative of those an
employee encounters while performing the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations
may be made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions.
● Noise level is generally moderate
● Meetings conducted in public and private settings
Guidance Counselor Job Description Board Approved: June 13, 2017 3 of 4
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● Indoor and outdoor in varying temperature
● Employee must have available transportation and be able to drive up to 100 miles in a day

Instructional Assistant
Job Description
Reports To:
FLSA Status:
School Classification:
Pay Range:
Work Schedule:
Location:

Program Director or designee
Non-Exempt
Classified
$17/hour - $20/hour
185 work days to follow the school year calendar
Dependent on assignment

Position Summary: The Instructional Assistant is responsible to provide academic, and/or communitybased instruction to students according to the prescribed directions of the credentialed teacher; monitor
and record student progress; and relieve the teacher of routine record-keeping and clerical assistant
duties.
Minimum Qualifications: To perform this job successfully, an individual must be able to perform each
essential duty satisfactorily.
● Paid or volunteer experience working with students in an academic setting is preferred.
● Possession of a secondary school diploma or its recognized equivalent and one of the
following: 1) completion of at least two years of study (minimum 48 semester hours) at an
institution of higher education; 2) possession of an associate’s (or higher) degree; or 3) passing
a rigorous assessment that demonstrates the knowledge of, and the ability to assist in
instructing, reading, writing, and mathematics at a level meeting State and Federal
requirements. An associate’s degree in an educational or related field is highly desirable.
● Bilingual English/Spanish preferred depending on assignment.
● Hold and maintain a valid California Driver’s License; proof of automobile insurance; and full
time use of a dependable automobile that is insured pursuant to California regulations.
● State and federal background clearance (LiveScan) to work with students (Ed. Code 44237).
No prospective employee can report to work without this clearance being received and the
Director of Human Resources notifying the immediate supervisor of this clearance.
● Proof of a clear TB test dated within the last 60 days (Ed. Code 49406) upon employment
and thereafter updated every four years
General skills:
● Team player
● Love of learning – a lifelong learner
● Flexible and adaptable
● Open to differing views and objectives
● Conflict resolution skills
● Uphold the Collaborative’s vision and mission by acting with integrity
Board Approved:
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ESSENTIAL DUTIES and RESPONSIBILITIES
1.

2.

3.

4.
5.
6.
7.
8.

9.

10.

11.
12.
13.

14.

Provides instructional assistance to students, in a variety of educational environments, which
may include public/community spaces, home settings, and/or other instructional settings;
assists students in academic areas such as reading, writing, vocabulary, math, science,
computer skills and other subject areas.
Explains the teacher’s instructions, activity directions, etc. to students as necessary; utilizes
teacher provided materials or selects instructional activities and techniques within a limited
range consistent with the teacher’s lesson plans to meet the needs of individual students.
Reinforces lesson concepts and skills using special tutorial techniques, re=presenting, or
guiding activities, or sensory training exercises; provides additional reinforcement, and
repetition, and presents to different learning styles and student abilities.
Guides small group discussions to develop higher-level thinking skills; confers with the
teacher regarding student performance, progress, and concerns.
Prepares for daily activities by setting up work areas, displays, and exhibits.
Uploads Independent Study paperwork into the student information system and maintains
compliance documents under the direction of the teacher of record.
Use conversation, group discussion, games, academic coaching, behavior management
techniques, and other approaches to achieve prescribed goals.
Monitors students in designated areas to motivate and encourage students to remain
engaged and stay on task; assists students to improve self-control and social development
skills following the teacher’s plan for positive behavioral support and orderly classroom
management; models prosocial, respectful interactions for students; in accordance with
district approved methods.
Monitors students in assigned areas and in the absence of the teacher, re-enforcing safety
and appropriate behavior; assists students in boarding and disembarking the bus and provides
supervision while escorting students to various locations; accompanies students on field trips
and/or community-based instructional activities; promotes meaningful inclusion by actively
minimizing barriers during school activities with peers.
Prepares/modifies instructional materials and tests; types, files, duplicates, assembles, and
laminates materials as directed; maintains written and computer records of student progress
for the teacher; operates a variety of office and instructional equipment as assigned.
Assists in administering teacher-prepared tests/quizzes, and standardized achievement tests;
corrects tests and assigned work using hard copy texts or electronic format.
Carries out mandated reporting obligations to ensure student safety as required by law.
Maintains professional competence through professional development via numerous
educational activities; attends and participates in a variety of assigned meetings, conferences,
trainings and/or special events as assigned.
Participates in faculty committees, the sponsorship of student activities, and program-wide
activities.
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Bilingual
In addition to the above duties, bilingual positions also interpret orally and translate in writing
between English and a designated language; interprets for student, parent, or teacher, as required;
and may serve as interpreter and/or translator for staff in parent conferences or other meetings.
Other Duties:
● Respond to all school related written correspondence, phone calls, voicemails, and emails
within 24 business hours
● Perform other related duties as assigned.
Knowledge and Abilities:
To perform this job successfully, an individual must be able to perform each essential duty
satisfactorily. The requirements listed below are representative of the knowledge, skill, and/or ability
required.
Knowledge of:
● Principles and practices related to assisting students with academic instruction and behavior
management.
● Basic principles of child behavior and development.
● Proficient knowledge of subjects taught including arithmetic, reading, writing, grammar, and
spelling.
● Basic instructional methods and techniques.
● Record-keeping techniques.
Ability to:
● Read, write and speak English proficiently.
● Assist in instructing readiness for reading, writing, and mathematics in a learning
environment.
● Demonstrate effective interpersonal skills.
● Communicate effectively in a timely manner, both orally and in writing.
● Use technology in an effective manner for communicating and reporting.
● Meet schedules and timelines; plan and organize work.
● Work at a high level of independence.
● Maintain professional, cordial relationships with students, parents, and staff.
● Use professional judgment in making reasonable decisions or recommendations in
conjunction with other staff members and/or administrative leadership.
● Communicate in a respectful, professional, and courteous manner.
● Maintain confidentiality.
● Follow directions and uphold program policies and practices.
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●
●
●

Establish rapport and maintain positive, meaningful relationships with students to assist in
improving their behavior, educational performance, and social relationships.
Participate as a positive team member for the purpose of enhancing and sharing knowledge
and skills for the delivery of best practices.
Bilingual positions require the ability to speak, read, and write a designated language in
addition to English.

Use of Computer Technology:
To perform this job successfully, an individual must be able to learn and utilize student information
system software, Microsoft Office applications, and a variety of web-based applications proficiently;
have the ability to utilize the Internet to conduct research and participate in virtual meetings; and
respond to a high volume of emails in a timely manner.
Physical Demands:
The physical demands described here are representative of those that must be met by an employee
to successfully perform the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations may be
made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions.
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

Hearing and speaking to exchange information
Clarity of speech to explain instructional concepts to students and discussion with adults
Dexterity of hands and fingers to demonstrate activities, operate a variety of office
equipment, write and grasp, push and pull various light objects and equipment
Operate a computer and other office productivity machinery
Seeing to read a variety of materials and monitor students
Close vision and ability to adjust focus
Bending at the waist, kneeling, or crouching
Kneel, squat, crawl, twist and reach to perform various activities with students
Sitting or standing for extended periods of time
Mobility sufficient to visit learning environments and other educational locations
Lifting objects up to 50 pounds with or without assistance
Driving a vehicle to meet with students

Work Environment:
The work environment characteristics described here are representative of those an employee
encounters while performing the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations may be
made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions.
●
●
●
●

Noise level is generally moderate
Meetings conducted in public and private settings
Indoor and outdoor in varying temperatures
Employee must have available transportation and be able to drive up to 100 miles in a day
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HAZARDS:
● Potential physical hazards involved in intervening in altercations and antisocial behavior.
● Contact with dissatisfied individuals.

The above job description is not intended to be an all-inclusive list of duties and standards of the
position. Incumbents are expected to follow any other instructions, and perform any other related
duties as assigned by their supervisor.
Employee Acknowledgement:

Employee Signature

Printed Name

Date
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Occupational Therapist
Job Description
Reports To:
FLSA Status:
School Classification:
Pay Range:
Work Schedule:
Location:

Special Education Coordinator (or designee)
Exempt
Certificated Administration
Based upon experience
220 days
Remote Office

Position Summary: The Occupational Therapist is a credentialed professional whose primary objective is
the application of scientific principles of learning and behavior to address students’ school-related
challenges and to facilitate the learning and social-emotional development of students. The Occupational
Therapist is expected to deliver quality psychoeducational services that facilitate successful learning
experiences for all students in accordance with the National Association of Occupational Therapists (NASP)
professional standards and the educational philosophy and objectives of the school sites.
Qualifications: To perform this job successfully, an individual must be able to perform each essential
duty satisfactorily. The requirements listed below are representative of the knowledge, skill, and/or
ability required.
●
●
●

●
●

Current California license to practice psychology
Valid pupil personnel services credential with special authorization in school psychology
State and federal fingerprint clearance (LiveScan) to work with students (Ed. Code 44237). No
prospective employee can report to work without this clearance being received and Human
Resources notifying the immediate supervisor of this clearance.
Proof of a clear TB test dated within the last 60 days (Ed. Code 49406) upon employment
and thereafter updated every four years
Valid California Driver’s License
ESSENTIAL DUTIES and RESPONSIBILITIES:

Psychoeducational Services
●

Data-based decision making, program evaluation and accountability:
○ Use data to make empirically-based decisions, problem-solve, develop interventions,

○

○
○
○
○

measure progress and evaluate the outcomes of programs and services
Administer and interpret psychoeducational assessments of students for special
education eligibility and placement, educational recommendations, reevaluation, and
educational needs
Conduct and present legally defensible special education evaluations
Observe students in the instructional setting and in other school environments
Develop targeted behavior and academic intervention plans
Compile monthly accountability data

●

Consultation and Collaboration:
○ Collaborate effectively with teachers, specialists, administrators, parents, and outside
service providers to develop targeted strategies and interventions for students
○ Consult with teachers in the development and implementation of instructional
methods and procedures designed to facilitate student learning and to decrease
learning and behavioral challenges
○ Consult with school administrators concerning appropriate learning objectives for
students and the subsequent planning of interventions for students in general and
special education programs
○ Review and discuss student progress and needs
○ Make appropriate referrals to community resources/services
○ Collaborate with other support staff to provide comprehensive services for all
students
○ As appropriate and as assigned by administrator – serve in a leadership role in the
special education department, to provide guidance in implementation of special
education procedures, guidelines, and compliance

●

Effective Instruction and Development of Cognitive/Academic Skills, Socialization, and Life
Skills:
○ Serve as a member of IEP/SST teams to recommend, develop, and evaluate
appropriate goals and interventions that meet individual student needs
○ Integrate multiple sources of information including student academic history to
develop interventions
○ Collaborate with teachers and other special education service providers to evaluate
student progress towards goals and need for modifications in students’ IEPs

●

Student Diversity in Development and Learning:
○ Demonstrate sensitivity and skills needed to work with diverse individuals and to
implement strategies based on individual characteristics, strengths, and needs
○ Apply knowledge of individual differences, abilities, and disabilities and the potential
influence of biological, social, cultural, ethnic, experiential, socioeconomic,
gender-related, and linguistic factors in development and learning
○ Evaluate students integrating multiple sources of data and address information
Occupational Therapist Job Description
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related to possible influence of cultural, ethnic, socioeconomic, and experiential
factors
●

Home/School/Community Collaboration:
○ Work effectively with families, educators, outside service providers and services in the
community to promote and provide comprehensive services to children and families
○ Collaborate and consult with parents to promote student’s academic, social, and
behavioral success at home and school
○ Coordinate community mental health services
○ Have a variety of resources available to make appropriate community referrals
○ Evaluate students integrating multiple sources of data and address information
related to possible influence of cultural, ethnic, socioeconomic, and experiential
factors
○ Consult with educators regarding students’ individual difference and needs
○ Conduct individual and group conferences/trainings with students, parents, and staff
members to foster academic growth, emotional health, and or professional
competence as needed

●

Prevention, Crisis Intervention, and Mental Health:
○ Provide and contribute to prevention and intervention programs that promote the
mental health and physical well-being of students
○ Respond to students who are in crisis or immediate need of support
○ Apply safe and positive physical intervention response techniques in situations where
student is at risk of harming self or others, only as a last resort and preferably in a
team approach (must be formally trained in appropriate physical interventions, and
training must be current)
○ Engage students in conflict resolution and problem solving
○ Provide counseling services to students who have designated instructional services on
their IEP
○ Provide counseling services to at-risk, self-referred, and parentally referred general
education students as appropriate
○ Conduct Suicide Risk Assessments and Threat Assessments
○ Provide crisis intervention services for students, parents, and teachers
○ Make referrals to and consult with appropriate individuals and agencies in the
community needed to perform services beyond the scope of the school setting
○ Facilitate students’ abilities to identify and apply solutions to their problems

Information Technology
●
●

Access, evaluate, and use information sources and technology
Attend training opportunities and maximize use of SEIS, email system, SIS and additional
technology resources as they become available
Occupational Therapist Job Description
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Professional Development
●

Participate in relevant professional development and/or activities that support the
schools’/programs’ mission statements and career professional development:
○ Remain current with the California Education Code as it applies to compliance in all
areas
○ Provide direct supervision of interns and practicum students in school psychology
○ Seek new information that is appropriate based on referrals
○ Attend staff monthly meetings
○ Attend school/program staff meetings and professional development opportunities
○ Attend SELPA sponsored professional development activities

School, Systems Organization and Policy Development
●

Participate in school/program and SELPA procedural development and policy
development:
○ Prepare monthly accountability records
○ Attend and meaningfully contribute to school/program meetings
○ Attend staff monthly meetings
○ Support or participate in afterschool activities for the benefit of student success as
appropriate
○ Maintain knowledge of school/program, SELPA, and California Education Code
policies and regulations to communicate accurate information to students, parents,
teachers, and administrators
○ Maintain knowledge of general education and special education programs and
interventions available at each school/program

Other Duties
● Document and report to the school’s management all formal disciplinary actions involving
students and staff; addressing and resolving complaints from students, parents, and staff in a
timely manner; ensuring compliance with the school’s Uniform Complaint Policy; the school’s
Uniform Technology Policy; and the provisions of California Penal Code Section 11166 (Child
Abuse and Neglect Reporting Act)
● Perform other duties as assigned
Use of Computer Technology:
To perform this job successfully, an individual should have general knowledge of database software,
how to use the internet to find information and complete tasks, email usage, order processing
systems, spreadsheet software, and word processing software. The employee is expected to acquire
and maintain a working computer with an internet connection and a printer.

Occupational Therapist Job Description
Board Approved: June 13, 2017
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Physical Demands:
The physical demands described here are representative of those that must be met by an employee
to successfully perform the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations may be
made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions.
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

Hearing and speaking to exchange information
Dexterity of hands and fingers to demonstrate activities
Operates a computer and other office productivity machinery
Seeing to read a variety of materials and monitor students
Bending at the waist, kneeling or crouching
Sitting or standing for extended periods of time
Lifting objects up to 50 pounds
Close vision and ability to adjust focus

Work Environment:
The work environment characteristics described here are representative of those an employee
encounters while performing the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations may be
made to enable individuals with disabilities to perform the essential functions.
●
●
●
●

Noise level is generally moderate
Meetings conducted in public and private settings
Indoor and outdoor in varying temperature
Employee must have available transportation and be able to drive up to 100 miles in a day

HAZARDS:
Contact with dissatisfied individuals.

Employee Acknowledgement:

____________________________
Employee Signature

____________________________
Printed Name

_______________
Date

Occupational Therapist Job Description
Board Approved: June 13, 2017
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Exhibit B: Budget

Exhibit C: Articles of Incorporation

Exhibit D: Non-Profit Tax Exempt Status (Federal)

Exhibit E: Non-Profit Tax Exempt Status (State)

EXHIBIT F: Petitioner Signatures Form

Petition for the Establishment of
County Collaborative Charter School
A California Public Charter School
To be operated by:
County Collaborative Charter School
We the undersigned believe that the attached Charter merits consideration and hereby petition
the Mountain Empire Unified School District to grant approval of the charter pursuant to
Education Code Section 47605.6 to enable the creation of County Collaborative Charter School.
County Collaborative Charter School, a California non-profit public benefit corporation, agrees
to operate County Collaborative Charter School pursuant to the terms of The Charter Schools
Act of 1992 and the provisions of the school's charter. The petitioners listed below certify that
they have been given the opportunity to review the attached charter and that they are teachers
who are meaningfully interested in teaching at County Collaborative Charter School.
By the lead Petitioner:

\<'u r--t ""'C\c\J e-n

Name (please print)

V ...:t�

Signature

The petitioners authorize the Lead Petitioner to negotiate any amendments to the attached charter
necessary to secure approval by the Mountain Empire Unified School District.
By the Petitioners:

Dawn
1wdae_l
Name (please print)

1Yk/, RA�

��

Name (please print)

�i

Name (please print)

Signature

Wi\ \� -"B. l)�b�,J

&se5em,uJ
Name (please print)
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Exhibit G: LCAP

Exhibit G: LCAP 2016/17

Local Control and Accountability Plan and Annual Update Template

Contact: Meghan Freeman, InterimExecutive Director

For each section of the template, LEAs shall comply with instructions and should use the guiding questions as prompts (but not limits) for
completing the information as required by statute. Guiding questions do not require separate narrative responses. However, the narrative

The LCAP is intended to be a comprehensive planning tool. Accordingly, in developing goals, specific actions, and expenditures, LEAs should
carefully consider how to reflect the services and related expenses for their basic instructional program in relationship to the state priorities.
LEAs may reference and describe actions and expenditures in other plans and funded by a variety of other fund sources when detailing goals,
actions, and expenditures related to the state and local priorities. LCAPs must be consistent with school plans submitted pursuant to
Education Code section 64001. The information contained in the LCAP, or annual update, may be supplemented by information contained in
other plans
(including the LEA plan pursuant to Section 1112 of Subpart 1 of Part A of Title I of Public Law 107110) that are incorporated or

referenced as relevant in this document.

Charter schools, pursuant to Education Code sections 47605, 47605.5, and 47606.5, must describe goals and specific actions to achieve
those goals for all pupils and each subgroup of pupils identified in Education Code section 52052, including pupils with disabilities, for each of
the state priorities as applicable and any locally identified priorities. For charter schools, the inclusion and description of goals for state
priorities in the LCAP may be modified to meet the grade levels served and the nature of the programs provided, including modifications to
reflect only the statutory requirements explicitly applicable to charter schools in the Education Code.

For county offices of education, pursuant to Education Code section 52066, the LCAP must describe, for each county office of
educationoperated school and program, goals and specific actions to achieve those goals for all pupils and each subgroup of pupils identified
in Education Code section 52052, including pupils with disabilities, who are funded through the county office of education Local Control
Funding Formula as identified in Education Code section 2574 (pupils attending juvenile court schools, on probation or parole, or mandatorily
expelled) for each of the state priorities and any locally identified priorities. School charters and county offices of education may additionally
coordinate and describe in their LCAPs services provided to pupils funded by a school charter but attending countyoperated schools and
programs, including special education programs.

For school charters, pursuant to Education Code section 52060, the LCAP must describe, for the school charter and each school within the
charter, goals and specific actions to achieve those goals for all pupils and each subgroup of pupils identified in Education Code section
52052, including pupils with disabilities, for each of the state priorities and any locally identified priorities.

The Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) and Annual Update Template shall be used to provide details regarding local educational
agencies’ (LEAs) actions and expenditures to support pupil outcomes and overall performance pursuant to Education Code sections 52060,
52066, 47605, 47605.5, and 47606.5. The LCAP and Annual Update Template must be completed by all LEAs each year.

LCAP Year1: 201617

meghan@pathwaysacademy.org 
7604949646

LEA: County Collaborative Charter – San Diego

§ 15497.5. Local Control and Accountability Plan and Annual Update Template.
Introduction:
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response and goals and actions should demonstrate each guiding question was considered during the development of the plan. Data
referenced in the LCAP must be consistent with the school accountability report card where appropriate. LEAs may resize pages or attach
additional pages as necessary to facilitate completion of the LCAP.
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School climate:
pupil suspension rates, pupil expulsion rates, other local measures including surveys of pupils, parents and teachers on the
sense of safety and school connectedness. (Priority 6)

Pupil engagement: 
school attendance rates, chronic absenteeism rates, middle school dropout rates, high school dropout rates, high school
graduations rates. (Priority 5)

Parental involvement:
efforts to seek parent input in decision making at the charter and each schoolsite, promotion of parent participation
in programs for unduplicated pupils and special need subgroups. (Priority 3)

C. Engagement:

Other pupil outcomes: 
pupil outcomes in the subject areas described in Education Code section 51210 and subdivisions (a) to (i), inclusive,
of Education Code section 51220, as applicable. (Priority 8)

Pupil achievement: 
performance on standardized tests, score on Academic Performance Index, share of pupils that are college and career
ready, share of English learners that become English proficient, English learner reclassification rate, share of pupils that pass Advanced
Placement exams with 3 or higher, share of pupils determined prepared for college by the Early Assessment Program. (Priority 4)

B. Pupil Outcomes:

Foster youth (for county offices of education only): 
coordination of services, including working with the county child welfare agency to
share information, responding to the needs of the juvenile court system, and ensuring transfer of health and education records. (Priority 10)

Expelled pupils (for county offices of education only): 
coordination of instruction of expelled pupils pursuant to Education Code section
48926. (Priority 9)

Course access: p
upil enrollment in a broad course of study that includes all of the subject areas described in Education Code section 51210
and subdivisions (a) to (i), inclusive, of Section 51220, as applicable. (Priority 7)

Implementation of State Standards: 
implementation of academic content and performance standards and English language development
standards adopted by the state board for all pupils, including English learners. (Priority 2)

Basic: 
degree to which teachers are appropriately assigned pursuant to Education Code section 44258.9, and fully credentialed in the
subject areas and for the pupils they are teaching; pupils have access to standardsaligned instructional materials pursuant to Education
Code section 60119; and school facilities are maintained in good repair pursuant to Education Code section 17002(d). (Priority 1)

A. Conditions of Learning:

The state priorities listed in Education Code sections 52060 and 52066 can be categorized as specified below for planning purposes, however,
school charters and county offices of education must address each of the state priorities in their LCAP. Charter schools must address the
priorities in Education Code section 52060(d) that apply to the grade levels served, or the nature of the program operated, by the charter
school.

State Priorities
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Guiding Questions:
1) How have applicable stakeholders (e.g., parents and pupils, including parents of unduplicated pupils and unduplicated pupils identified
in Education Code section 42238.01; community members; local bargaining units; LEA personnel; county child welfare agencies;
county office of education foster youth services programs, courtappointed special advocates, and other foster youth stakeholders;
community organizations representing English learners; and others as appropriate) been engaged and involved in developing,
reviewing, and supporting implementation of the LCAP?
2) How have stakeholders been included in the LEA’s process in a timely manner to allow for engagement in the development of the
LCAP?
3) What information (e.g., quantitative and qualitative data/metrics) was made available to stakeholders related to the state priorities
and used by the LEA to inform the LCAP goal setting process? How was the information made available?
4) What changes, if any, were made in the LCAP prior to adoption as a result of written comments or other feedback received by the LEA
through any of the LEA’s engagement processes?
5) What specific actions were taken to meet statutory requirements for stakeholder engagement pursuant to Education Code sections
52062, 52068, and 47606.5, including engagement with representatives of parents and guardians of pupils
identified in Education

Code section 42238.01?
6) What specific actions were taken to consult with pupils to meet the requirements 5 CCR 15495(a)?
7) How has stakeholder involvement been continued and supported? How has the involvement of these stakeholders supported improved
outcomes for pupils, including unduplicated pupils,
related to the state priorities?


Instructions:
Describe the process used to consult with parents, pupils, school personnel, local bargaining units as applicable, and the
community and how this consultation contributed to development of the LCAP or annual update. Note that the LEA’s goals, actions, services
and expenditures related to the state priority of parental involvement are to be described separately in Section 2. In the annual update
boxes, describe the stakeholder involvement process for the review, and describe its impact on, the development of the annual update to
LCAP goals, actions, services, and expenditures.

Section 1: Stakeholder Engagement
Meaningful engagement of parents, pupils, and other stakeholders, including those representing the subgroups identified in Education Code
section 52052, is critical to the LCAP and budget process. Education Code sections 52060(g), 52062 and 52063 specify the minimum
requirements for school charters; Education Code sections 52066(g), 52068 and 52069 specify the minimum requirements for county offices
of education, and Education Code section 47606.5 specifies the minimum requirements for charter schools. In addition, Education Code
section 48985 specifies the requirements for translation of documents.
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Program Leads:
Program Leads from our various programs came
together to learn about the LCAP process and to provide feedback on the
first draft of the LCAP goals. The program leads were asked to identify
any additional gaps in service and to weigh in on the Cabinet’s
recommendations regarding the sequencing of new and/or expanded
activities. They also were responsible for forming Parent Advisory Groups
to support in LCAP feedback.

County Collaborative Charter School Instructional Leadership
Cabinet:
In developing the LCAP, the Director of Education convened two
planning sessions. In a series of facilitated conversations, the Cabinet,
consisting of the executive directors, Director of Education and Director of
Student Services, reviewed the LCAP. The team identified the goals,
actions and expenditures that are currently employed by the charter and
highlighted current gaps in service – with a particular emphasis on
student subgroups – that could be addressed with additional LCFF
resources. Emerging from these discussions was a first draft of the LCAP,
which, as described below, was then updated and refined based on
feedback from other stakeholder groups.

The process, which spanned from November 2015 through June 2016,
with a broad range of stakeholders, including: Instructional Leadership
Cabinet, program leads, parents, students, teachers, Pathways Academy
Charter School Board of Education and the general public who worked
diligently to comment and improve upon our LCAP.

Involvement Process
County Collaborative Charter School designed an extensive engagement
effort to gather and incorporate stakeholder feedback into the Year 1
LCAP. County Collaborative Charter School saw the LCAP process as an
opportunity for an expansive and inclusive conversation about the
charter’s vision and plan for student achievement and a place to tie
together the charter’s many initiatives with the allocation of resources.
Stakeholder engagement activities were thus specifically designed to give
space for the community to understand the charter’s goals and strategies
and to lay the groundwork for stakeholders’ continued support and
involvement.

Impact on LCAP
The creation of County Collaborative Charter School LCAP
was an iterative process wherein realtime input from
stakeholders directly informed the final product. The
Leadership Cabinet developed a working draft of the LCAP,
which was then vetted and refined over a course of
stakeholder meetings. The final Updated LCAP includes
specific expenditures that emerged from these stakeholder
sessions.
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County Collaborative Charter School Board of Education:
The Board
convened on two occasions in June to review the LCAP. On June 15,
2016, the Board met to review the LCAP process and convened in a
hearing session format, to delve into the details of the proposed goals,
actions and expenditures. The Cabinet came together to undertake a final

Public/Other Community Members
: Members of the public were
invited to attend School Board meetings in June. The agenda for each
included designated time for public comment. The LCAP was posted on
the charter website during the month of June. Taken together, these
activities resulted in an LCAP that reflects the priorities and needs of
multitude of stakeholders within the County Collaborative Charter School
charter.

Charter Leadership Team
: The Parent Advisory Committee was
convened for the purpose of the LCAP. The Parent Advisory Committee is
comprised of parents, including a representative(s) from each program
and additional parent representatives from each student subgroup (i.e.,
lowincome, English Learners and foster youth). The Committee met on
two occasions – first to learn about LCFF and LCAP and then, in
subsequent meetings, to review a draft of the LCAP, receive updates on
goals and to review charterwide LCAP survey results. Committee
members were invited to share questions, concerns and feedback about
the process and/or plan content. When reviewing the draft, LCAP
Committee members met in small groups with members of the charter
leadership to discuss the plan, gain further clarification, and give input.

Teachers and Staf
f: County Collaborative Charter School program leads
met with teacher teams virtually or in person to review the draft LCAP.
During the meeting teachers were invited to give input into the goals,
actions and expenditures.

Parents
: County Collaborative Charter School involved parents at a
school site and through virtual meetings. Parents on program specific
Parent Advisory Boards and PTOs were all given opportunities to learn
about and comment on the DRAFT LCAP. The LCAP was placed on all
websites for parent feedback to ensure we included all parent
stakeholders.

Page 7 of 64

LCAP Evidence PAC Meetings

PTO and PAC Monthly MeetingsSept 2015 June 2016
( Certificated, Classified, Parent, Student, Community Members)

Program Lead Meetings BiMonthly Sept 2015 June 2016
(Administrative)

Meetings were held each month to review the progress towards our goals
with various stakeholders, with feedback allowing for
the creation of the draft 20162019 LCAP.

Evidence of LCAP Involvement in 2015/2016

Annual Update:
Charter Administrative Staff reviewed the eight state priorities along with
an overview of LCFF funding with administrative, certificated and
classified staff from all programs, charter Office Staff and the Board of
Trustees:

round of edits before finalizing the plan. On June 21, 2016, the Board
came together to adopt the LCAP.

Parents would like to see:
● More small group activities to encourage independent
thinkers
● More rigorous assignments for kindergarten students
● Schoolwide behavior system to eliminate behavior
issues that distract learning
● More training for teachers on classroom management

Parent Feedback 2015/2016

Annual Update:
The creation of County Collaborative Charter School LCAP was
an iterative process wherein realtime input from
stakeholders directly informed the final product. The
Leadership Cabinet developed a working draft of the LCAP,
which was then vetted and refined over a course of
stakeholder meetings. The final Updated LCAP includes
specific expenditures that emerged from these stakeholder
sessions. The Board of Directors is updated throughout the
year on progress toward goals.
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To facilitate alignment between the LCAP and school plans, the LCAP shall identify and incorporate schoolspecific goals related to the state
and local priorities from the school plans submitted pursuant to Education Code section 64001. Furthermore, the LCAP should be shared
with, and input requested from, schoolsitelevel advisory groups, as applicable (e.g., schoolsite councils, English Learner Advisory Councils,
pupil advisory groups, etc.) to facilitate alignment between schoolsite and charterlevel goals and actions. An LEA may incorporate or
reference actions described in other plans that are being undertaken to meet the goal.

For school charters, Education Code sections 52060 and 52061, for county offices of education, Education Code sections 52066 and 52067,
and for charter schools, Education Code section 47606.5 require(s) the LCAP to include a description of the annual goals, for all pupils and
each subgroup of pupils, to be achieved for each state priority as defined in 5 CCR 15495(i) and any local priorities; a description of the
specific actions an LEA will take to meet the identified goals; a description of the expenditures required to implement the specific actions;
and an annual update to include a review of progress towards the goals and describe any changes to the goals.

Charter schools may adjust the table below to align with the term of the charter school’s budget that is submitted to the school’s authorizer
pursuant to Education Code section 47604.33.

All LEAs must complete the LCAP and Annual Update Template each year. The LCAP is a threeyear plan for the upcoming school year and
the two years that follow. In this way, the program and goals contained in the LCAP align with the term of a school charter and county office
of education budget and multiyear budget projections. The Annual Update section of the template reviews progress made for each stated
goal in
the school year that is coming to a close, assesses the effectiveness of actions and services provided, and describes the changes

made in the LCAP for the next three years that are based on this review and assessment.

Instructions:

Section 2: Goals, Actions, Expenditures, and Progress Indicators

4/6/16 Willow Tree

12/2/15 Willow Tree
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Scope of Service: 
Describe the scope of each action/service by identifying the schoolsites covered. LEAs may indicate “all” for all schools,
specify an individual school or a subset of schools, or specify grade spans (e.g., all high schools or grades K5). If supplemental and
concentration funds are used to support the action/service, the LEA must identify if the scope of service is charterwide, schoolwide,
countywide, or charterwide.

Actions/Services: 
For each LCAP year, identify all annual actions to be performed and services provided to meet the described goal.
Actions may describe a group of services that are implemented to achieve the identified goal.

The metrics used to describe the expected measurable outcomes may be quantitative or qualitative, although the goal tables must
address all required metrics for every state priority in each LCAP year. The required metrics are the specified measures and objectives
for each state priority as set forth in Education Code sections 52060(d) and 52066(d). For the pupil engagement priority metrics,
LEAs must calculate the rates specified in Education Code sections 52060(d)(5)(B), (C), (D) and (E) as described in the Local Control
Accountability Plan and Annual Update Template Appendix, sections (a) through (d).

Expected Annual Measurable Outcomes
: For each LCAP year, identify and describe specific expected measurable outcomes for all pupils
using, at minimum, the applicable required metrics for the related state priorities. Where applicable, include descriptions of specific expected
measurable outcomes for schoolsites and specific subgroups, including pupils with disabilities, both at the LEA level and at the schoolsite
level.

Applicable Pupil Subgroups: I
dentify the pupil subgroups as defined in Education Code section 52052 to which the goal applies, or indicate
“all” for all pupils.

Schools: 
Identify the schoolsites to which the goal applies. LEAs may indicate “all” for all schools, specify an individual school or a subset of
schools, or specify grade spans (e.g., all high schools or grades K5).

Identified Need: 
Describe the need(s) identified by the LEA that this goal addresses, including a description of the supporting data used to
identify the need(s).

Related State and/or Local Priorities:
Identify the state and/or local priorities addressed by the goal by placing a check mark next to the
applicable priority or priorities. The LCAP must include goals that address each of the state priorities, as defined in 5 CCR 15495(i), and any
additional local priorities; however, one goal may address multiple priorities.

When completing the goal tables, include goals for all pupils
and specific goals for schoolsites and specific subgroups, including pupils

with disabilities, both at the LEA level and, where applicable, at the schoolsite level. The LEA may identify which schoolsites and
subgroups have the same goals, and group and describe those goals together. The LEA may also indicate those goals that are not
applicable to a specific subgroup or schoolsite.

Goal: 
Describe the goal:

Using the following instructions and guiding questions, complete a goal table (see below) for each of the LEA’s goals. Duplicate and expand
the fields as necessary.
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9) What information was considered/reviewed for individual schoolsites?

8) What information (e.g., quantitative and qualitative data/metrics) was considered/reviewed to develop goals to address each state or
local priority?

7) What are the specific expected measurable outcomes associated with each of the goals annually and over the term of the LCAP?

6) What are the unique goals for unduplicated pupils as defined in Education Code sections 42238.01 and subgroups as defined in
section 52052 that are different from the LEA’s goals for all pupils?

5) How have the unique needs of individual schoolsites been evaluated to inform the development of meaningful charter and/or
individual schoolsite goals (e.g., input from site level advisory groups, staff, parents, community, pupils; review of school level plans;
indepth school level data analysis, etc.)?

4) What are the LEA’s goal(s) to address any locallyidentified priorities?

3) What are the LEA’s goal(s) to address state priorities related to parent and pupil “Engagement” (e.g., parent involvement, pupil
engagement, and school climate)?

2) What are the LEA’s goal(s) to address state priorities related to “Pupil Outcomes”?

Guiding Questions:
1) What are the LEA’s goal(s) to address state priorities related to “Conditions of Learning”?

Budgeted Expenditures: 
For each action/service, list and describe budgeted expenditures for each school year to implement these actions,
including where those expenditures can be found in the LEA’s budget. The LEA must reference all fund sources for each proposed
expenditure. Expenditures must be classified using the California School Accounting Manual as required by Education Code sections 52061,
52067, and 47606.5.

For each action and/or service to be provided above what is being provided for all pupils, place a check mark next to the applicable
unduplicated pupil subgroup(s) and/or other pupil subgroup(s) that will benefit from the additional action, and/or will receive the
additional service. Identify, as applicable, additional actions and services for unduplicated pupil subgroup(s) as defined in Education
Code section 42238.01, pupils redesignated fluent English proficient, and/or pupils subgroup(s) as defined in Education Code section
52052.

Pupils to be served within identified scope of service
: For each action/service, identify the pupils to be served within the identified
scope of service. If the action to be performed or the service to be provided is for all pupils, place a check mark next to “ALL.”
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Identified Need:

GOAL
#1:

Local: Specify
Student Proficiency Rate

The WASC Critical Areas for follow up include:
The Administration, Faculty and Staff needs to review current SLOs and implement a formalized measureable and quantifiable
connection to the curriculum, instruction, assessment, and school culture. As a result, additional opportunities for growth in
the areas of instructional strategies, curriculum development, and the use of assessments to inform instruction should be
created.

In its first year, County Collaborative Charter School will evaluate students’ levels of performance. The charter will continue
to align curriculum with the California Common Core State Standards and provide current and up to date professional
development to ensure that our highly qualified teachers have the training they need to successfully teach and support the
Common Core standards. We will gather data from the CAASPP assessment for all students and specifically for students with
disabilities, foster youth, low income, EL pupils to determine proficiency based on the Common Core standards.

Maintain or increase grade level proficiency in core content areas for all students by
providing resources to allow them to access and master grade level Common Core State
Standards. Core content areas refer to courses in ELA, math, history and science. A student
is proficient when they perform at grade level based on state assessments CAASPP and/ or
the Smarter Balanced Assessment. Subgroups: Increase the percentage of students with
disabilities that are considered proficient in ELA/math CAASPP by 2% each year. Increase
the percentage of unduplicated count students that are considered proficient in ELA/math
CAASPP by 2% each year.

Raise student academic performance for students in TK12th grade.

Related State and/or Local Priorities:
1
__2
_x_3
_x_4
_x_5
_x_6
_x_
7
_x_8
__
COE only: 9
__10
__

13)What expenditures support changes to actions/services as a result of the goal identified? Where can these expenditures be found in
the LEA’s budget?

12)How do these actions/services link to identified goals and expected measurable outcomes?

11)What actions/services will be provided to all pupils, to subgroups of pupils identified pursuant to Education Code section 52052, to
specific schoolsites, to English learners, to lowincome pupils, and/or to foster youth to achieve goals identified in the LCAP?

10)What information was considered/reviewed for subgroups identified in Education Code section 52052?
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All
LCAP Year 1:
201617

In order to ensure that our County Collaborative
Charter School students are on the right track, we
must conduct formal and informal assessments
throughout the school year. Conducting these
assessments allows our teachers to determine if a
child is learning the core subjects at a proficient level.
The assessments below are examples of the types of
assessments that can be given each year:
 Graduation checks

Evaluate students’ levels of academic performance
based on initial local assessment results.
Charter
wide

Scope of
Service

Pupils to be served within identified scope of
service
_X_
ALL

OR:
__
Low Income pupils 
__
English Learners
__
Foster Youth 
__
Redesignated fluent English
proficient 
__
Other
Subgroups:(Specify)
________________________

County Collaborative Charter School will also increase student course completion by 2% each year.

Funding
Source:
PCSGP Grant
$10,000
LCFF

Budgeted
Expenditures
Purchasing
Charter wide
assessment
tools.
$10,000

Based on baseline data, students with disabilities, low income, foster youth and EL pupils will increase proficiency on the
math and ELA CAASPP by 2%.

County Collaborative Charter School will work to meet or exceed state targets as it relates to proficiency in CAASPP
(Smarter Balanced Assessment) in both ELA and Math by 2% each year.

Schools:
All programs
Applicable Pupil Subgroups:

Actions/Services

Expected Annual
Measurable
Outcomes:

Goal Applies to:

LCAP goals, WASC goals, and Student Learner Outcomes need to align with each other to create a cohesive schoolwide
action plan. The Administration needs to create and implement a formalized plan to monitor and adjust the Action Plan on a
regular yearly cycle. The Action Plan needs to be reviewed and modified to produce specific measureable goals using
formative and summative student data.

The Administration and Staff need to develop and implement a formalized professional development plan based on student
academic achievement data. The plan should include a measurement tool on how effective the training was as related to
student academic achievement. This plan should include requiring scheduled meetings throughout the year.

Page 13 of 64

Focusing on:
 Online courses,
credit recovery, and core programs
 Supplemental curriculum and materials supporting
Common Core State Standards
 Content design lessons
 Extended school year
 Digital curriculum aligned to Common Core State
Standards
 Service vendors offering educational opportunities
across geographical area. Vendors will
● More small group activities to encourage
independent thinkers
● More rigorous assignments for kindergarten
students
● Schoolwide behavior system to eliminate
behavior issues that distract learning
● More training for teachers on classroom
management

Other operating
expense
$135,,000

Expenditure
Summary:
Books and
Supplies:
$135,000

Funding Source
LCFF
Unrestricted
$270,000

Purchasing
Charter Wide
Curriculum:
$270,000

X All

OR:
Low Income pupils
English Learners
Foster
Youth
Redesignated fluent English proficient
Other Subgroups:

The design and implementation of curriculum is a
critical component in the alignment of content and
instruction to the Common Core State Standards, as
well as development of multiple channels, pathways
and models assisting students in completing the
standards aligned content.

Charter
wide

Expenditure
Summary:
Books/Supplies
$10,000

 Algebra EOC (End Of Course assessment)
 Math Placement Assessment
 Literacy Intervention Assessment
 K2 assessments in Foundational Reading and Math
 Diagnostic assessments
 Progress monitoring assessment tools  English
Language Development assessment tools
 Interim assessments (Benchmarks) aligned to the
Common Core State Standards in ELA and Math
Local schoolwide assessments
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 Supporting English Language Learners using
research based strategies and curriculum
 Common Core State Standards English Language
Arts, mathematics, NGSS, and supplemental programs
 Response to Instruction and Intervention (RtI2)
 Effective use of technology for learning
 Assessment of student progress
 Writing, Speaking, and Listening Standards
 Content standards integration
 Integration of the Arts
 Strategies for students with disabilities in the
independent study model
 Strategies for English Learners in the independent
study model
 Implementation of Safety Plans
 StandardsFocused professional development
improving instructional capacity in all content areas
Strategies to support students and minimize number
of student dismissals/involuntary withdrawals

Professional development of teaching staff will be
conducted reflecting the priorities and topics below,
which support the implementation of Common Core
State Standards and the state’s priorities as identified
by the State Board of Education and California
Department of Education. Priority topics include:

Charter
wide

X All ___
OR:
__
Low Income pupils 
__
English Learners
__
Foster Youth 
__
Redesignated fluent English
proficient 
__
Other
Subgroups:(Specify)
________________________

Book/Supplies:
$2,000

Other operating
expenses :
$3,000:

Expenditure
Summary:

Funding
Source:
$5,000 LCFF
Unrestricted

Professional
Development:
$5,000;
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RtI Process
Purchase and use of various types of
curriculum
Tutor support from approved vendors

Hire and retain, multiple subject and single subject,
highly qualified certificated TK12 teachers, to support
our wide geographic region.

●

●
●

After reviewing student assessment data, we will
provide targeted interventions for students who are
struggling to meet grade level proficiency through:

To evaluate state testing results at County
Collaborative Charter School.

Charter
Wide

Charter
wide

X_ALL


OR:
__Low Income pupils __English Learners
__Foster Youth __Redesignated fluent English
proficient __Other
Subgroups:(Specify)________________________

_X_
ALL


OR:
__
Low Income pupils 
__
English Learners
__
Foster Youth 
__
Redesignated fluent English
proficient 
__
Other
Subgroups:(Specify)
________________________

Expenditure
Summary:
Salaries &
Benefits;
$270,000

Funding Source
LCFF
Unrestricted
$270,000

Other operating
expense
$2,000
Certificated
Personnel
Salaries;
$270,000

Expenditure
Summary:
Books and
Supplies
$3,000

Funding
Source:
LCFF
Unrestricted
$5,000

Purchasing
online
curriculum and
approved vendor
hire
$5,000
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Expected Annual
Measurable
Outcomes:

___
ALL


OR:
_x_
Low Income pupils 
_x_
English Learners
_x_
Foster Youth _
_
Redesignated fluent English
proficient 
_x_
Other
Subgroups:(Specify)
__SWD_____________________
_
LCAP Year 2
: 201718

_X_
ALL


OR:
__
Low Income pupils 
__
English Learners
__
Foster Youth 
__
Redesignated fluent English
proficient 
__
Other
Subgroups:(Specify)
________________________

X_
ALL


OR:
__
Low Income pupils 
__
English Learners
__
Foster Youth 
__
Redesignated fluent English
proficient 
__
Other
Subgroups:(Specify)
________________________

Expenditure
Summary:
Salaries &
Benefits;
$30,000

Funding
Source:
Unrestricted
$30,000

Classified
Personnel
Salaries;

Based on baseline data, students with disabilities, low income, foster youth and EL pupils will increase proficiency on the
math and ELA CAASPP by 2% each year.

County Collaborative Charter School will work to meet or exceed state targets as it relates to proficiency in CAASPP
(Smarter Balanced Assessment) in both ELA and Math by 2% each year.

The charter will monitor low income pupils, foster
youth, English Learners, and students with disabilities
using existing staff, for proficiency on state and local
assessments to ensure academic success or refer to
the SST or IEP team in the event the student is
struggling academically.

Charter
wide

Charter
wide

To evaluate course completion rates at County
Collaborative Charter School.

Offer support to students as needed, including, but
not limited to, meeting with guidance director,
meeting with curriculum director, RtI Process, time
management training with student/parent.

Charter
wide

Maintain and hire highly qualified classified employees
to ensure students have a high quality education.
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The design and implementation of curriculum is a
critical component of the alignment of content and
instruction to the Common Core State Standards, as
well as development of multiple channels, pathways
and models assisting students in completing the
standards aligned content.

In order to ensure that our County Collaborative
Charter School students are on the right track we
must conduct formal and informal assessments
throughout the school year. Conducting these
assessments allows our teachers to determine if a
child is learning the core subjects at a proficient level.
The assessments below are examples of the types of
assessments that can be given each year:
 Graduation checks
 Algebra EOC (End Of Course assessment)
 Math Placement Assessment
 Literacy Intervention Assessment
 K2 assessments in Foundational Reading and Math
 Diagnostic assessments
 Progress monitoring assessment tools  English
Language Development assessment tools
 Interim assessments (Benchmarks) aligned to the
Common Core State Standards in ELA and Math
Local schoolwide assessments

Evaluate students’ levels of academic performance
based on initial local assessment results.

Actions/Services

Charter
wide

Scope of
Service
Charter
wide

_x_
ALL (Subgroups and others will be determined
after baseline year)


OR:
__
Low Income pupils 
__
English Learners

Pupils to be served within identified scope of
service
_x_
ALL (Subgroups and others will be determined
after baseline year)


OR:
__
Low Income pupils 
__
English Learners
__
Foster Youth 
__
Redesignated fluent English
proficient 
__
Other
Subgroups:(Specify)
________________________

County Collaborative Charter School will also increase student course completion by 2% each year.

Funding Source

Purchasing
Charter Wide
Curriculum:
$284,000

Expenditure
Summary:
Books/Supplies
$10,000

Funding
Source:
PCSGP Grant
$10,000
LCFF

Budgeted
Expenditures
Purchasing
Charter wide
assessment
tools.
$10,000
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 Supporting English Language Learners using
research based strategies and curriculum
 Common Core State Standards English Language
Arts, mathematics, NGSS, and supplemental programs
 Response to Instruction and Intervention (RtI2)
 Effective use of technology for learning
 Assessment of student progress
 Writing, Speaking, and Listening Standards
 Content standards integration
 Integration of the Arts
 Strategies for students with disabilities in the
independent study model

_x_
ALL (Subgroups and others will be determined
after baseline year)


OR:
__
Low Income pupils 
__
English Learners
__
Foster Youth 
__
Redesignated fluent English
proficient 
__
Other
Subgroups:(Specify)
________________________

Professional development of teaching staff will be
conducted reflecting the priorities and topics below,
which support the implementation of Common Core
State Standards and the state’s priorities as identified
by the State Board of Education and California
Department of Education. Priority topics include:
Charter
wide

__
Foster Youth 
__
Redesignated fluent English
proficient 
__
Other
Subgroups:(Specify)
________________________

Focusing on:
 Online courses,
credit recovery, and core programs
 Supplemental curriculum and materials supporting
Common Core State Standards
 Content design lessons
 Extended school year
 Digital curriculum aligned to Common Core State
Standards
 Service vendors offering educational opportunities
across geographical area
● More small group activities to encourage
independent thinkers
● More rigorous assignments for kindergarten
students
● Schoolwide behavior system to eliminate
behavior issues that distract learning
● More training for teachers on classroom
management

Book/Supplies:
$2,000

Other operating
expenses :
$3,000:

Expenditure
Summary:

Funding
Source:
$5,000 LCFF
Unrestricted

Professional
Development:
$5,000;

Other operating
expense
$284,000

Expenditure
Summary:
Books and
Supplies:
$284,000

LCFF
Unrestricted
$284,000
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●

●
●

RtI Process
Purchase and use of various types of
curriculum
Tutor support from approved vendors

After reviewing student assessment data, we will
provide targeted interventions for students who are
struggling to meet grade level proficiency through:

Evaluate state testing results at County Collaborative
Charter School.

 Strategies for English Learners in the independent
study model
 Implementation of Safety Plans
 Standards‐Focused professional development
improving instructional capacity in all content areas
Strategies to support students and minimize number
of student dismissals/involuntary withdrawals

Charter
wide

_X_
ALL


OR:
__
Low Income pupils 
__
English Learners
__
Foster Youth 
__
Redesignated fluent English
proficient 
__
Other
Subgroups:(Specify)
________________________

Other operating
expense
$2,000

Expenditure
Summary:
Books and
Supplies
$3,000

Funding
Source:
LCFF
Unrestricted
$5,000

Purchasing
online
curriculum and
approved vendor
hire
$5,000
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Charter
wide

Charter
wide

Maintain and hire highly qualified classified employees
to ensure students have a high quality education.

Evaluate course completion rates at County
Collaborative Charter School.

Offer support to students as needed, including, but
not limited to, meeting with guidance director,
meeting with curriculum director, RtI Process, time
management training with student/parent.

Charter
Wide

Hire and retain multiple subject and single subject,
highly qualified certificated TK12 teachers to support
our wide geographic region.

_X_
ALL


OR:
__
Low Income pupils 
__
English Learners
__
Foster Youth 
__
Redesignated fluent English
proficient 
__
Other
Subgroups:(Specify)
________________________

X_
ALL


OR:
__
Low Income pupils 
__
English Learners
__
Foster Youth 
__
Redesignated fluent English
proficient 
__
Other
Subgroups:(Specify)
________________________

X_
ALL


OR:
__
Low Income pupils 
__
English Learners
__
Foster Youth 
__
Redesignated fluent English
proficient 
__
Other
Subgroups:(Specify)
________________________

Expenditure
Summary:
Salaries &
Benefits;
$32,000

Funding
Source:
Unrestricted
$32,000

Classified
Personnel
Salaries;

Expenditure
Summary:
Salaries &
Benefits;
$270,000

Funding Source
LCFF
Unrestricted
$270,000

Certificated
Personnel
Salaries;
$270,000
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In order to ensure that our County Collaborative
Charter School students are on the right track we
must conduct formal and informal assessments
throughout the school year. Conducting these
assessments allows our teachers to determine if a
child is learning the core subjects at a proficient level.
The assessments below are examples of the types of
assessments that can be given each year:
 Graduation checks
 Algebra EOC (End Of Course assessment)
 Math Placement Assessment
 Literacy Intervention Assessment
 K2 assessments in Foundational Reading and Math

Evaluate students’ levels of academic performance
based on initial local assessment results.
Charter
wide

Scope of
Service

Pupils to be served within identified scope of
service
_x_
ALL (Subgroups and others will be determined
after baseline year)


OR:
__
Low Income pupils 
__
English Learners
__
Foster Youth 
__
Redesignated fluent English
proficient 
__
Other
Subgroups:(Specify)
________________________

County Collaborative Charter School will also increase student course completion by 2% each year.

Expenditure
Summary:
Books/Supplies
$10,000

Funding
Source:
PCSGP Grant
$10,000
LCFF

Budgeted
Expenditures
Purchasing
Charter wide
assessment
tools.
$10,000

Based on baseline data, students with disabilities, low income, foster youth and EL pupils will increase proficiency on the
math and ELA CAASPP by 2% each year.

Actions/Services

Expected Annual
Measurable
Outcomes:

___
ALL


OR:
_x_
Low Income pupils 
_x_
English Learners
_x_
Foster Youth _
_
Redesignated fluent English
proficient 
_x_
Other
Subgroups:(Specify)
__SWD_____________________
_
LCAP Year 3
: 20182019

Charter
wide

County Collaborative Charter School will work to meet or exceed state targets as it relates to proficiency in CAASPP
(Smarter Balanced Assessment) in both ELA and Math by 2% each year.

The charter will monitor low income pupils, foster
youth, English Learners, and students with disabilities
using existing staff, for proficiency on state and local
assessments to ensure academic success or refer to
the SST or IEP team in the event the student is
struggling academically.
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Focusing on:
 Online courses,
credit recovery, and core programs
 Supplemental curriculum and materials supporting
Common Core State Standards
 Content design lessons
 Extended school year
 Digital curriculum aligned to Common Core State
Standards

The design and implementation of curriculum is a
critical component of the alignment of content and
instruction to the Common Core State Standards, as
well as development of multiple channels, pathways
and models assisting students in completing the
standards aligned content.

 Diagnostic assessments
 Progress monitoring assessment tools  English
Language Development assessment tools
 Interim assessments (Benchmarks) aligned to the
Common Core State Standards in ELA and Math
Local schoolwide assessments

Charter
wide

_x_
ALL (Subgroups and others will be determined
after baseline year)


OR:
__
Low Income pupils 
__
English Learners
__
Foster Youth 
__
Redesignated fluent English
proficient 
__
Other
Subgroups:(Specify)
________________________

Expenditure
Summary:

Funding Source
LCFF
Unrestricted
$298,000

Purchasing
Charter Wide
Curriculum:
$298,000
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 Supporting English Language Learners using
research based strategies and curriculum
 Common Core State Standards English Language
Arts, mathematics, NGSS, and supplemental programs
 Response to Instruction and Intervention (RtI2)
 Effective use of technology for learning
 Assessment of student progress
 Writing, Speaking, and Listening Standards
 Content standards integration
 Integration of the Arts
 Strategies for students with disabilities in the
independent study model
 Strategies for English Learners in the independent
study model
 Implementation of Safety Plans
 StandardsFocused professional development
improving instructional capacity in all content areas.
Strategies to support students and minimize number
of student dismissals/involuntary withdrawals

Professional development of teaching staff will be
conducted reflecting the priorities and topics below,
which support the implementation of Common Core
State Standards and the state’s priorities as identified
by the State Board of Education and California
Department of Education. Priority topics include:

 Service vendors offering educational opportunities
across geographical area
● More small group activities to encourage
independent thinkers
● More rigorous assignments for kindergarten
students
● Schoolwide behavior system to eliminate
behavior issues that distract learning
● More training for teachers on classroom
management
Charter
Wide

_x_
ALL (Subgroups and others will be determined
after baseline year)


OR:
__
Low Income pupils 
__
English Learners
__
Foster Youth 
__
Redesignated fluent English
proficient 
__
Other
Subgroups:(Specify)
________________________

Book/Supplies:
$2,000

Other operating
expenses :
$3,000:

Expenditure
Summary:

Funding
Source:
$5,000 LCFF
Unrestricted

Professional
Development:
$5,000;

Other operating
expense
$298,000

Books and
Supplies:
$298,000
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RtI Process
Purchase and use of various types of
curriculum
● Tutor support from approved vendors
Hire and retain multiple subject and single subject,
highly qualified, certificated TK12 teachers to support
our wide geographic region.

●
●

After reviewing student assessment data we will
provide targeted interventions for students who are
struggling to meet grade level proficiency through:

Evaluate state test results at County Collaborative
Charter School.

Charter
Wide

Charter
wide

X_
ALL


OR:
__
Low Income pupils 
__
English Learners
__
Foster Youth 
__
Redesignated fluent English
proficient 
__
Other
Subgroups:(Specify)
________________________

_X_
ALL


OR:
__
Low Income pupils 
__
English Learners
__
Foster Youth 
__
Redesignated fluent English
proficient 
__
Other
Subgroups:(Specify)
________________________

Expenditure
Summary:
Salaries &
Benefits;
$298,000

Funding Source
LCFF
Unrestricted
$298,000

Funding
Source:
LCFF
Unrestricted
$5,000
Certificated
Personnel
Salaries;
$298,000

Purchasing
online
curriculum and
approved vendor
hire
$5,000
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The charter will monitor low income pupils, foster
youth, English Learners, and students with disabilities
using existing staff, for proficiency on state and local
assessments to ensure academic success or refer to
the SST or IEP team in the event the student is
struggling academically.

Offer support to students as needed, including, but
not limited to, meeting with guidance director,
meeting with curriculum director, RtI Process, time
management training with student/parent.

Evaluate course completion rates at County
Collaborative Charter School.

Maintain and hire highly qualified classified employees
to ensure students have a high quality education.

Charter
wide

Charter
wide

Charter
wide

___
ALL


OR:
_x_
Low Income pupils 
_x_
English Learners
_x_
Foster Youth _
_
Redesignated fluent English
proficient 
_x_
Other
Subgroups:(Specify)
__SWD_____________________
_

_X_
ALL


OR:
__
Low Income pupils 
__
English Learners
__
Foster Youth 
__
Redesignated fluent English
proficient 
__
Other
Subgroups:(Specify)
________________________

X_
ALL


OR:
__
Low Income pupils 
__
English Learners
__
Foster Youth 
__
Redesignated fluent English
proficient 
__
Other
Subgroups:(Specify)
________________________

Expenditure
Summary:
Salaries &
Benefits;
$34,000

Funding
Source:
Unrestricted
$34,000

Classified
Personnel
Salaries;
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Maintain a high rate of ADA at 95% or higher or increase ADA by 2% each school year until
reaching 95% or above.

Expenditure
Summary
:
Books &
Supplies;
Unrestricted
$5,000

Related State and/or Local
Priorities:
1
_x_2
_x_3
_x_4
_x_5
_x_6
_x_
7
_x_8
_x_
GOAL
COE only: 9
__10
__
#2:
Increase graduation rate by 2% each year.
Local: Specify
Maintain a 0% expulsion rate.
School Attendance Rates
_____________________
To achieve and/or maintain school attendance rates to improve student learning, increase graduation rates and maintain
Identified Need:
a 0% expulsion rate.
Schools:
All County Collaborative Charter School 912 Programs
Goal Applies to:
Applicable Pupil Subgroups:
All
LCAP Year 1:
201617
From the 20152016 baseline, increase student average daily attendance rates by 2% annually
Expected Annual
Decrease students with chronic absenteeism by 2%
Measurable
Decrease student suspension rates by 0.5%
Outcomes:
Maintain a 0% expulsion rate within the charter
Scope of
Pupils to be served within identified scope of
Actions/Services
Service
Budgeted
service
Expenditures
_X_
ALL
Credit
Credit Recovery options will be offered for students
Charter
 Recovery
who are credit deficient, including but not limited to,
wide

Curriculum
Edgenuity and Apex credit recovery programs.
OR:
$5,000
__
Low Income pupils 
__
English Learners
__
Foster Youth 
__
Redesignated fluent English
Funding
proficient 
__
Other
Source
:
Subgroups:(Specify)
________________________
LCFF
Unrestricted
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Charter
wide

Charter
wide

Offer CAASPP support and graduation requirements
support with tutoring, counseling, and additional
credentialed teacher supports.

Prepare for an intersession option for students to
make up missed credits.

_X_
ALL


OR:
__
Low Income pupils 
__
English Learners
__
Foster Youth 
__
Redesignated fluent English
proficient 
__
Other
Subgroups:(Specify)
________________________

_X_
ALL


OR:
__
Low Income pupils 
__
English Learners
__
Foster Youth 
__
Redesignated fluent English
proficient 
__
Other
Subgroups:(Specify)
________________________

Certificated

Books &
Supplies;
$5,000

Expenditure
Summary

Funding
Source
:
LCFF
Unrestricted

Certificated
Personnel
Salaries;
Salaries &
Benefits;
Unrestricted
$2,000
Intersession
$10,000

Expenditure
Summary
Books &
Supplies;
$3,000

Funding
Source
:
LCFF
Unrestricted

CAASPP
Support
$5,000
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Charter
wide
X_
ALL


OR:
__
Low Income pupils 
__
English Learners
__
Foster Youth 
__
Redesignated fluent English
proficient 
__
Other
Subgroups:(Specify)
________________________

LCAP Year 2:
201718
From the 20152016 baseline, increase student average daily attendance rates by 2% annually
Expected Annual
Decrease students with chronic absenteeism by 2%
Measurable
Decrease student suspension rates by 0.5%
Outcomes:
Maintain a 0% expulsion rate within the charter.
Scope of
Pupils to be served within identified scope of
Actions/Services
Service
service
_X_
ALL
Credit Recovery options will be offered for students
Charter

who are credit deficient, including but not limited to,
wide

Edgenuity and Apex credit recovery programs.
OR:
__
Low Income pupils 
__
English Learners
__
Foster Youth 
__
Redesignated fluent English
proficient 
__
Other
Subgroups:(Specify)
________________________

 Parent notification of a child not completing
assignments
Accountability plan completed by a credentialed
teacher
 RtI is set up for students who are not meeting the
requirements of the independent study contract and
are not achieving
Removal from the voluntary independent study
program may be suggested.

Student attendance is directly related to student
success, here are steps we will ensure happen to
support improved student attendance.

Funding
Source
:
LCFF
Unrestricted

Budgeted
Expenditures
Credit
Recovery
Curriculum
$5,000

Personnel
Salaries;
Salaries &
Benefits;
Unrestricted
$5,000
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Charter
wide

Charter
wide

Offer CAASPP support and graduation requirements
support with tutoring, counseling, and additional
credentialed teacher supports.

Prepare for an intersession option for students to
make up missed credits.

_X_
ALL


OR:
__
Low Income pupils 
__
English Learners
__
Foster Youth 
__
Redesignated fluent English
proficient 
__
Other
Subgroups:(Specify)
________________________

_X_
ALL


OR:
__
Low Income pupils 
__
English Learners
__
Foster Youth 
__
Redesignated fluent English
proficient 
__
Other
Subgroups:(Specify)
________________________

Funding
Source
:
LCFF
Unrestricted

Intersession
$10,000

Certificated
Personnel
Salaries;
Salaries &
Benefits;
Unrestricted
$2,000

Expenditure
Summary
Books &
Supplies;
$3,000

Funding
Source
:
LCFF
Unrestricted

CAASPP
Support
$5,000

Expenditure
Summary
:
Books &
Supplies;
Unrestricted
$5,000
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Charter
wide
X_
ALL


OR:
__
Low Income pupils 
__
English Learners
__
Foster Youth 
__
Redesignated fluent English
proficient 
__
Other
Subgroups:(Specify)
________________________

LCAP Year 3:
201819
From the 20152016 baseline, increase student average daily attendance rates by 2% annually.
Expected Annual
Decrease students with chronic absenteeism by 2%.
Measurable
Decrease student suspension rates by 0.5%.
Outcomes:
Maintain a 0% expulsion rate within the charter.
Scope of
Pupils to be served within identified scope of
Actions/Services
Service
service

 Parent notification of a child not completing
assignments
 Accountability plan completed by a credentialed
teacher
 RtI is set up for students who are not meeting the
requirements of the independent study contract and
are not achieving
 Removal from the voluntary independent study
program may be suggested

Student attendance is directly related to student
success. Here are the steps we will ensure happen to
support improved student attendance:

Budgeted
Expenditures

Certificated
Personnel
Salaries;
Salaries &
Benefits;
Unrestricted
$5,000

Books &
Supplies;
$5,000

Expenditure
Summary
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Charter
wide

Charter
wide

Credit Recovery options will be offered for students
who are credit deficient, including but not limited to,
Edgenuity and Apex credit recovery programs.

Offer CAASPP support and graduation requirements
support with tutoring, counseling, and additional
supports.

_X_
ALL


OR:
__
Low Income pupils 
__
English Learners
__
Foster Youth 
__
Redesignated fluent English
proficient 
__
Other
Subgroups:(Specify)
________________________

_X_
ALL


OR:
__
Low Income pupils 
__
English Learners
__
Foster Youth 
__
Redesignated fluent English
proficient 
__
Other
Subgroups:(Specify)
________________________

Certificated
Personnel
Salaries;
Salaries &
Benefits;

Expenditure
Summary
Books &
Supplies;
$3,000

Funding
Source
:
LCFF
Unrestricted

CAASPP
Support
$5,000

Expenditure
Summary
:
Books &
Supplies;
Unrestricted
$5,000

Funding
Source
:
LCFF
Unrestricted

Credit
Recovery
Curriculum
$5,000
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Charter
wide

Student attendance is directly related to student
success. Here are the steps we will ensure happen to
support improved student attendance:

 Parent notification of a child not completing
assignments
 Accountability plan completed by a credentialed
teacher
 RtI is set up for students who are not meeting the
requirements of the independent study contract and
are not achieving
 Removal from the voluntary independent study
program may be suggested.

Charter
wide

Prepare for an intersession option for students to
make up missed credits.

X_
ALL


OR:
__
Low Income pupils 
__
English Learners
__
Foster Youth 
__
Redesignated fluent English
proficient 
__
Other
Subgroups:(Specify)
________________________

_X_
ALL


OR:
__
Low Income pupils 
__
English Learners
__
Foster Youth 
__
Redesignated fluent English
proficient 
__
Other
Subgroups:(Specify)
________________________

Certificated
Personnel
Salaries;
Salaries &
Benefits;
Unrestricted
$5,000

Books &
Supplies;
$5,000

Expenditure
Summary

Funding
Source
:
LCFF
Unrestricted

Unrestricted
$2,000
Intersession
$10,000
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Supporting Common Core State Standards, NGSS,
literacy at home, progress monitoring, and provide
parents notification of student ELD placement,
progress and reclassification.

Provide parent training, learning opportunities and
workshops:

Charter
wide

Scope of
Service

Pupils to be served within identified scope of
service
_X_
ALL


OR:
__
Low Income pupils 
__
English Learners
__
Foster Youth 
__
Redesignated fluent English
proficient 
__
Other
Subgroups:(Specify)
________________________

Funding
Source:

Budgeted
Expenditures
Hiring
Consultants
for Parent
Trainings.

Increase the percentage of students who stay in high school and middle school by 2% from the 20152016 baseline.

Gather data on middle school drop out rate.

Actions/Services

Expected Annual
Measurable
Outcomes:

Baseline gather the data from the parent/student surveys, amount of parents who took the survey, satisfaction
rate, and attendance of parent workshops.

Related State and/or Local
Priorities:
Clearly involve parents and community members in decision making at the program and
1
__2
__3
_x_4
__5
_x_6
_x_
charter levels. Provide connections between the community and school so as to foster
7
__8
__
GOAL
investment in education and provide meaningful transparent communication with all
COE only: 9
__10
__
#3:
stakeholders. Ensure that parents, students and teachers feel that our schools are
Local:
Promotion
of
Parent
providing a safe, positive environment for our students to learn.
Participation
___________________
__
The charter does not gather enough information to assess parents’ levels of engagement at the school and charter level.
Identified Need:
We complete small parent surveys on a sporadic basis and do not hold annual parent workshop of informative events
Schools:
All County Collaborative Charter School K12 Programs
Goal Applies to:
Applicable Pupil Subgroups:
All
LCAP Year 1:
201617
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Charter
wide

The administrative staff needs to explore the option
of hiring a marketing director, improving and
maintaining website, social media, and Yelp.
Additionally, using technology for better
communication between community, parents,
teachers, students, and staff.

_X_
ALL


OR:
__
Low Income pupils 
__
English Learners
__
Foster Youth 
__
Redesignated fluent English
proficient 
__
Other
Subgroups:(Specify)
________________________

_X_
ALL


OR:
__
Low Income pupils 
__
English Learners
__
Foster Youth 
__
Redesignated fluent English
proficient 
__
Other
Subgroups:(Specify)
________________________

Startup
Grant
$35,000

Funding
Source
LCFF

Managing
Websites,
social media
$35,000

Expected Annual
Measurable
Outcomes:

Gather the data from the parent/student surveys, amount of parents who took the survey, satisfaction rate, and
attendance of parent workshops.
Gather data on middle school drop out rate.
Increase the % of students who stay in high school and middle school by 2% from the 20162017 baseline.
Scope of
Pupils to be served within identified scope of
Budgeted
Actions/Services
Service
service
Expenditures

LCAP Year 2
: 201718

Charter
wide

The Charter will annually create and provide all
parents an opportunity to provide feedback on all
aspects of their child's education.

Expenditure
Summary:
Other
Operating
Expense:
$2,000

LCFF
Unrestricted
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Charter
wide

The administrative staff needs to explore the option
of hiring a marketing director, improving and
maintaining website, social media, and Yelp.
Additionally, using technology for better
communication between community, parents,
teachers, students, and staff.

_X_
ALL


OR:
__
Low Income pupils 
__
English Learners
__
Foster Youth 
__
Redesignated fluent English
proficient 
__
Other
Subgroups:(Specify)
________________________

_X_
ALL


OR:
__
Low Income pupils 
__
English Learners
__
Foster Youth 
__
Redesignated fluent English
proficient 
__
Other
Subgroups:(Specify)
________________________

_X_
ALL


OR:
__
Low Income pupils 
__
English Learners
__
Foster Youth 
__
Redesignated fluent English
proficient 
__
Other
Subgroups:(Specify)
________________________

LCAP Year 3
: 201819

Charter
wide

Charter
wide

The Charter will annually create and provide all
parents an opportunity to provide the charter
feedback on all aspects of their child's education.

Supporting Common Core State Standards, NGSS,
literacy at home, progress monitoring, and provide
parents notification of student ELD placement,
progress and reclassification.

Provide parent training, learning opportunities and
workshops.

Parental Involvement

Funding
Source
LCFF
Unrestricted
$30,000

Managing
Websites,
social media
$30,000

Expenditure
Summary:
Other
Operating
Expense:
$2,000

Funding
Source:
LCFF
Unrestricted

Hiring
Consultants
for Parent
Trainings.
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The Charter will annually create and provide all
parents an opportunity to provide the charter
feedback on all aspects of their child's education.

Parental Involvement
Provide parent training, learning opportunities and
workshops:
Supporting Common Core State Standard, NGSS,
literacy at home, progress monitoring, and provide
parents notification of student ELD placement,
progress and reclassification

Actions/Services

Expected Annual
Measurable
Outcomes:

Charter
wide

Charter
wide

Scope of
Service

_X_
ALL


OR:
__
Low Income pupils 
__
English Learners
__
Foster Youth 
__
Redesignated fluent English
proficient 
__
Other
Subgroups:(Specify)
________________________

Pupils to be served within identified scope of
service
_X_
ALL


OR:
__
Low Income pupils 
__
English Learners
__
Foster Youth 
__
Redesignated fluent English
proficient 
__
Other
Subgroups:(Specify)
________________________

Expenditure
Summary:
Other
Operating
Expense:
$2,000

Funding
Source:
LCFF
Unrestricted

Budgeted
Expenditures
Hiring
Consultants
for Parent
Trainings.

Gather the data from the parent/student surveys, amount of parents who took the survey, satisfaction rate, and
attendance of parent workshops.
Gather data on middle school drop out rate
Increase the % of students who stay in high school and middle school by 2% from the 20172018 baseline.
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Charter
wide

Goal Applies to:

Schools:
All County Collaborative Charter School 912th grade Programs
Applicable Pupil Subgroups:
All
LCAP Year 1:
201617
From
the
baseline
data
in
20152016
.......
Expected Annual

For Graduating Seniors 20152016
Current graduation rate is 0% * No 9th12th grade students.
Current seniors that are UC/CSU eligible or accepted into a fouryear college 0%
Current students who passed the AP exam with a 3 or higher is 0%

Funding
Source
LCFF
Unrestricted
$30,000

Managing
Websites,
social media
$30,000

Related State and/or Local
Priorities:
1
__2
__3
__4
_x_5
_x_6
__
7x
__8
__
COE only: 9
__10
__
Local: 
__College and Career
Readiness__________________

_X_
ALL


OR:
__
Low Income pupils 
__
English Learners
__
Foster Youth 
__
Redesignated fluent English
proficient 
__
Other
Subgroups:(Specify)
________________________

Ensure that secondary students are on
track to graduate from high school, are college and
career ready, and students experience academic progress and success.

Identified Need:

GOAL
#4:

The administrative staff needs to explore the option
of hiring a marketing director, improving and
maintaining the website, social media, and Yelp.
Additionally, using technology for better
communication between community, parents,
teachers, students, and staff.
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Availability of Guidance Counselor
RtI meetings held for atrisk students
Credit Recovery Options
Track A Summer Learning Option

Ensure all students have an opportunity for intensive
CAASPP preparation, specifically low socio economic,
EL, foster students and students with disabilities.






Charter
wide

Charter
wide

Scope of
Service

_X_
ALL


OR:
__
Low Income pupils 
__
English Learners
__
Foster Youth 
__
Redesignated fluent English
proficient 
__
Other
Subgroups:(Specify)
________________________

Pupils to be served within identified scope of
service
_X_
ALL


OR:
__
Low Income pupils 
__
English Learners
__
Foster Youth 
__
Redesignated fluent English
proficient 
__
Other
Subgroups:(Specify)
________________________

graduation rates by 2%
UC/CSU eligible or accepted to fouryear college students by 2%
pupils determined to be prepared for college by the Early Assessment Program by 2%
students who pass AP exams by 2%
EL/SWD proficiency rate on the ELA and Math by 2%
student proficiency rate on the CAASPP in ELA and math by 2%

Actions/Services

Increase
Increase
Increase
Increase
Increase
Increase

Focus on school climate and student engagement in
the high school programs through:

Measurable
Outcomes:

Expenditure
Summary:
Books and
Supplies
$3,000

Funding
Source: 
LCFF
Unrestricted

Expenditure
Summary
Salaries/Bene
fits 
$15,000
CAASSP
preparation
Curriculum
$3,000

Funding
Source:
LCFF
Unrestricted

Budgeted
Expenditures
.25 PPS
Counselor
$15,000
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Expected Annual

Maintain AVID schoolwide and AVID elective classes
for middle/high school students.

A comprehensive college and career readiness
program needs to be developed for middle and a high
school students that helps align student strengths
and interests to postsecondary goals, and improve
student outcomes and increase project based
learning opportunities.

Increase Career Technical opportunities (CTE) to
prepare students for the 21st century workforce

__
ALL


OR:
_x_
Low Income pupils 
_x_
English Learners
_x_
Foster Youth _
_
Redesignated fluent English
proficient 
__
Other
Subgroups:(Specify)
________________________

_X_
ALL


OR:
__
Low Income pupils 
__
English Learners
__
Foster Youth 
__
Redesignated fluent English
proficient 
__
Other
Subgroups:(Specify)
________________________

LCAP Year 2:
201718

Charter
wide

Charter
wide

Expenditure
Summary
Other
Operating
Expenses:
$2,000

Funding
Source:
LCFF
Restricted

Avid
Professional
Development
$2,000

Personnel
Salaries and
benefits;
$5,000

Books and
Supplies
$10,000

Expenditure
Summary:

Funding
Source:
LCFF
Unrestricted
$15,000

CTE Program
$15,000
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Availability of Guidance Counselor
RtI meetings held for at risk students
Credit Recovery Options
Track A Summer Learning Option

Ensuring that all students have opportunity for
intensive CAASPP preparation, specifically low socio
economic, EL, Foster students and Students with
Disabilities.






Charter
wide

Charter
wide

Scope of
Service

_X_
ALL


OR:
__
Low Income pupils 
__
English Learners
__
Foster Youth 
__
Redesignated fluent English
proficient 
__
Other
Subgroups:(Specify)
________________________

Pupils to be served within identified scope of
service
_X_
ALL


OR:
__
Low Income pupils 
__
English Learners
__
Foster Youth 
__
Redesignated fluent English
proficient 
__
Other
Subgroups:(Specify)
________________________

graduation rates by 2%
UC/CSU eligible students by 2%
pupils determined to be prepared for college by the Early Assessment Program by 2%
students who pass AP exams by 2%
EL/SWD proficiency rate on the ELA and Math by 2%
student proficiency rate on the CAASPP in ELA and Math by 2%

Actions/Services

Increase
Increase
Increase
Increase
Increase
Increase

Focus on school climate and student engagement in
the high school programs through:

Measurable
Outcomes:

Expenditure
Summary:
Books and
Supplies
$3,000

Funding
Source: 
LCFF
Unrestricted

Expenditure
Summary
Salaries/Bene
fits 
$15,000
CAASSP
preparation
Curriculum
$3,000

Funding
Source:
LCFF
Unrestricted

.25 PPS
Counselor
$15,000
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Maintain AVID schoolwide and AVID elective classes
for middle/high school students.

A comprehensive college and career readiness
program needs to be developed for middle and high
school students that helps align student strengths
and interests to postsecondary goals, and improve
student outcomes and increase project based
learning opportunities.

Increase Career Technical Opportunities (CTE) to
prepare students for the 21st century workforce.

Charter
wide

Charter
wide

__
ALL


OR:
_x_
Low Income pupils 
_x_
English Learners
_x_
Foster Youth _
_
Redesignated fluent English
proficient 
__
Other
Subgroups:(Specify)
________________________

_X_
ALL


OR:
__
Low Income pupils 
__
English Learners
__
Foster Youth 
__
Redesignated fluent English
proficient 
__
Other
Subgroups:(Specify)
________________________

Expenditure
Summary
Other
Operating
Expenses:
$2,000

Funding
Source:
LCFF
Restricted

Avid
Professional
Development
$2,000

Personnel
Salaries and
benefits;
$5,000

Books and
Supplies
$10,000

Expenditure
Summary:

Funding
Source:
LCFF
Unrestricted
$15,000

CTE Program
$15,000
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Availability of Guidance Counselor
RtI meetings held for at risk students
Credit Recovery Options
Track A Summer Learning Option

Focus on school climate and student engagement in
the high school programs through:
Charter
wide

Scope of
Service

_X_
ALL


OR:
__
Low Income pupils 
__
English Learners
__
Foster Youth 
__
Redesignated fluent English
proficient 
__
Other
Subgroups:(Specify)
________________________

Pupils to be served within identified scope of
service

LCAP Year 3:
201819
graduation rates by 2%.
UC/CSU eligible students by 2%.
pupils determined to be prepared for college by the Early Assessment Program by 2%.
students who pass AP exams by 2%.
EL/SWD proficiency rate on the ELA and Math by 2%.
student proficiency rate on the CAASPP in ELA and Math by 2%.

Actions/Services

Expected Annual
Measurable
Outcomes:

Increase
Increase
Increase
Increase
Increase
Increase

Expenditure
Summary
Salaries/Bene
fits 
$15,000

Funding
Source:
LCFF
Unrestricted

.25 PPS
Counselor
$15,000

Budgeted
Expenditures
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Charter
wide

Increase Career Technical Opportunities (CTE) to
prepare students for the 21st century workforce.

A comprehensive college and career readiness
program needs to be developed for middle and high
school students that helps align student strengths
and interests to postsecondary goals, and improve
student outcomes and increase project based
learning opportunities.

Charter
wide

Ensuring that all students have opportunity for
intensive CAASPP preparation specifically low socio
economic, EL, Foster students and Students with
Disabilities

_X_
ALL


OR:
__
Low Income pupils 
__
English Learners
__
Foster Youth 
__
Redesignated fluent English
proficient 
__
Other
Subgroups:(Specify)
________________________

_X_
ALL


OR:
__
Low Income pupils 
__
English Learners
__
Foster Youth 
__
Redesignated fluent English
proficient 
__
Other
Subgroups:(Specify)
________________________

Personnel
Salaries and
benefits;
$5,000

Books and
Supplies
$10,000

Expenditure
Summary:

Funding
Source:
LCFF
Unrestricted
$15,000

Expenditure
Summary:
Books and
Supplies
$3,000
CTE Program
$15,000

Funding
Source: 
LCFF
Unrestricted

CAASSP
preparation
Curriculum
$3,000
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Goal Applies to:

Identified Need:

GOAL
#5:

Charter
wide

Expenditure
Summary
Other
Operating
Expenses:
$2,000

Funding
Source:
LCFF
Restricted

Avid
Professional
Development
$2,000

Schools:
All County Collaborative Charter School K12th Grade Programs
Applicable Pupil Subgroups:
All
LCAP Year 1:
201617

Maintain that 100 % of students have instructional materials and/or learning experiences that have been aligned to the
Common Core standards.

Ensure proper vetting of our vendor providers and resource centers, as applicable, to ensure safety while our students
learn.

Local:
_Safety,Willaims___________

Related State and/or Local
Priorities:
1
_x_2
__3
__4
_x_5
_x_6
__
7
__8
__
COE only: 9
__10
__

__
ALL


OR:
_x_
Low Income pupils 
_x_
English Learners
_x_
Foster Youth _
_
Redesignated fluent English
proficient 
__
Other
Subgroups:(Specify)
________________________

Students have access to materials and/or learning experiences that are aligned to the
Common Core standards and to a safe, secure and aesthetically pleasing learning
environment.

Maintain AVID schoolwide and AVID elective classes
for middle/high school students.
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Budgeted
Expenditures

Scope of
Service

Pupils to be served within identified scope of
service

Budgeted
Expenditures

Maintain the percentage of resource centers, as applicable by program, in good repair at 100%.
Maintain the percentage of students who have access to standards aligned instructional materials at 100%.

Actions/Services

Expected Annual
Measurable
Outcomes:

Increased classes offered by the credentialed
teachers and not through approved vendors.

Charter
wide

Properly vet all newly hired vendors to ensure
standards alignment and safety for our students.

Pupils to be served within identified scope of
service
_X_
ALL


OR:
__
Low Income pupils 
__
English Learners
__
Foster Youth 
__
Redesignated fluent English
proficient 
__
Other
Subgroups:(Specify)
________________________

_X_
ALL


OR:
__
Low Income pupils 
__
English Learners
__
Foster Youth 
__
Redesignated fluent English
proficient 
__
Other
Subgroups:(Specify)
________________________
Charter
_X_
ALL
wide


OR:
__
Low Income pupils 
__
English Learners
__
Foster Youth 
__
Redesignated fluent English
proficient 
__
Other
Subgroups:(Specify)
________________________
LCAP Year 2
: 201718

Charter
wide

The charter will continue to maintain a safe learning
environment for all students by training the teachers
on school wide safety plans.

Scope of
Service

Maintain the percentage of school operated resource centers , as applicable by program, in good repair at 100%.
Maintain the percentage of students who have instructional materials and/or learning experiences that have been
aligned to the Common Core standards.

Actions/Services

Expected Annual
Measurable
Outcomes:
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Scope of
Service

Pupils to be served within identified scope of
service

Budgeted
Expenditures

Maintain the percentage of resource centers, as applicable by program, in good repair at 100%.
Maintain the percentage of students who have access to standards aligned instructional materials at 100%.

Actions/Services

Expected Annual
Measurable
Outcomes:

Increased classes offered by the credentialed
teachers and not through approved vendors.

Charter
wide

Properly vet all newly hired vendors to ensure
standards alignment and safety for our students.

_X_
ALL


OR:
__
Low Income pupils 
__
English Learners
__
Foster Youth 
__
Redesignated fluent English
proficient 
__
Other
Subgroups:(Specify)
________________________

_X_
ALL


OR:
__
Low Income pupils 
__
English Learners
__
Foster Youth 
__
Redesignated fluent English
proficient 
__
Other
Subgroups:(Specify)
________________________
Charter
_X_
ALL
wide


OR:
__
Low Income pupils 
__
English Learners
__
Foster Youth 
__
Redesignated fluent English
proficient 
__
Other
Subgroups:(Specify)
________________________
LCAP Year 3
: 201819

Charter
wide

The charter will continue to maintain a safe learning
environment for all students by training the teachers
on school wide safety plans.
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Charter
wide

Increased classes offered by the credentialed
teachers and not through approved vendors.

Identified Need:

To provide and maintain basic services for the students at our schools.

Related State and/or Local
Priorities:
1
__2
__3
__4
__5
__6
__7
__
8
_x_
COE only: 9
__10
__
Local:
_Teacher
AssignmentWilliams___________

_X_
ALL


OR:
__
Low Income pupils 
__
English Learners
__
Foster Youth 
__
Redesignated fluent English
proficient 
__
Other
Subgroups:(Specify)
________________________
_X_
ALL


OR:
__
Low Income pupils 
__
English Learners
__
Foster Youth 
__
Redesignated fluent English
proficient 
__
Other
Subgroups:(Specify)
________________________

_X_
ALL


OR:
__
Low Income pupils 
__
English Learners
__
Foster Youth 
__
Redesignated fluent English
proficient 
__
Other
Subgroups:(Specify)
________________________

Maintaining the appropriate assignment of teachers who are fully credentialed in the
subject areas of the pupils they are teaching
.

Charter
wide

Properly vet all newly hired vendors to ensure
standards alignment and safety for our students.

GOAL
#6:

Charter
wide

The charter will continue to maintain a safe learning
environment for all students by training the teachers
on school wide safety plans.
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High school staff/teachers thoroughly trained and up
to date in their knowledge of their assigned content
area.

Operations of the charter are maintained and
controlled through the management, oversight, and
provision of basic operating services to all by the
cabinet: Director of Education, Director of Student
Services and the Executive Directors.

Charter
wide

Charter
wide

Scope of
Service

X_
ALL


OR:
__
Low Income pupils 
__
English Learners
__
Foster Youth 
__
Redesignated fluent English
proficient 
__
Other
Subgroups:(Specify)
________________________

Pupils to be served within identified scope of
service
X_
ALL


OR:
__
Low Income pupils 
__
English Learners
__
Foster Youth 
__
Redesignated fluent English
proficient 
__
Other
Subgroups:(Specify)
________________________

Expenditure
Summary
:
Other Operating
Expenses
$5,000

Funding
Source:
LCFF
Unrestricted

Expenditure
summary:
Certificated
Salaries and
Benefits:
$22,000
Professional
Development
$5,000

Funding
source
:
LCFF
Unrestricted

Budgeted
Expenditures
Certificated
Employee
Salaries:
$60,000

We will maintain 100% compliance with appropriate subject area authorization and core course taught by highly
qualified teachers according to state and federal regulations.

Schools:
All County Collaborative Charter School K12th Grade Programs
Applicable Pupil Subgroups:
All
LCAP Year 1:
201617

Actions/Services

Expected Annual
Measurable
Outcomes:

Goal Applies to:
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LCAP Year 2
: 201718

High school staff/teachers thoroughly trained and up
to date on their knowledge of their assigned content
area.

Operations of the charter are maintained and
controlled through the management, oversight, and
provision of basic operating services to all by the
Central Office, Director of Education, Director of
Student Services and the Executive Directors.

Charter
wide

Charter
wide

Scope of
Service

X_
ALL


OR:
__
Low Income pupils 
__
English Learners
__
Foster Youth 
__
Redesignated fluent English
proficient 
__
Other
Subgroups:(Specify)
________________________

Pupils to be served within identified scope of
service
X_
ALL


OR:
__
Low Income pupils 
__
English Learners
__
Foster Youth 
__
Redesignated fluent English
proficient 
__
Other
Subgroups:(Specify)
________________________

Expenditure
Summary
:
Other Operating
Expenses
$5,000

Funding
Source:
LCFF
Unrestricted

Expenditure
summary:
Certificated
Salaries and
Benefits:
$23,000
Professional
Development
$5,000

Funding
source
:
LCFF
Unrestricted

Budgeted
Expenditures
Certificated
Employee
Salaries:
$60,000

We will maintain 100% compliance with appropriate subject area authorization and core course taught by highly
qualified teachers according to state and federal regulations.

Actions/Services

Expected Annual
Measurable
Outcomes:
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LCAP Year 3
: 201819

High school staff/teachers thoroughly trained and up
to date on their knowledge of their assigned content
area.

Operations of the charter are maintained and
controlled through the management, oversight, and
provision of basic operating services to all by the
Central Office, Director of Education, Director of
Student Services and the Executive Directors.

Charter
wide

Charter
wide

Scope of
Service

X_
ALL


OR:
__
Low Income pupils 
__
English Learners
__
Foster Youth 
__
Redesignated fluent English
proficient 
__
Other
Subgroups:(Specify)
________________________

Pupils to be served within identified scope of
service
X_
ALL


OR:
__
Low Income pupils 
__
English Learners
__
Foster Youth 
__
Redesignated fluent English
proficient 
__
Other
Subgroups:(Specify)
________________________

Expenditure
Summary
:
Other Operating
Expenses
$5,000

Funding
Source:
LCFF
Unrestricted

Expenditure
summary:
Certificated
Salaries and
Benefits:
$60,000
Professional
Development
$5,000

Funding
source
:
LCFF
Unrestricted

Budgeted
Expenditures
Certificated
Employee
Salaries:
$60,000

We will maintain 100% compliance with appropriate subject area authorization and core course taught by highly
qualified teachers according to state and federal regulations.

Actions/Services

Expected Annual
Measurable
Outcomes:
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(1) The number of cohort members who earned a regular high school diploma [or earned an adult education high school diploma or
passed the California High School Proficiency Exam] by the end of year 4 in the cohort where “cohort” is defined as the number of

(d) “High school graduation rate” shall be calculated as follows:

(3) Divide (1) by (2).

(2) The total number of cohort members.

(1) The number of cohort members who dropout by the end of year 4 in the cohort where “cohort” is defined as the number of
firsttime grade 9 pupils in year 1 (starting cohort) plus pupils who transfer in, minus pupils who transfer out, emigrate, or die
during school years 1, 2, 3, and 4.

(c) “High school dropout rate” shall be calculated as follows:

(b) “Middle School dropout rate” shall be calculated as set forth in California Code of Regulations, title 5, section 1039.1.

(3) Divide (1) by (2).

(2) The unduplicated count of pupils with a primary, secondary, or shortterm enrollment during the academic year (July 1 – June 30).

(1) The number of pupils with a primary, secondary, or shortterm enrollment during the academic year (July 1 – June 30) who are
chronically absent where “chronic absentee” means a pupil who is absent 10 percent or more of the schooldays in the school year
when the total number of days a pupil is absent is divided by the total number of days the pupil is enrolled and school was actually
taught in the total number of days the pupil is enrolled and school was actually taught in the regular day schools of the charter,
exclusive of Saturdays and Sundays.

(a) “Chronic absenteeism rate” shall be calculated as follows:

For the purposes of completing the LCAP in reference to the state priorities under Education Code sections 52060 and 52066, the following
shall apply:

LOCAL CONTROL AND ACCOUNTABILITY PLAN AND ANNUAL UPDATE APPENDIX

Annual Update Instructions: 
For each goal in the prior year LCAP, review the progress toward the expected annual outcome(s) based on,
at a minimum, the required metrics pursuant to Education Code sections 52060 and 52066. The review must include an assessment of the
82214 [California Department of Education]effectiveness of the specific actions. Describe any changes to the actions or goals the LEA will
take as a result of the review and assessment. In addition, review the applicability of each goal in the LCAP.

Annual Update
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4) What information (e.g., quantitative and qualitative data/metrics) was examined to review progress toward goals in the annual
update?

3) How have the actions/services addressed the identified needs and goals of specific schoolsites and were these actions/services
effective in achieving the desired outcomes?

2) How have the actions/services addressed the needs of all subgroups of pupils identified pursuant to Education Code section 52052,
including, but not limited to, English learners, lowincome pupils, and foster youth; and did the provision of those actions/services
result in the desired outcomes?

1) How have the actions/services addressed the needs of all pupils and did the provisions of those services result in the desired
outcomes?

Guiding Questions:

(3) Divide (1) by (2).

(2) The unduplicated count of pupils with a primary, secondary, or shortterm enrollment during the academic year (July 1 – June 30).

(1) The unduplicated count of pupils involved in one or more incidents for which the pupil was expelled during the academic year (July
1 – June 30).

(f) “Expulsion rate” shall be calculated as follows:

(3) Divide (1) by (2).

(2) The unduplicated count of pupils with a primary, secondary, or shortterm enrollment during the academic year (July 1 – June
30).

(1) The unduplicated count of pupils involved in one or more incidents for which the pupil was suspended during the academic year
(July 1 – June 30).

(e) “Suspension rate” shall be calculated as follows:

(3) Divide (1) by (2)

(2) The total number of cohort members.

firsttime grade 9 pupils in year 1 (starting cohort) plus pupils who transfer in, minus pupils who transfer out, emigrate, or die
during school years 1, 2, 3, and 4.
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Teachers will be trained in Common Core standards.

Administration will implement and teach accountability
system.

●

Aligns with the programs within the school’s
charter

Establish a professional development program that:

Planned Actions/Services
Budgeted
Expenditures
Certificated
Personnel
Salaries;
Salaries &
Benefits;

Teachers will be trained in course development and lesson
planning.
LCAP Year
: 20152016

Expected
Annual
Measurable
Outcomes:

Job descriptions for teaching positions will be specific to
the type of learning model.

●

●

●

●

Teacher expectations reviewed with teachers
on a monthly basis at individual review
meetings
BiMonthly Professional Development

Estimated
Actual

Annual Expenditures
Travel/Conferences:
$ 4,000
Professional
Development:
$ 2,000

Teacher accountability and expectations reviewed with
teachers on a monthly basis at individual review
meetings
Thursday Professional Development with Waldorf
Professors in order support Waldorf teaching methods
Monthly visits to other sites using Waldorf and cutting
edge teaching methods

Actual Actions/Services

Actual
Annual
Measurable
Outcomes:

●

To hire, train, and retain high quality staff who are committed to:
Related State and/or Local Priorities:
● excellence in their duties as Homeschooling and/or Independent Study staff
1
_X_2
_X_3
__4
__5
__6
__7
_X_
Original GOAL
members
8
_
_
from prior year
● ensuring implementation of academic content
COE only: 9
__10
__
LCAP:
● allowing for pupil enrollment in a broad course of study that includes all subject
Local : Specify 
_____________________
areas.
Schools:
All programs
Goal Applies to:
Applicable Pupil Subgroups:
All
This will be a baseline year to determine staffing needs.
● Job descriptions specific to WaldorfInspired model

6) What differences are there between budgeted expenditures and estimated actual annual expenditures? What were the reasons for any
differences?

5) What progress has been achieved toward the goal and expected measurable outcome(s)? How effective were the actions and services
in making progress toward the goal? What changes to goals, actions, services, and expenditures are being made in the LCAP as a
result of the review of progress and assessment of the effectiveness of the actions and services?
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Addresses best practices
Addresses California state standards and Common
Core

Identifies areas for professional development
Gives regular and meaningful feedback to staff
Captures data that indicates student progress
working with the identified teacher

Establish a training model for Program Leads:

●
●
●

Establish a teacher accountability system that:

●
●

Certificated
Personnel
Salaries;
Salaries &
Benefits;

Professional
Services;
Unrestricted
$5,000

Unrestricted
$15,000

●

●

●

●

●

●

Program Lead receives training from
administrators in Waldorf Education
Attends Waldorf Admin Seminars

Teachers communicate areas where they
need support
Teachers and Program Lead reflected on what
is working and not working, shared feedback,
and problemsolved together during weekly
staff meetings and monthly individual
meetings
During staff meetings, staff discussed
progress made by students identified as
needing additional support

meetings in order to meet the needs of
teachers and what they have identified as their
weaknesses/areas of improvement.
Teachers attend school and program wide
trainings in order to incorporate best practices
and common core/Waldorf standards

Salaries:
$15,000
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To understand and implement the accountability
system
Recognize hard working teachers
Offer assistant and trainings to teachers who are
struggling

OR:
__
Low Income pupils 
__
English Learners
__
Foster Youth 
__
Redesignated fluent English proficient
__
Other Subgroups:(Specify)
______________

__
ALL

Scope of service:

OR:
__
Low Income pupils 
__
English Learners
__
Foster Youth 
__
Redesignated fluent English proficient
__
Other Subgroups:(Specify)
______________

_X_
ALL

Scope of service:

●
●

●

Unrestricted
$20,000

Program Lead receives support from charter
school admin
Attends charter conferences to build
understanding of the charter “world”
Program Lead provides mentorship,
collaboration, and oneonone meetings with
all teachers
Goals and monthly evaluations reviewed at
individual meetings in order to provide
teachers with support with discipline,
curriculum, and teaching strategies

Scope of
service:
__
ALL
OR:
__
Low Income pupils 
__
English Learners
__
Foster Youth 
__
Redesignated fluent English
proficient 
__
Other
Subgroups:(Specify)
________________________

Scope of
service:
_X_
ALL
OR:
__
Low Income pupils 
__
English Learners
__
Foster Youth 
__
Redesignated fluent English
proficient 
__
Other
Subgroups:(Specify)
________________________

●

●

●

●
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Planned Actions/Services

LCAP Year
: 20152016
Budgeted
Expenditure
s

For years following it will be to increase completion of
courses as they are reflective of student success.

For years following it will be to increase state test
scores.

Goal Applies to:

Expected
Annual
Measurable
Outcomes:

Raise student academic performance K12.

Schools:
All programs
Applicable Pupil Subgroups:
All
This will be a baseline year to determine students’
levels of performance in the classroom.

Original GOAL
from prior year
LCAP:

What changes in actions, services, and
expenditures will be made as a result of
reviewing past progress and/or changes to
goals?

●

Estimated
Actual

Annual
Expenditures

State test score data (available once released
from state)

Portfolio reviews and internal testing scores
Standardized test scores (NWEA, SBAC)

Actual Actions/Services

Actual
Annual
Measurable
Outcomes:

●
●

Related State and/or Local Priorities:
1
__2
_X_3
_X_4
_X_5
_X_6
_X_
7
_X_8
__
COE only: 9
__10
__
Local : Specify
_____________________
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Scope of service:

OR:
__
Low Income pupils 
__
English Learners
__
Foster Youth 
__
Redesignated fluent English
proficient 
__
Other
Subgroups:(Specify)
______________

_X_
ALL

Scope of service:

To evaluate course completion rates at County
Collaborative Charter School.

To evaluate state testing results at County
Collaborative Charter School.

To evaluate students’ levels of academic performance
based on initial NWEA results.

Certificated
Personnel
Salaries;
Salaries &
Benefits;
Unrestricted
$5,000

Certificated
Personnel
Salaries;
Salaries &
Benefits;
Unrestricted
$5,000

Assessment
Tools; Books
& supplies;
Unrestricted
;
$10,000

No current high school program in this
charter.

State test score data (available once
released from state)

Using NWEA in the Fall and Spring.
Plan to use Scantron for the 20162017
school year

Scope of
service:

Scope of
service:
_X_
ALL
OR:
__
Low Income pupils 
__
English Learners
__
Foster Youth 
__
Redesignated fluent English
proficient 
__
Other
Subgroups:(Specify)
_____________________
___

●

●

●
●

Student Testing:
$2,000
Salaries:
$5,000
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Students will complete their course requirements for
graduation.

Planned Actions/Services

Students will pass CAHSEE.
LCAP Year
: 20152016

Expected
Annual
Measurable
Outcomes:

Goal Applies to:

No high school program in this charter

Actual Actions/Services

Actual
Annual
Measurable
Outcomes:

●

Related State and/or Local Priorities:
1
_X_2
_X_3
_X_4
_X_5
_X_6
_X_
7
_X_8
_X_
COE only: 9
__10
__
Local : Specify
_____________________

__
ALL
OR:
__
Low Income pupils 
__
English Learners
__
Foster Youth 
__
Redesignated fluent English
proficient 
__
Other
Subgroups:(Specify)
_____________________
___

Increase graduation rates for all seniors and provide strategic interventions to
graduate on time.

Schools:
All programs
Applicable Pupil Subgroups:
All
This will be a baseline year to determine graduation
rates.

Original GOAL
from prior year
LCAP:

What changes in actions, services, and
expenditures will be made as a result of
reviewing past progress and/or changes
to goals?

OR:
__
Low Income pupils 
__
English Learners
__
Foster Youth 
__
Redesignated fluent English
proficient
__
Other Subgroups:(Specify)
______________

__
ALL
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Prepare for an intersession option for students to
make up missed credits.

Offer CAHSEE support classes/workshops to provide
additional support and skills to pass the test.

Credit recovery options will be offered for students
who are credit deficient.

Certificated
Personnel
Salaries &
Benefits;

Personnel
Salaries;
Salaries &
Benefits;
Unrestricted
$10,000

Books &
Supplies;
Unrestricted
$5,000
Certificated

Certificated
Personnel
Salaries;
Salaries &
Benefits;
Unrestricted
$10,000

Budgeted
Expenditure
s
Books &
Supplies;
Unrestricted
$30,000

●

●

●

Not applicable

Not applicable

Not applicable

Estimated
Actual

Annual
Expenditures
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What changes in actions, services, and
expenditures will be made as a result of
reviewing past progress and/or changes
to goals?

Scope of
service:
__
ALL
OR:
__
Low Income pupils 
__
English Learners
__
Foster Youth 
__
Redesignated fluent English
proficient 
__
Other
Subgroups:(Specify)
_____________________
___

Scope of
service:
_X_
ALL
OR:
__
Low Income pupils 
__
English Learners
__
Foster Youth 
__
Redesignated fluent English
proficient 
__
Other
Subgroups:(Specify)
_____________________
___

Do to the removal of the CAHSEE, that goal, action item, and expenditure has been removed.

OR:
__
Low Income pupils 
__
English Learners
__
Foster Youth 
__
Redesignated fluent English
proficient
__
Other Subgroups:(Specify)
______________

__
ALL

Scope of service:

OR:
__
Low Income pupils 
__
English Learners
__
Foster Youth 
__
Redesignated fluent English
proficient 
__
Other
Subgroups:(Specify)
______________

_X_
ALL

Scope of service:

Unrestricted
$50,000
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$35, 259

In order to increase and improve services and outcomes for all students, including Low Income, Foster Youth, and English Learners, the
LCFF supplemental funding will be directed toward the programs with some services being coordinated at the charter level. The
charterwide unduplicated pupil percentage is 5.51%. The charter has considered various options and believes charterwide use of funds is
the most efficient way to increase and improve outcomes for students. All charter schools provide learning and support opportunties
during based on analysis of students’s needs. Leveled learning and leveled course offerings for ELA,math, science, and arts make it
necessary and most efficient to utilize funds on a charterwide and program wide basis. Instruction, professional development, and other
actions to support implementation of Common Core State Standards, integration of technology for delivery of instruction and student
collaration, refinement of teaching strategies for differentiated learning and universal access, student and parent involvement, and a
positive school climate has been and will continue tobe delivered on a charterwide and program wide basis to ensure that all students,
including low income, foster youth, and English learners have the opportunity to benefit. Funds will additionally benefit students and
families of undiplicated students charterwise as programs, services, resources, and engagement activities are provided and enhanced.

The charter total enrollment is 80 students with 5 students meeting Unduplicated Pupil Count eligibility as a Sociaoeconomically
Disadvantages/Low Income, Foster Youth, or English Learner (EL student). The total amount of LCFF supplemental funding available to
provide increased and/or improved services to “unduplicated pupils” calculated to be $35,259

Total amount of Supplemental and Concentration grant funds
calculated:

For school charters with below 55 percent of enrollment of unduplicated pupils in the charter or below 40 percent of enrollment of
unduplicated pupils at a schoolsite in the LCAP year, when using supplemental and concentration funds in a charterwide or schoolwide
manner, the school charter must additionally describe how the services provided are the most effective use of funds to meet the
charter’s goals for unduplicated pupils in the state and any local priority areas. (See 5 CCR 15496(b) for guidance.)

Describe how the LEA is expending these funds in the LCAP year. Include a description of, and justification for, the use of any funds in
a charterwide, schoolwide, countywide, or charterwide manner as specified in 5 CCR 15496.

A. In the box below, identify the amount of funds in the LCAP year calculated on the basis of the number and concentration of low
income, foster youth, and English learner pupils as determined pursuant to 5 CCR 15496(a)(5).

Section 3: Use of Supplemental and Concentration Grant funds and Proportionality
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%

Consistent with the requirements of 5 CCR 15496, demonstrate how the services provided in the LCAP year for low income pupils,
foster youth, and English learners provide for increased or improved services for these pupils in proportion to the increase in funding
provided for such pupils in that year as calculated pursuant to 5 CCR 15496(a)(7). An LEA shall describe how the proportionality
percentage is met using a quantitative and/or qualitative description of the increased and/or improved services for unduplicated pupils
as compared to the services provided to all pupils.

42238.07, 47605, 47605.5, 47606.5, 48926, 52052, 5206052077, and 64001, Education Code; 20 U.S.C. Section 6312.

NOTE: Authority cited: Sections 42238.07 and 52064, Education Code. Reference: Sections 2574, 2575, 42238.01, 42238.02, 42238.03,

The percentage increase in funding is speculative  based on enrollment figures in ELL, foster youth, and low income subgroups remaining
static from preLCFF funding to the new model. Based on these assumptions, County Collaborative Charter School has budgeted a
commensurate increase in funding to reach these subgroups, specifically the school will provide: adaptive online content from a variety of
curriculum options, the Fuel Ed College & Career Readiness platform from Naviance, Brainhoney, echnology equipment, local
assessments, enhanced project based learning, options for ELL students, comprehensive curriculum for EL learners, improved data
analytics reporting across subgroups using a third party dashboard, an extended world language platform for English language,
assessment tool that drives and provides customized instructional resources for the Response to Intervention (RTI) program.

5.51

c

B. In the box below, identify the percentage by which services for unduplicated pupils must be increased or improved as compared to the
services provided to all pupils in the LCAP year as calculated pursuant to 5 CCR 15496(a).
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Mission and Vision

County Collaborative Charter School will harness the power of a flexible learning environment and modern educational
technology to serve learners with diverse backgrounds and goals who seek an education alternative that stimulates and
supports independent learning. Through the power and flexibility of its standards-based online and home study
curriculum, combined with superior individualized support, County Collaborative Charter School will provide an
inspirational learning environment with enriched and rigorous academics and high standards to empower students to
become self-motivated and competent lifelong learners who will make a positive impact in their communities.
Goals and Vision for EL Master Plan
The ultimate goal of the County Collaborative Charter School English Learner Program is to develop English language
literacy in each English Learner (EL) as effectively and rapidly as possible so that students experience academic success
comparable to native English speakers.
The Master Plan for English Learners serves as a standard for consistent program implementation and evaluation of
services for English Learners. With a common staff understanding of the goals and procedures, English learners will
receive consistent high-quality services designed to meet their academic and linguistic needs by:

● P
 roviding all students with the opportunity to participate in high quality curricular activities that address
academic standards
● Offer programs based on student need and sound educational pedagogy

●
●
●
●
●

Provide

for and honor parent choice

Provide

staff and parent training

Embrace

parent involvement in the educational process

Provide

a process for monitoring the effectiveness of the program

Valuing

bi-literacy as a gift that will assist the student in life

Federal case law (Castañeda vs. Pickard, 648F.2d 989, 1981) requires that the main goals of the English Learner
Program are to develop the English language fluency of each English Learner as effectively and as efficiently as possible,
and to develop mastery of the core curriculum comparable to native English speakers.
The court set forth the following standards for effective programs for English Learners:
1. The program is based on educational theory that is research-based, has proven methodology, and is recognized by
experts in the field.
2. The programs or practices used are calculated to effectively implement the
adopted theory, and
3. The program successfully produces results that indicate that language barriers
are being overcome.
Home Language Survey
At the time of enrollment, all parents fill out a Home Language Survey (HLS). The HLS is completed either through the
online registration process or through a paper packet. This HLS is used to determine the primary language of the student
and remains housed in the charter’s student information system. Once initially determined, the primary language need not
be redetermined until the student is redesignated based on qualifying criteria. While cumulative student records are in
transit for a student transferring from another California School District, CALPADS shall be used to determine whether a
student has a history of being an English Language Learner.
If a student has a history of being an English Learner s/he will be given an annual ELPAC assessment during the
February 1st through May 31st test window.. If a student is new to the California Public School System and answers any
of the first three questions of the HLS with a language other than English, further research will be done to determine if
s/he will be given an initial ELPAC assessment within 30 days of enrollment.

ELPAC Testing
The state-approved instrument used for language assessment is the English Language Proficiency Assessments for
California (ELPAC). The ELPAC assesses the four domains of listening, speaking, reading, and writing in English and is
aligned to the English-language development (ELD) standards adopted by the State Board of Education (SBE). The
ELPAC results are reported by four performance levels which provide an overall English performance level attained by
students as well as performance levels in the domains of Reading, Writing, Listening and Speaking. The ELPAC test is
administered by trained staff and is given only once for initial identification, and each year thereafter for annual progress
monitoring.
Student Results
Once tests are scored by the testing agency, Individual student reports are mailed to the charter and student data files
can be downloaded from the ELPAC web site. Once received, parents will be informed of test results within 30 calendar
days. Parents are notified of results in writing in a language they can understand (or orally, if they are unable to
understand written communication). Parents will also be notified in any language of which 15% or more of the student
population speaks in common. One copy of the individual student score report is also added to each student’s cumulative
file. Additionally, each student’s test results are recorded on the Student English Language File (ELF) data card and
uploaded to the charter’s student information system.

ELPAC Proficiency Level Definitions
The following are general description of students’ skills at each of the ELPAC proficiency levels. Note that each
proficiency level builds on the preceding level.
English Learner progress may be marked by periods of accelerated or slow growth, reversals of progress, attainment of
language plateaus, and unparalleled development of listening, speaking, reading, and writing skills. At each level, the
English Learner continues to expand his/her social and academic vocabulary and his/her capacity to learn grade-level
content delivered in unmodified English.
Level 1
English learners at this level have minimally developed oral (listening and speaking) and written (reading and writing)
English skills. They tend to rely on learned words and phrases to communicate meaning at a basic level. They need
substantial-to-moderate linguistic support to communicate in familiar social and academic contexts; they need substantial
linguistic support to communicate on less familiar tasks and topics. This test performance level corresponds to the
“Emerging” proficiency level, as described in the 2012 ELD Standards.
Level 2
English learners at this level have somewhat developed oral (listening and speaking) and written (reading and writing)
skills. They can use English to meet immediate communication needs but often are not able to use English to learn and
communicate on topics and content areas. They need moderate-to-light linguistic support to engage in familiar social and
academic contexts; they need substantial-to-moderate support to communicate on less familiar tasks and topics. This test
performance level corresponds to the mid- to low-range of the “Expanding” proficiency level, as described in the 2012
ELD Standards.
Level 3
English learners at this level have moderately developed oral (listening and speaking) and written (reading and writing)
skills. They can sometimes use English to learn and communicate in meaningful ways in a range of topics and content
areas. They need light to minimal linguistic support to engage in familiar social and academic contexts; they need
moderate support to communicate on less familiar tasks and topics. This test performance level corresponds to the lower
range of the “Bridging” proficiency level through the upper range of the “Expanding” proficiency level, as described in the
2012 ELD Standards.

Level 4
English learners at this level have well developed oral (listening and speaking) and written (reading and writing) skills.
They can use English to learn and communicate in meaningful ways that are appropriate to different tasks, purposes, and
audiences in a variety of social and academic contexts. They may need occasional linguistic support to engage in familiar
social and academic contexts; they may need light support to communicate on less familiar tasks and topics. This test
performance level corresponds to the upper range of the “Bridging” proficiency level, as described in the California English
Language Development Standards, Kindergarten Through Grade 12 (2012 ELD Standards).
English Language Development Standards
The state-adopted ELD Standards establish a framework for teachers to follow as they facilitate students’ development of
the skills necessary to meet grade-level standards in English language arts and the content areas. The standards
describe what students should know and be able to do at each of the five levels of English proficiency. Each ELD
standard is tied to one or more of the grade level English Language Arts Standards and serves as a measure for
determining a student's progress toward meeting the English Language Arts Standards. When students attain the early
advanced proficiency level, they are expected to be reclassified and meet the same rigorous grade-level standards as
native English speakers are expected to master.

Link to ELD Standards

http://www.cde.ca.gov/sp/el/er/documents/eldstndspublication14.pdf
Link to Rubric for ELD Proficiency Levels
https://docs.google.com/a/cccs.education/document/d/1VaAdgj_gLVATrGBlTBh7YSVcufHY6TCxctSjj9voil8/edit?usp=sha
ring

Curriculum that Supports English Language Development
Charter schools enrolling EL students have a dual obligation, as do all LEAs, to provide a program for ELs designed to
overcome language barriers and provide access to the core curriculum (Castañeda v. Pickard 648 F.2d 989, [5th Cir.
1981]). The CDE recognizes that both services, including designated ELD, must be an integral part of a comprehensive
program for every EL student. The CDE has informed administrators that charter schools are required to provide English
learner instructional services that meet this dual obligation, and other services determined necessary by the charter
school, immediately.
English Language Mainstream Program
The majority of English Learners in the County Collaborative Charter School will be placed in a Mainstream English
Program. This instructional program is designed to promote the acquisition of high levels of English language proficiency,
as well as access to the core curriculum. In the Mainstream English program, English is the language of instruction for all
subjects with no primary language support. Students in an English Mainstream Program will be supported by their
primary instructor through the use of SDAIE strategies. Students may also be concurrently enrolled in an ELD support
class. English learners in the English Mainstream Program will receive English Language Development instruction until
they are reclassified as English proficient. In the English Language Mainstream Program of County Collaborative Charter
School:

● C
 ore instruction in language arts, math, science and social science is taught in English using charter approved

curriculum and SDAIE methodology
● English Language Learners receive ELD instruction which addresses the ELD standards in listening, speaking,
reading and writing.
● Teachers working with EL students will be appropriately authorized, i.e. CLAD or equivalent.

SDAIE (Specially Designed Academic Instruction in English)
SDAIE is instruction in a subject area, delivered in English, that is specially designed to meet the needs of
limited-English-proficient pupils. Academic instruction through English is modified to meet the student's level of language
proficiency. Teachers use specialized strategies that enable students to understand, participate in and access the core
curriculum. SDAIE is an instructional methodology, not a program
(EC 44253.2[b]).

●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

 SDAIE Strategies:
Speak slowly and use repetition
Lots of visuals and realia
Manipulatives available
Activate prior knowledge
Focus on the meaning
Graphic organizer/Charts
Preview-Review
Gestures and facial expressions
Self-selected reading
Scaffolding (visual content, graphic organizers)
Consistent and Immediate Feedback
Summarizing and Re-Teaching
Reciprocal Teaching

English Language Development (ELD) Instruction
English learners in the County Collaborative Charter School participate in an instructional program that supports their
acquisition of informal English and teaches them the patterns of formal academic English. The instruction is designed to
provide for students experiences with English that are understandable and meaningful and enable the students to
communicate with peers and adults and thereby participate fully in the academic program.
Instructional Materials to Support the CA CCSS for ELA/Literacy and CA ELD Standards
The State Board of Education adopts instructional materials for use by students in kindergarten through grade eight.
LEAs- school districts, charter schools, and county office of education- ARE NOT required to purchase state-adopted
instructional materials according to EC Section 60210(a). If an LEA chooses to use non-adopted materials it has the
responsibility to adopt materials that best meet the needs of its students and to conduct its own evaluation of instructional
materials. The review must include a majority of classroom teachers from that content area or grade-level ED Section
60210(c). EC Section 60002 requires the LEA to promote the involvement of parents and other members of the
community in the selection of instructional materials, in addition to teacher involvement.
ELA/literacy and ELD curricula should be well designed, comprehensive, and integrated.
The ability to read, write, and communicate with competence and confidence in English across a range of personal and
academic contexts expands students’ opportunities for career and college success, full and wise participation in a
democratic society and global economy, and achievement of their personal aspirations. Moreover, skill in literacy and
language provides individuals with access to extraordinary and powerful literature that widens perspectives, illuminates
the human experience, and deepens understandings of self and others.
The CA ELD Standards are aligned to the CA CCSS for ELA/Literacy as they amplify (magnify and make clear) areas of
English language development that are crucial for academic learning. The standards emphasize language learning as a
social process and language itself as a complex and dynamic meaning-making resource. They promote the notion of
supporting English learner (EL) students to develop awareness that different languages and variations of English exist
and that their home languages and cultures are valuable resources in their own right and useful for building proficiency in
English.

Key Themes of ELA/Literacy and ELD Instruction
Instruction focuses on...
Meaning Making
Meaning making is at the heart of ELA/literacy and ELD instruction. It is the central purpose for
interacting with text, producing text, engaging in research, participating in discussion, and giving
presentations. It is the reason for learning the foundational skills and for expanding language. Meaning
making includes literal understanding but is not confined to it at any grade or with any student.
Inference making and critical reading, writing, and listening are given substantial and explicit attention
in every discipline. Among the contributors to meaning making are language, knowledge, motivation,
and in the case of reading and writing, the ability to recognize printed words and use the alphabetic
code to express ideas.
Language Development
Language is the cornerstone of literacy and learning. It is with and through language that students
learn, think, and express information, ideas, perspectives, and questions. The strands of the CA CCSS
for ELA/ Literacy—Reading, Writing, Speaking and Listening, and Language—all have language at the
core, as do the parts of the CA ELD Standards—Interacting in Meaningful Ways, Learning About How
English Works, and Using Foundational Literacy Skills. Students enrich their language as they read,
write, speak, and listen and as they interact with one another and learn about language. The
foundational skills provide access to written language.
Effective Expression
Each strand of the CA CCSS for ELA/Literacy and each part of the CA ELD Standards includes
attention to effective expression. Students learn to examine the author’s craft as they read, analyzing
how authors use language, text structure, and images to convey information, influence their readers,
and evoke responses. Students learn to effectively express themselves as writers, discussion partners,
and presenters, and they use digital media and visual displays to enhance their expression. They gain
command over the conventions of written and spoken English, and they learn to communicate in ways
appropriate for the context and task.
Content Knowledge
Content knowledge is a powerful contributor to comprehension of text. It also undergirds the ability to
write effective opinions/arguments, narratives, and explanatory/informational text; engage in meaningful
discussions; and present ideas and information to others. It contributes significantly to language
development, and it is fundamental to learning about how English works. Both sets of standards ensure
that students can learn from informational texts and can share their knowledge as writers and
speakers. An organized independent reading program contributes to knowledge. Content knowledge
has a powerful reciprocal relationship with the development of literacy and language.
Foundational Skills
Acquisition of the foundational skills enables students to independently read and use written language
to learn about the world and themselves; experience extraordinary and diverse works of literary fiction
and nonfiction; and share their knowledge, ideas, stories, and perspectives with others. Students who
know how to decode and develop automaticity with an increasing number of words are best positioned
to make significant strides in meaning making, language development, effective expression, and
content knowledge. At the same time, attention to those themes provides the very reason for learning
about the alphabetic code and propels progress in the foundational skills.
(See the Resource Guide to the Foundational Skills at

www.cde.ca.gov/ci/rl/cf/documents/foundskillswhitepaper.pdf.)
Parent Notification of Programs
All parents of English learners, regardless of proficiency, must be notified at initial enrollment and annually, in writing, of
program placement of their children and must also be provided with a full written description of our program, including
educational materials used in this program and their entitlement to request a waiver. The information must be provided in
a language the parents understand. Such a notification shall accompany the parent notification of assessment results
within 30 days of the beginning of the school year.
Monitoring of Long Term English Learners
ELs with little or no English proficiency need more time than native-English speakers to meet grade-level benchmarks in
English and State mandated testing targets. This is especially true for ELs who have made little or no progress after five
plus years in any of these areas. This group is often referred to as “long-term English language learners.” Schools must
monitor student progress to assure that additional and appropriate learning opportunities are provided in English language
development and in reading, writing and other academic content areas in order to close the achievement gap.
Benchmark Assessments, course grades, and the CAASPP Assessments, along with the number of years a student has
been designated as an English Learner are used to determine if a student is making the appropriate movement toward
reclassification as Fluent English Proficient.
If it is determined that a student is not making “adequate progress”, further evaluation and intervention will be planned by
the teacher and parent to support students who are not meeting interim benchmarks. Interventions will be noted and filed
on the student’s English Learner File (ELF) data card located in their cumulative folder and/or in a collaborative google
document.
Catch-Up Plan
The Charter is committed to closing the achievement gap for all students, including English Learners. The Instructional
Support System for English Learners is a part of the standards based system of instruction, assessment, monitoring and
evaluation provided for all students.
The Instructional Support System for English Learners is designed to provide the mechanisms for recording EL
achievement, detecting academic deficits and monitoring the effectiveness of interventions.
To ensure all students will catch up to their grade-level peers, we have the following essential elements:
1. All English Learners are held to the same Charter-adopted curriculum and performance standards in the core curricular
areas as all other students.
2. All English Learners participate in a program of curriculum and instruction that is aligned to State standards, and
designed to reduce all language barriers.
● The English Learner program is designed to assure that participating EL students acquire English and learn
grade-level academic content simultaneously and to the greatest extent possible.
● Components of this program include: English Language Development, Grade-level core curriculum and assessment.
3. The Instructional Support System for English Learners includes an assessment and reporting process of student
academic achievement for all students, including English Learners. The use of multiple measures, the disaggregating of
student achievement data, and the regular reporting of student achievement data are integral components of the Charter
assessment and reporting process and recorded on the English Learner File (ELF) card.
4. The performance of EL and RFEP students are monitored:.

● Students identified in need of interventions are provided the appropriate intervention aimed at filling in gaps in content
knowledge so that ELs can gain full access to grade-level core content instruction in a reasonable period of time.
● Any areas of deficiency are noted and appropriate modifications in instructional programs or student support systems
are identified.

.
Instructional Support System

The Instructional Support System described here for ELs is based on five (5) essential elements that include: Adopted
curriculum standards; curriculum and instruction aligned with adopted standards; assessment and reporting; charter and
site level monitoring and intervention; and program evaluation.
1. Charter Adopted Curriculum Standards
In the County Collaborative Charter School each EL student is held to the same charter adopted curriculum standards in
the core curricular areas of English Language Arts, Math, History-Social Science and Science as every other charter
student. In addition, each EL student is expected to demonstrate mastery of the adopted ELD standards.
2. Curriculum and Instruction Aligned with Adopted Standards
The County Collaborative Charter School supports each EL student in his/her appropriate level of language development
in the core courses. Each EL participates in an instructional program with state adopted materials that are aligned to
charter and state standards. Staff members, through articulation meetings, discusses and interprets data on English
Learner students to address the issues surrounding EL students who may have been in the educational system for some
time and seem to be unable to move beyond this level.
3. Assessment and Reporting
The County Collaborative Charter School administers all State mandated examinations. ELPAC assessments and
ongoing multiple measures are used to assess student proficiency. Results are entered onto the student’s English Learner
File card for instructional planning and monitoring. Overall EL results are shared with the CEO and governing board.
4. Monitoring and Intervention.
EL student assessment results are written on their English Learner File card. The results are monitored for student
progress in line with the catch-up-plan, redesignation criteria and to evaluate student learning in order to inform instruction
and provide interventions as needed. When, according to on-going assessments, students are unable to meet interim
expectations in academic content, students shall be referred by teachers and parents to receive academic interventions
and support that enable them to overcome any academic deficits before they become irreparable. The intervention itself
will directly target the identified academic need. Delivery of the intervention shall be monitored and documented. The
effectiveness of the intervention will then be determined based on student work and assessments.
Note: When Special Education students identified English Learners are not making adequate progress Special Education
teachers must schedule an IEP meeting to discuss further interventions.
Staffing Authorizations
Under the management of the Director of Human Resources, the County Collaborative Charter School takes an active
role in the recruitment and staffing of authorized personnel for all English learner programs and makes it a priority to hire
CLAD or equivalent Education Specialists. Teachers providing instruction in a Mainstream English Program shall be
authorized to provide appropriate core content and ELD instruction. This is achieved via a CLAD or equivalent
authorization.
Teachers who are not currently authorized but who are working with English learners shall be required to sign a
memorandum of understanding stipulating that they will be actively participating in professional development designed to
secure an appropriate authorization within two years. The HR Department will then monitor attendance at professional
development activities to ensure that such teachers remain on track to complete the necessary training for their
authorizations.

Professional Development
County Collaborative Charter School provides ongoing professional development opportunities to all teachers and staff
working with English Learners. The goal of this training is to help educators acquire specific skills needed to work with
English Learners in the areas of ELD instruction, comprehensible core content instruction, program designs, curriculum
expectations, the Catch-up Plan, processes and services for English Learners. Training should also focus on
multiculturalism and up-to-date research and pedagogy for ELs to receive equitable and accessible support and
opportunities to achieve and reach their goals.
Staff development opportunities include, but are not limited to the following:

●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●
●

ELD

Standards

Rubric
ELD

for determining ELD proficiency

strategies and instruction

SDAIE

strategies and instruction

Differentiated
Teaching

instruction

to Multiple Intelligences

Charter

Catch-up plan training

English

Learner File data card and EL Cumulative file training

Shared

Best Practices

To ensure that all staff working with parents of EL students are appropriately trained, training participation and completion
is reported to Leads and HR.
Redesignation
California Education Code (EC) Section 313 and the California Code of Regulations (5CCR) Section 11308 require that
each English learner who 1) has demonstrated English language proficiency comparable to that of the average native
English speaker and 2) who can participate effectively in a curriculum designed for pupils of the same age whose native
language is English be redesignated as Fluent English Proficient (R-FEP). County Collaborative Charter School
recognizes the importance and irreversibility of this item and has established the following criteria and process to fully
address this obligation.
Once a student has demonstrated that he/she is ready to participate fully in all English instruction without special support
services, the student is ready for redesignation.
Redesignation Criteria
The County Collaborative Charter School uses the following criteria to redesignate English learners to Redesignate Fluent
English Proficient (RFEP) status:
●

●
●
●

Minimum ELPAC Overall Score of 4
○ Minimum ELPAC Oral Language Score of 4
○ Minimum ELPAC Written Language Score of 3
Teacher Evaluation
Parent Approval
Smarter Balanced and/or Local Assessments can also be used in determining student readiness for redesignation

Redesignation Process
Redesignation is the culmination of the student's participation in the program for English Learners and is conducted each
year when ELPAC score reports are received by the charter.

Based on the above redesignation criteria, if a student is deemed to qualify for redesignation, a letter will be drafted by the
administration. The letter will include all data pertinent to the redesignation. Once the letter has been signed by
Administration and the parents of the student, the redesignation will take place. The language acquisition status of the
student will be updated in the student information and ultimately in the state reporting system (CALPADS). Additionally,
all teachers associated with the student will be informed of the redesignation
Monitoring of redesignated students
The No Child Left Behind Act of 2001, Title III requires that redesignated students be monitored for a period of at least 24
months following redesignation. The School Lead, Teachers, Parent, and the Assessment Coordinator supervise the
process of monitoring redesignated students. School staff will use the Smarter Balanced Assessment, local multiple
measure scores, and teacher assessments and observations to semi-annually monitor the progress of R-FEP students for
a period no less than 24 months after reclassification. Student performance shall be reviewed at each progress reporting
period. Those students found to be regressing in their academic performance will be referred to receive an academic
intervention in the specific area of need (please see EL Catch-up Plan Interventions). This monitoring of R-FEP students
is recorded and filed in each student’s English Learner File located in their cumulative file or in a shared google document.

English Learners in Special Education
IEP teams will ensure that each English learner receives appropriate services to develop English proficiency and have
equitable access to the full curriculum. Each English Learner’s IEP shall include linguistically appropriate goals and
objectives based on the student’s level of English proficiency and based on the ELD standards. Such goals and objectives
will fully address ELD and core content instruction. Each IEP shall also clearly delineate the person(s) and/or programs
responsible for providing each instructional service. A parental exception waiver is not required for an English learner
whose IEP indicates that instructional services will be provided through an Alternative Program.
Assessment
Students whose initial Home Language Survey indicates that a language other than English is spoken will be assessed on
the ELPAC test within the first 30 days of school annually. ELPAC testing is considered to be one of the state’s
standardized tests; therefore, accommodations/modifications provided in the IEP for any standardized test will apply.
SpEd students with an existing EL classification will be assessed annually. If a student is slated to take the ELPAC test,
who also would qualify for the CAPA, the Special Education Director will be notified so that we can evaluate the need for
an alternative assessment for English language proficiency.
Designation
Students who are designated as English Learners MUST have their ELD needs addressed as part of their IEP. Students
who have been reclassified as Fluent English Proficient (RFEP or FEP) or who were initially identified as Fluent English
Proficient (IFEP) are not considered English Learners for the purpose of the IEP. Their progress is still monitored, but
English Language Development does not need to be addressed on the IEP.
The needs of English Learners are addressed in several places on the IEP:

●
○
○
○

Student Information:

●
○

Present Levels:

Is the student an English Learner?
What is the student’s primary language?

Proficiency Level and Date: Overall ELPAC proficiency level and scaled score from most recent annual
assessment (This information can be obtained from the English Learner Specialist, the SIS, the student’s ELF card or
from the English Learner folder that is part of the student’s cumulative file)
○
Is an interpreter required? (for the parents) Indicate the language for the interpreter.

Most recent ELPAC scores should be listed for each domain area (list performance level as well as scaled score)

○

Academic Skills: In addition to the academic data usually included, it should be indicated how the student’s
English language development needs, if any, will be addressed in each academic area. For each area on the ELPAC that
falls below level 3, the student’s IEP must h
 ave a goal written to address that area (i.e. listening, speaking, reading, and/or
writing).
○
Communication: Information on the student’s language development should be specified in this section of the
IEP, including the student’s primary language and how the student’s language development (expressive and receptive)
relates to his/her ability to communicate with others and its impact on his/her school performance.

●
○

Special Factors:

●
○

Annual Goals:

●
○

Services:

Testing Accommodations/Modifications: If the student needs the same accommodations or modifications as are
being used on the CAASPP tests, the box next to “Other statewide/charter assessments” will be checked and “Same as
Above” for the listed accommodation/modification will be written.

“Each English Learner’s IEP shall include linguistically appropriate goals and objectives based on the student’s
level of English proficiency and based on the ELD standards. Such goals and objectives will fully address ELD and core
content instruction. Each IEP shall also clearly delineate the person(s) and/or programs responsible for providing each
instructional service.
○
For each area on the ELPAC that falls below level 3, the student’s IEP must have a goal written to address that
area (i.e. listening, speaking, reading, and/or writing).
○
Ensure that goals are linguistically appropriate (see below)

If the student requires any supplemental aids or services or any special education services to enable the student
to benefit from their ELD services or setting, they will be listed in the IEP. If the IEP team determines that the student’s
program should be modified from that of other ELD students in order to meet the student’s unique educational needs, that
modification should be listed in the IEP.
Writing Linguistically Appropriate Goals and Benchmarks●
Based on the most recent ELPAC results and other information on the Present Levels page, identify the “Areas of
Need” that the IEP goals will address in listening, speaking, reading and writing.
●
In the Baseline section, describe what the student is currently able to do in the skill area of need and indicate the
ELPAC proficiency level in parenthesis.
●
For example: Area of Need: Writing, Baseline: Student is able to write simple sentences with some errors in
grammar and syntax (ELPAC Writing - Level 1)
●
Write (or modify from a goal bank selection) an annual goal to ensure that it is linguistically appropriate and
includes the words “in English.”
○
For example: By (date), following teacher-led prewriting activities, (student name) will compose a single
paragraph in English including a topic sentence, three supporting sentences and a concluding paragraph with ___%
accuracy in ___ of ___ trials as measured by student work samples.
Note: It is best practice to insert the phrase “in English” to emphasize the language component of the goal.

●

Check the “Linguistically Appropriate” box to indicate the goal is linguistically appropriate to meet the student’s
English language development needs.
Special Education EL Redesignation
In some cases, an IEP team may find that it is the disability that interferes with a student’s ability to demonstrate English
fluency. In these cases, the IEP team, can recommend redesignation of the student to RFEP status.
The Administrative Designee and/or Case Manager should include the rationale for redesignation.

Avoid:

●
●

Focus on family history…...Focus on assessment results and the impact of the disability

Including parents’ wishes for reclassification or opinion as to the validity of ELPAC scores or current English
learner status (focus on the needs of the child)
●
Basing recommendation for changing EL Status on the belief of the parent(s) or team members that the EL status
or Home Language Survey was erroneous to begin with and therefore the student should never have been classified as
EL. This is a matter outside of the scope of the IEP team and cannot be the basis for the team’s recommendation for
redesignation.
If the recommendation for redesignation is taking place as part of the student’s initial IEP or annual review, then all other
pages of the IEP are completed to reflect the recommendation that the student is to be redesignated as RFEP
(Redesignated Fluent English Proficient). If the recommendation for redesignation is taking place between annual
reviews, then in addition to completing the IEP Team Recommendation for Reclassification of Special Education English
Learners form, an IEP Amendment meeting and form must also be completed. All applicable staff should be a part of the
redesignation meeting. If the team decides to reclassify the student as RFEP, the Special Education teacher will include a
copy of the IEP Team Recommendation for Redesignation of Special Education English Learners form in the EL file, will
update the English Learner File Data Card and follow all other redesignation procedures. These procedures include
notifying the Data and Assessment Department of the redesignation. Because this is an IEP team recommendation, the
parents must be part of the decision. If the redesignation is not agreed upon, the IEP team must ensure that the IEP
continues to address the needs of the student who remains designated as an English learning student.

Parent Advisory Committees
The goal of the Parent Advisory Committee is to promote positive collaboration between parents and the County
Collaborative Charter School:
● Includes parents and community members in the decision-making, planning and evaluation of English Learner
Master Plan.
● Develop a working partnership between parents and the schools to provide equal access to education for all
students.
● Promote open communication with parents and community members.

Accountability and Evaluation

California has been working for the past several years to improve education at the state level. The goal is to increase the
academic achievement of all students by creating a coordinated system through the use of content and performance
standards. In response to statewide accountability reform, [County Collaborative Charter School] provides clearly-defined
standards and expectations for student learning and has a primary goal that all students will meet the charter's academic
content and performance standards.
Through the County Collaborative Charter School assessment program, the Data and Assessment Department carefully
considers what students are asked to do, how student performance is evaluated and how evaluation results are used. The
assessment program is responsive to the developmental differences, linguistic differences, and special needs of English
Learners. Through multiple forms of assessment, the County Collaborative Charter School is able to determine to what
degree English Learners are achieving English proficiency and meeting academic achievement goals.
The County Collaborative Charter School assessment practices with respect to English Learners are designed to:

●
●
●
●

Assess

and monitor language development by time in program

Assess

academic achievement in meeting grade level core standards

Assess

progress of ELs achieving ELD grade level standards

Ensure

learning opportunities in reading and writing are provided

● M
 onitor that targeted interventions are working
Assessment data is compiled, analyzed and reported by the County Collaborative Charter School Leads and Data and
Assessment Department. Their reports are then analyzed by the Executive Director and Programs Director to produce a
set of suggested program modifications which are then shared with the local Board of Trustees, Leads, Education
Specialists, and EL parents for additional input and approval.
County Collaborative Charter School annually determines the number and percentage of English Learners reclassified to
fluent English proficient (R-FEP) when completing the annual language census, R-30. The R-30 reports the actual count
of EL, FEP, and R-FEP students during the calendar year as well as the number of teachers providing and authorized to
provide appropriate instruction for English Learners.

Exhibit I: Supporting Student Data Performance
2018 Smarter Balanced ELA Comparison Data
Achievement Level
Mean Scale Score
Standard Exceeded: Level 4
Standard Met: Level 3
Standard Nearly Met: Level 2
Standard Not Met: Level 1

County
Collaborative
Charter
N/A
30.77%
31.95%
15.98%
21.30%

San Diego
Unified

Sweetwater
Union High

State of
California

N/A
27.36%
28.99%
20.00%
23.65%

N/A
18.81%
33.98%
23.24%
23.97%

N/A
21.25%
28.63%
22.58%
27.54%

Mountain
Empire
Unified
N/A
11.75%
26.56%
24.09%
37.60%

San Pasqual
Academy

Monarch

N/A
0.00%
20.00%
26.67%
53.33%

N/A
1.50%
18.05%
18.05%
62.41%

San Diego
San Diego
County
County Court
Community
N/A
N/A
0.90%
0.61%
4.95%
4.85%
15.77%
15.15%
78.38%
79.39%

2018 Smarter Balanced MATH comparison Data
Achievement Level
Mean Scale Score
Standard Exceeded: Level 4
Standard Met: Level 3
Standard Nearly Met: Level 2
Standard Not Met: Level 1

County
Collaborative
Charter
N/A
22.35%
16.47%
27.06%
34.12%

County
Collaborative
Achievement Level
Charter
Percent Standard Met or Exceeded
62.72%

San Diego
Unified

Sweetwater
Union High

State of
California

N/A
25.59%
21.57%
23.74%
29.10%

N/A
13.14%
19.35%
26.20%
41.31%

N/A
18.64%
20.01%
25.90%
35.45%

Mountain
Empire
Unified
N/A
6.86%
14.19%
29.42%
49.53%

San Pasqual
Academy

Monarch

N/A
0.00%
0.00%
7.69%
92.31%

N/A
1.49%
2.24%
23.88%
72.39%

San Pasqual
Academy

Monarch

20.00%

19.55%

2018 Smarter Balanced ELA comparison Data
San Diego
Unified

Sweetwater
Union High

State of
California

56.35%

52.79%

49.88%

Mountain
Empire
Unified
38.31%

San Diego
San Diego
County
County Court
Community
N/A
N/A
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
0.00%
5.53%
4.40%
94.47%
95.60%

San Diego
San Diego
County
County Court
Community
5.85%
5.46%

2018 Smarter Balanced MATH comparison Data

Achievement Level

San Diego
Unified

Percent Standard Met or Exceeded

47.16%

County
Collaborative
Charter
38.82%

State of
California

Sweetwater
Union High

38.65%

32.49%

Mountain
Empire
Unified
21.05%

San Pasqual
Academy

Monarch

0.00%

3.73%

San Diego
San Diego
County
County Court
Community
0.00%
0.00%

2018 Smarter Balanced Math Comparison Data
Percent Standard Met or Exceeded
50.00%
45.00%
40.00%
35.00%
30.00%
25.00%
20.00%
15.00%
10.00%
5.00%
0.00%

San Diego
County
Unified Collaborative
Charter

State of
California

Sweetwater
Union High

Mountain
Empire
Unified

San Pasqual
Academy

Monarch

San Diego
San Diego
County
County Court
Community
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
Board of Directors
County Collaborative Charter School
Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of County Collaborative Charter School (the
School) which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2017, and the related
statements of activities, cash flows and functional expenses for the year then ended, and the related notes
to the financial statements.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.
Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.
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Board of Directors
County Collaborative Charter School
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.
Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to on page one present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the School as of June 30, 2017, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America.
Other Matters
Supplementary Information
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the School’s financial statements as a
whole. The accompanying supplementary schedules are presented for purposes of additional analysis
and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of
management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records
used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing
and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare
the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion,
the information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole.
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated December 11,
2017 on our consideration of the School’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
effectiveness of the School’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is
an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering
the School’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP
Glendora, CA
December 11, 2017
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COUNTY COLLABORATIVE CHARTER SCHOOL
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
June 30, 2017

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable
Loans to related parties
Prepaid expenses and other assets

$

39,347
12,464
327,298
5,550
384,659

Total current assets
Total assets
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable
Revolving loan payable, current portion

$

384,659

$

151,274
50,000
201,274

Total current liabilities
LONG-TERM LIABILITIES:
Revolving loan payable

50,006
50,006

Total long-term liabilities
NET ASSETS:
Unrestricted
Total net assets
Total liabilities and net assets

$

133,379
133,379
384,659

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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COUNTY COLLABORATIVE CHARTER SCHOOL
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

REVENUES:
State revenue:
State aid
Other state revenue
Local revenue:
In-lieu property tax revenue
Investment income
Other revenue
Total revenues

$

281,587
142,120
109,868
178
537
534,290

EXPENSES:
Program services
Management and general
Total expenses

357,406
187,859
545,265

Change in unrestricted net assets

(10,975)
144,354

Beginning unrestricted net assets
$

Ending unrestricted net assets

133,379

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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COUNTY COLLABORATIVE CHARTER SCHOOL
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017
CASH FLOWS from OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Change in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash flows
from operating activities:
Change in operating assets:
Accounts receivable
Loans to related parties
Prepaid expenses and other assets
Change in operating liabilities:
Accounts payable
Loans payable to related parties

$

(10,975)

11,073
212,702
7,700
(212,132)
(4,799)

Net cash flows from operating activities

3,569

CASH FLOWS from FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Repayments of debt

(49,998)

Net cash flows from financing activities

(49,998)

Net change in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

$

SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION:
Cash paid for interest during the fiscal year

$

(46,429)
85,776
39,347

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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COUNTY COLLABORATIVE CHARTER SCHOOL
STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Salaries and wages
Pension expense
Other employee benefits
Payroll taxes
Management fees
Legal expenses
Accounting expenses
Instructional Materials
Other fees for services
Advertising and promotion expenses
Office expenses
Information technology expenses
Occupancy expenses
Travel expenses
Interest expense
Insurance expense
Other expenses

Program

Management

Total

Services

and General

Expenses

$

195,228 $
2,126
10,219
274
31,688
25,550
14,400
20,582
44
2,052
8,237
47,006
357,406 $

$

22,902 $
13,614
14,784
14,761
58,583
3,230
45,067
1,339
292
13,287
187,859 $

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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218,130
2,126
23,833
15,058
14,761
58,583
3,230
31,688
70,617
14,400
21,921
44
2,052
8,237
292
13,287
47,006
545,265

COUNTY COLLABORATIVE CHARTER SCHOOL
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017
NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Nature of Activities – County Collaborative Charter School (the School) is a not-for-profit benefit
corporation under the laws of the State of California that operates a California public charter school.
Cash and Cash Equivalents – The School defines its cash and cash equivalents to include only cash on
hand, demand deposits, and liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less.
Use of Estimates – The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, and disclosures. Accordingly, actual
results could differ from those estimates.
Basis of Accounting – The financial statements have been prepared on the accrual method of accounting
and accordingly reflect all significant receivables and liabilities.
Functional Allocation of Expenses – Costs of providing the School’s programs and other activities
have been presented in the statement of functional expenses. During the year, such costs are
accumulated into separate groupings as either direct or indirect. Indirect or shared costs are allocated
among program and support services by a method that best measures the relative degree of benefit.
Basis of Presentation – The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States as prescribed by the Financial Accounting
Standards Board.
Net Asset Classes – The School is required to report information regarding its financial position and
activities according to three classes of net assets: unrestricted, temporarily restricted, and permanently
restricted. Net assets of the School are defined as:




Unrestricted: All resources over which the governing board has discretionary control to use in
carrying on the general operations of the School.
Temporarily restricted: These net assets are restricted by donors to be used for specific purposes.
The School does not currently have any temporarily restricted net assets.
Permanently restricted: These net assets are permanently restricted by donors and cannot be used
by the School. The School does not currently have any permanently restricted net assets.

Receivables – Accounts receivable primarily represent amounts due from federal and state governments
as of June 30, 2017. Management believes that all receivables are fully collectible, therefore no
provisions for uncollectible accounts were recorded.
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COUNTY COLLABORATIVE CHARTER SCHOOL
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017
NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Property Taxes – Secured property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on property as of January 1.
Taxes are levied on September 1 and are payable in two installments on or before November 1 and
February 1. Unsecured property taxes are not a lien against real property and are payable in one
installment on or before August 31. The County bills and collects property taxes for all taxing agencies
within the County and distributes these collections to the various agencies. The sponsor agency of the
School is required by law to provide in-lieu property tax payments on a monthly basis, from August
through July. The amount paid per month is based upon an allocation per student, with a specific
percentage to be paid each month.
Revenue Recognition – Amounts received from the California Department of Education are recognized
as revenue by the School based on the average daily attendance (ADA) of students. Revenue that is
restricted is recorded as an increase in unrestricted net assets if the restriction expires in the reporting
period in which the revenue is recognized. All other restricted revenues are reported as increases in
temporarily restricted net assets.
Contributions – All contributions are considered to be available for unrestricted use unless specifically
restricted by the donor. Amounts received that are restricted to specific use or future periods are reported
as temporarily restricted. Restricted contributions that are received and released in the same period are
reported as unrestricted revenue. Unconditional promises to give expected to be received in one year or
less are recorded at net realizable value. Unconditional promises to give expected to be received in more
than one year are recorded at fair market value at the date of the promise. Conditional promises to give
are not recognized until they become unconditional, that is, when the conditions on which they depend
are substantially met.
Income Taxes – The School is a non-profit corporation exempt from the payment of income taxes under
Internal Revenue Code Section 501(c)(3) and California Revenue and Taxation Code Section 23701d.
Accordingly, no provision has been made for income taxes. Management has determined that all income
tax positions are more likely than not of being sustained upon potential audit or examination; therefore,
no disclosures of uncertain income tax positions are required. The corporation files informational returns
in the U.S. federal jurisdiction, and the state of California. The statute of limitations for federal and
California state purposes is generally three and four years, respectively.
Evaluation of Subsequent Events – The School has evaluated subsequent events through December 11,
2017, the date these financial statements were available to be issued.
NOTE 2: CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK
The School maintains cash balances held in banks and revolving funds which are insured up to $250,000
by the Federal Depository Insurance Corporation (FDIC). At times, cash in these accounts exceeds the
insured amounts. The School has not experienced any losses in such accounts and believes it is not
exposed to any significant credit risk on its cash and cash equivalents.
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COUNTY COLLABORATIVE CHARTER SCHOOL
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017
NOTE 2: CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK
The School also maintains cash in the County Treasury (the County). The County pools these funds
with those of other educational Schools in the County and invests the cash. These pooled funds are
carried at costs which approximates market value. Interest earned is deposited quarterly into
participating funds. Any investment losses are proportionately shared by all funds in the pool. The
County is authorized to deposit cash and invest excess funds by California Government Code Section
53648 et. seq. The funds maintained by the County are either secured by federal depository insurance or
collateralized. The fair value of the School’s deposits in this pool as of June 30, 2017, as provided by the
pool sponsor was approximately 32,721.
NOTE 3: LONG-TERM DEBT
California Department of Education
County received a revolving loan from the California Department of Education (CDE) in the amount of
$250,000. The loan requires annual principal payments of $50,000. The loan has a term of 5 years and
carries an interest rate of .22%. Annual payments of principal and interest are deducted from County’s
apportionment.
The loan repayment by year is as follows:
Year Ended
June 30,
2018
2017

$
Total

50,000
50,006

$ 100,006

NOTE 4: OPERATING LEASES
The School leases facilities under a multi-year lease agreements where the last lease expires in June of
2019. The lease expense for the year ended June 30, 2017 was $45,696.
Future minimum lease payments are as follows:
Year Ended
June 30,
2018
2019
Total

$

45,696
3,808

$

49,504
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COUNTY COLLABORATIVE CHARTER SCHOOL
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

NOTE 5: RELATED PARTIES
The School is part of a network of charter schools in California offering various types of independent
study programs. This network shares resources, management and board oversight. Occasionally each
school may have temporarily loans receivable/payable between one another during and as of the year
ended. At June 30, 2017 the School had a loan receivable of $327,298 from the network of schools.
NOTE 6: CONTINGENCIES
The School has received state and federal funds for specific purposes that are subject to review and audit
by the grantor agencies. Although such audits could generate disallowances under terms of the grants, it
is believed that any required reimbursement would not be material.
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SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

COUNTY COLLABORATIVE CHARTER SCHOOL
LOCAL EDUCATION AGENCY ORGANIZATION STRUCTURE
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017
County Collaborative Charter School was established in 2014, when it was granted its charter through
Mountain Empire Unified School District (MEUSD) and its charter school status from the California
Department of Education. The charter may be revoked by the District for material violations of the
charter, failure to meet or make progress toward student outcomes, failure to meet generally accepted
standards of fiscal management, or violation of any provision of the law.
The charter school number is: 1628
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COUNTY COLLABORATIVE CHARTER SCHOOL
LOCAL EDUCATION AGENCY ORGANIZATION STRUCTURE (continued)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017
The Board of Directors and the Administrator as of the year ended June 30, 2017 were as follows:
COUNTY - BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Member
Dr. William Hall
Steve Fraire
Mike Humphrey
Joey Estrada
Peter Matz

Office
President
Vice-President
Member
Clerk
Member

Term Expires
June 30, 2018
June 30, 2018
June 30, 2018
June 30, 2018
June 30, 2018

ADMINISTRATOR
Kurt Madden
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COUNTY COLLABORATIVE CHARTER SCHOOL
SCHEDULE OF INSTRUCTIONAL TIME
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

N/A - The charters schools are non-classroom programs.

See independent auditor’s report and the notes to the supplementary information.
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COUNTY COLLABORATIVE CHARTER SCHOOL
SCHEDULES OF AVERAGE DAILY ATTENDANCE
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

Second Period Report
Classroom

Classroom
Total

Based

Annual Report
Total

Based

Grades 7-8
Grades 9-12

-

1.98
45.35

-

2.16
44.65

ADA Totals

-

47.33

-

46.81

See independent auditor’s report and the notes to the supplementary information.
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COUNTY COLLABORATIVE CHARTER SCHOOL
RECONCILIATIONS OF ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT
WITH AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017

There were no differences between the unrestricted net assets reported on the June 30, 2017 Annual
Financial Report and the audited fund balances (net assets).

See independent auditor’s report and the notes to the supplementary information.
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COUNTY COLLABORATIVE CHARTER SCHOOL
NOTES TO THE SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017
NOTE 1: PURPOSE OF SCHEDULES
Schedule of Instructional Time
This schedule presents information on the amount of instructional time offered by the School and
whether the School complied with the provisions of Education Code.
Schedule of Average Daily Attendance
Average daily attendance is a measurement of the number of pupils attending classes of the School. The
purpose of attendance accounting from a fiscal standpoint is to provide the basis on which
apportionments of state funds are made to charter schools. This schedule provides information
regarding the attendance of students at various grade levels.
Reconciliation of Annual Financial Report with Audited Financial Statements
This schedule provides the information necessary to reconcile the net assets of the charter schools as
reported on the Annual Financial Report form to the audited financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS
Board of Directors
County Collaborative Charter School
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of County Collaborative
Charter School (the School), which comprise the statement of financial position as of June 30, 2017, and
the related statements of activities, cash flows and functional expenses for the year then ended, the
related notes to the financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated December 11, 2017.
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the School’s internal
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal control. Accordingly,
we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal control.
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency or a
combination of deficiencies in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the financial statements will not be prevented or detected and corrected on a timely
basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is
less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS
Compliance and Other Matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the School’s financial statements are free from
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on
the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with
those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.
The results of our tests disclosed no instances of non-compliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.
Purpose of this Report
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP
Glendora, CA
December 11, 2017
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON STATE COMPLIANCE
Board of Directors
County Collaborative Charter School
We have audited County Collaborative Charter School’s (the School) compliance with the types of
compliance requirements described in the 2016-2017 Guide for Annual Audits of K-12 Local Education
Agencies and State Compliance Reporting, published by the Education Audit Appeals Panel for the year
ended June 30, 2017. The School’s State compliance requirements are identified in the table below.
Management’s Responsibility
Management is responsible for the compliance with the State laws and regulations as identified below.
Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the School’s compliance based on our audit of the types of
compliance requirements referred to below. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, the standards applicable to
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States, and the 2016-2017 Guide for Annual Audits of K-12 Local Education Agencies and State
Compliance Reporting, published by the Education Audit Appeals Panel. Those standards require that
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the
specific areas listed below has occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about
the School’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinion on state compliance. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of the School’s
compliance.
Compliance Requirements Tested
In connection with the audit referred to above, we selected and tested transactions and records to
determine the School’s compliance with the laws and regulations applicable to the following items:
Description
School Districts, County Offices of Education, and Charter Schools:
Educator Effectiveness
California Clean Energy Jobs Act
After School Education and Safety Program
Proper Expenditure of Education Protection Account Funds
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Procedures
Performed
Not applicable
Not applicable
Not applicable
Yes

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON STATE COMPLIANCE

Description
Unduplicated Local Control Funding Formula Pupil Counts
Local Control and Accountability Plan
Independent Study-Course Based
Immunizations
Charter Schools:
Attendance
Mode of Instruction
Nonclassroom-based instructional/independent study
Determination of funding for nonclassroom-based instruction
Annual instructional minutes – classroom based
Charter School Facility Grant Program

Procedures
Performed
Yes
Yes
Not applicable
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Yes
Not applicable
Not applicable

______________________________________________________

Opinion on State Compliance
In our opinion, the School complied with the laws and regulations of the state programs referred to
above in all material respects for the year ended June 30, 2017.
Purpose of this Report
The purpose of this report on state compliance is solely to describe the results of testing based on the
requirements of the 2016-2017 Guide for Annual Audits of K-12 Local Education Agencies and State
Compliance Reporting, published by the Education Audit Appeals Panel. Accordingly, this report is not
suitable for any other purpose.

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP
Glendora, CA
December 11, 2017
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COUNTY COLLABORATIVE CHARTER SCHOOL
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017
All audit findings must be identified as one or more of the following categories:
Five Digit Code
10000
20000
30000
40000
42000
50000
60000
61000
62000
70000
71000
72000

Finding Types
Attendance
Inventory of Equipment
Internal Control
State Compliance
Charter School Facilities Program
Federal Compliance
Miscellaneous
Classroom Teacher Salaries
Local Control Accountability Plan
Instructional Materials
Teacher Misassignments
School Accountability Report Card

There were no findings and questioned costs related to the basic financial statements or state awards for
June 30, 2017.
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COUNTY COLLABORATIVE CHARTER SCHOOL
STATUS OF PRIOR YEAR FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2017
There were no findings and questioned costs related to the basic financial statements or state awards for
the prior year.
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Exhibit K: SARC Report 2016/17

